
 

Oldham Borough Council 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Council Meeting 
Wednesday 14 July 2021 

 
 

 
 



 



 
OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
To:  ALL MEMBERS OF OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL,  

CIVIC CENTRE, OLDHAM 

 
Tuesday, 6 July 2021 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Council which will be held on 

Wednesday 14 July 2021 at 6.00 pm in the Queen Elizabeth Hall, Civic Centre, for 
the following purposes: 

 

1   To receive apologies for absence  

2   To order that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 19th May 2021 be 

signed as a correct record (Pages 1 - 8) 

3   To receive declarations of interest in any matter to be determined at the meeting   

4   To deal with matters which the Mayor considers to be urgent business  

5   To receive communications relating to the business of the Council  

6   To receive and note petitions received relating to the business of the Council  

 (time limit 20 minutes) 

 
There are no petitions to consider.  

7   Youth Council  

 (time limit 20 minutes) 
 
There is no Youth Council business to consider.  

8   Questions Time  

a   Public Questions  

 (time limit 15 Minutes) 

b   Questions to Leader and Cabinet  

 (time limit 30 minutes) 

c   Questions on Cabinet Minutes (Pages 9 - 38) 

 (time limit 15 minutes) 
 
23rd February 2021 

23rd March 2021 



d   Questions on Joint Arrangements (Pages 39 - 170) 

 (time limit 15 minutes) 

 

AGMA  12th February 2021  

GMCA 12th February 2021 
23rd March 2021 

GM Police, Fire and Crime Panel  29th January 2021  

GM Waste and Recycling 

Committee 

13th January 2021 

GM Health and Social Care 
Partnership  

31st January 2021  
26th March 2021  

GM Transport Committee  11th December 2020 

12th February 2021 
24th March 2021  

National Park Authority 4th December 2020 

19th February 2021 
19th March 2021 

Oldham Leadership Board  16th April 2021 

Commissioning Partnership Board  25th February 2021  

25th March 2021  

Health and Wellbeing Board  26th January 2021 
23rd January 2021 

 

9   Notice of Administration Business  

 (time limit 30 minutes) 

 
Motion 1  
Councillor Mushtaq to MOVE and Councillor Moores to SECOND: 

Recovery in Education and Young Children’s Development 
This Council notes that: 

 Sir Kevan Collins, appointed by the Prime Minister as the Government’s 
Education Recovery Commissioner judged that some £15bn was needed to 
repair the damage done to the nation’s pupils because of Covid. 

 On 2nd June the Government published its plans for education recovery after the 
pandemic. Its offer, £1.4bn, falls far short and is completely inadequate to build 

back better from the pandemic and have an education system that supports 
high standards and strong mental health for everyone.  

 The Government’s funding is intended mainly for tutors for children in schools. 

Other essential support, especially for disadvantaged children is not provided 
for.  

 Moreover, there is no mention of support to ensure good development of 
children in their early years. 

This Council further notes that 

 Evidence from research for the Government supports the necessity for greater 
resources for children in Oldham, who are among the poorest and most 

vulnerable. Oldham suffered extended periods of lock-down and studies have 
shown that pupils have fallen behind, losing progress in maths and reading. 



Progress, about which Oldham is rightfully proud, in reducing the gap in 
attainment between Oldham’s children and those nationally, has been 
jeopardised. It has been confirmed in national research that the poorest pupils 

have lost more learning than the average. 

 Prolonged absence from social contact with peers and adults in school has 

negatively affected the mental health of children and young people.   

 Attendance in early years settings in Oldham, as more generally in the country, 

has fallen during the pandemic. This has implications for their development and 
school readiness.  

This Council therefore resolves: 

 To urge the Government to value and invest in all our children, so they are 
supported to develop well, to learn, succeed, and go on to have bright futures.  

 To write to the Prime Minister and call on the Government to scale up its 
ambition for all our children in their early years, in school and in adolescence, to 
provide the resources needed to ensure that no child is left behind by putting in 

the investment called for by its own former Education Recovery Commissioner. 
This investment must include proper provision for pupil and early years 

premiums, ensuring access to school lunch throughout the year, and to sports 
and social activities which promote health and mental wellbeing.  

 To continue to use the resources available to the Council for the development of 

all Oldham’s children – in school, in college and in early years settings – and to 
encourage families to do what they can to promote the sound development of 

their children.    
 
Motion 2  

Councillor Hulme to MOVE and Councillor Jabbar to SECOND: 
Climate and Ecological Emergency (CEE) Bill 

This Council notes  
1. the ongoing climate crisis is the biggest challenge we face in our world. Climate 

breakdown is causing global temperatures and sea levels to continue to rise and 

we are experiencing more unseasonal and extreme weather events are taking 
place. 

2. that Oldham Council has declared a climate emergency and is pursuing a Green 
New Deal strategy to meet ambitious targets of a zero carbon Oldham by 2030 
including creating new sustainable, green jobs. 

3. the work by local organisations such as the RSPB and City of Trees alongside 
the Council to improve natural habitats across the Borough and at a regional 

level by the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) to meet their 
2038 target  

4.  that despite Parliament declaring a Climate Emergency in 2019, the 

Government’s actions haven’t matched its words. An emergency requires 
strong, decisive action to reverse the climate and ecological crisis. One in seven 

native British species are now at risk of extinction and tree-planting targets have 
been missed by over 50%. 

This Council believes that 

1. that the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill would create the powers needed 
to take strong, urgent action on both the climate and ecological emergencies 

missing from the current Climate Change Act. The bill would require the 
Government to: ensure that the UK reduces greenhouse gas emissions in line 



with its legally-binding international obligations to limit global heating to 1.5°C 
above pre-industrial levels;  protects and restores habitats, woodlands, wetlands 
and the wider natural world and  establish a representative Citizens’ Assembly 

to involve people from all parts of the UK in deciding which policies are needed 
to avoid irreversible environmental damage.  

2. local authorities across the country will need national Government funding if we 
are to stop climate breakdown 

The Council resolves to: 

1. Support the campaign to get the Climate and Ecological Emergency (CEE) Bill 
passed and ask the Chief Executive to write to Oldham’s three MPs urging them 

to pledge to support the Bill;    
2. Raise awareness of the bill and the ongoing climate emergency as well as local 

projects tackling the issue; 

3. Ask the Chief Executive  to write to: the Environment Minister, the Rt. Hon. 
George Eustice MP; the President of the COP26 Climate Conference, the Rt. 

Hon. Alok Sharma MP, and the Prime Minister, the Rt. Hon. Boris Johnson MP, 
informing them of this Council’s support for the Bill and urging government time 
be allocated to  the Bill to enable it to become law  

 

10   Notice of Opposition Business  

 (time limit 30 minutes) 

 
Motion 1  
Councillor Al-Hamdani to MOVE and Councillor Hamblett to SECOND: 

Pension Fund Divestment from Fossil Fuels 
This Council recognises that: 

 Burning fossil fuels contributes significantly to global warming, jeopardising the 
stability of our climate upon which our well-being and economy depend. Such 

activity also has a negative impact upon air quality and so public health. 

 Research demonstrates that 80% or more of the world’s proven fossil fuel 
reserves will have to remain unburnt if we are to have a reasonable chance of 

keeping global warming to well below 2 degrees Celsius, the globally agreed 
target for climate change mitigation.  

 Since 80% of fossil fuels must remain in the ground, the reserves of the fossil 
fuel industry risk becoming ‘stranded assets’ with little or no value – 

representing a substantial financial risk for those that invest in them. 

 Greater Manchester Pension Fund currently has around £1.7 billion invested in 
the oil, coal and gas industries. This is environmentally and financially 

irresponsible.  

 To date, over 1,100 institutions representing over $14 trillion in assets have 

committed to divest from fossil-fuel companies.  These include the World 
Council of Churches, the Irish state, New York City, the British Medical 
Association and a growing number of UK local authority pension funds. 

 As a local authority with a commitment to become carbon-neutral by 2025, it is 
illogical for Oldham Council to make employer contributions towards a pension 

fund that is committed to investments in fossil-fuel companies. 
Council resolves: 



 Not to invest directly in fossil fuel companies. 

 To mandate its representative to the Greater Manchester Pension Fund Board 

to call for the adoption of Responsible Investment policies which: 
o Immediately freeze any new investment in the top 200 publicly traded fossil fuel 

companies;  

o By the end of this year, divest from direct ownership of companies involved in 
coal mining; 

o Within two years, divest from direct ownership of all fossil fuel companies, along 
with any commingled funds that include any fossil fuel public equities and 
corporate bonds; 

o Set out an approach to quantifying and addressing climate change risks 
affecting all other investments, and 

o Focus future investments on areas that minimise climate change risk and, 
where possible, invest in local climate solutions that will benefit fund members, 
their families and the wider community. 

 To ask the Chief Executive to write to the Leaders and Chief Executives of the 
other 9 Greater Manchester local authorities outlining this Council’s position and 

asking for their support. 
 
 

Motion 2  
Councillor Murphy to MOVE and Councillor C Gloster to SECOND: 

Pavement Parking: Options for Change 
This Council notes that: 

 Pavement parking can pose a hazard to pedestrians, especially people with sight 

loss, parents with pushchairs, wheelchair users and other disabled people. 

 People with sight loss are especially at risk as they can be forced into the road and 

faced with oncoming traffic that they cannot see. 

 Pavements are not designed to take the weight of vehicles and so surfaces can 

become damaged or subside, presenting a further hazard for pedestrians, 
particularly those with disabilities. 

Action to tackle pavement parking in this Borough is currently problematic because: 

 The current legislation on nuisance pavement parking is confusing.  

 The legal remedies available to tackle nuisance pavement parking are 

unsatisfactory. 

 Greater Manchester Police has previously refused a Council request for assistance 

with enforcement. 
Council: 

 Awaits with interest the Government’s promised response to the public submissions 
made to the Department of Transport’s ‘Pavement Parking: Options for Change’ 
consultation, but regrets that this response, promised by 31 March, is now over 

three months late. 

 Anticipates that the outcome of the consultation will be for government to grant new 

powers to local authorities to address nuisance pavement parking, rather than 
imposing an unnecessary blanket ban that will be onerous on residents and costly 
and difficult for local authorities to enforce. 

Council resolves to: 

 Ask the Chief Executive to write to the Secretary of State for Transport requesting 

that the Government’s response to the consultation now be published as promised. 



 Ask the relevant Executive Director to conduct a survey amongst the elected 
members of this Council asking members to identify streets within their ward where 

nuisance pavement parking occurs. 

 Ask the relevant Cabinet Member to bring to a future meeting of this Council a 
report with the findings of this survey and details of the enforcement action that this 

Council proposes to take, taking account of any new powers the Government 
promises to make available to local authorities in their published response to the 

consultation. 
 
Motion 3 

Councillor H Gloster to MOVE and Councillor Kenyon to SECOND: 
Hands off our Peak District National Park  

Council notes that: 

 2021 is the 70th anniversary of the Peak District and other National Parks 

 Our precious National Parks represent an irreplaceable national natural resource 

which provide enjoyment, education and employment for countless thousands of 
people every year and are treasured and loved by millions more. 

 At present, every National Park is managed by its own LOCAL Park Authority with 
LOCAL representatives who know and serve the community and keep LOCAL 

oversight. The Park District National Park Authority includes an appointed 
representative from Oldham Council. 

Council is therefore gravely concerned that the Glover Review of 2019 proposed the 

replacement of the local National Parks Authorities with a National Landscape Service 
which would centralise services under one, nationally run, new organisation, and that 

the Government is giving active consideration to accepting this recommendation. 
Council is opposed to the replacement of the locally run National Parks Authorities 
because:  

 It is contrary to the Government’s ‘levelling-up’ agenda which involves government 
decentralising power and working more directly with local partners and 

communities. 

 The 2019 Conservative Party Manifesto stated that “the days of Whitehall knows 

best are over” (p.26) and pledged to give communities of all sizes far more control. 
This Council questions how a centralist National Landscapes Service would 
achieve this. 

 The move is contrary to international good practice in the management of protected 
landscapes which emphasises the importance of management being undertaken 

with, and through, local people and mainly for, and by, them. 

 Locally run and locally managed National Parks consider local circumstances and 

take account of local feelings and requirements without the burdensome red-tape of 
national management. 

Council therefore resolves to: 

 Ask the Chief Executive to write to the Secretary of State urging them not to replace 
local National Parks Authorities with a National Landscape Service or to take any 

step which will remove or degrade their powers 

 Ask the Chief Executive to send a copy of this letter to the Chair of the Peak District 
National Park Authority  

 Ask the Chief Executive to also copy in our three local MPs and the Chief 
Executives of other local authorities covered by the Peak District National Park 

asking for their support and/or similar action 



 
Motion 4  
Councillor Sharp to MOVE and Councillor Abid to SECOND: 

Oldham Regeneration  
The Government Minister for local growth, Luke Hall, stated High Streets are the 

beating heart of our local communities. That is why we welcome the Conservative 
Government delivering over £10.7 million for Oldham from the Future High Streets 
Fund to improve accessibility, connectivity and to aid recovery from the Coronavirus 

pandemic.  
On top of that a further £24.4 million was awarded by the Conservative Government’s 

Town Fund.  
However, three of these projects, Northern Roots, the relocation of Tommyfield Market 
and the development of flexible working within Spindles, have raised considerable 

concerns with members of the public and businesses, particularly those in the markets. 
This money was awarded to Oldham to kick start the recovery from the pandemic. That 

is why it is disappointing that little or no consultation was had with taxpayers, the 
private sector or Councillors when developing these plans. It is why we have concerns 
that many of these projects could end up going way over budget like previous projects 

have done and that they will saddle taxpayers with more debt and higher Council tax 
bills to pay for it.  

This Council therefore resolves: 
 • That it will properly consult with market traders, local taxpayers and the private 
sector to understand their concerns with these projects.  

• That any future bids must include other parts of the Borough outside of the Town 
Centre. 

 • That the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council convey to the Town Deal 
Board (the board), the concerns that have been raised by the public, and the board 
will, in future, consult and inform the public of any decision to be made.  

• That the board will open itself to proper public scrutiny about any draft plans they 
consider putting forward.  

• That a special committee is established with equal representation from all parties to 
oversee the planned projects to:  
- Scrutinise and avoid wasteful expenditure of taxpayer’s money. 

 -To avoid any of the projects overspending. 
 - Provide proper overview and scrutiny of these projects.  

• That these projects do not go over budget and that contracts and agreements are 
properly scrutinised before signing to avoid taxpayers footing the bill for a failure to 
deliver on time or on budget. 

11   Update on Actions from Council (Pages 171 - 194) 

12   Covid-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 - 2022 (Pages 195 - 222) 

13   Districts and Lead Members - Changes to the Constitution (Pages 223 - 230) 

14   Constitution - Consequential Amendments (Pages 231 - 232) 

 

NOTE: The meeting of the Council will conclude 3 hours and 30 minutes after the 
commencement of the meeting. 

 



             

        
        Carolyn Wilkins  

        Chief Executive 

 



 
PROCEDURE FOR NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

NO AMENDMENT 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

PROCEDURE FOR NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 

WITH AMENDMENT 
PROCEDURE FOR NOTICE OF MOTIONS 

 
                                                WITH AMENDMENT 
 
                                    

MOTION – Mover of the Motion to MOVE 

MOTION – Seconder of the Motion to SECOND – May reserve right to 
speak 

DEBATE ON THE MOTION: Include Timings 

MOVER of Motion – Right of Reply 

VOTE – For/Against/Abstain 

Declare outcome of the VOTE 

RULE ON TIMINGS 

 
(a) No Member shall speak longer than four minutes on any Motion 
or Amendment, or by way of question, observation or reply, unless 

by consent of the Members of the Council present, he/she is allowed 

an extension, in which case only one extension of 30 seconds shall 
be allowed. 

 
(b) A Member replying to more than one question will have up to six 

minutes to reply to each question with an extension of 30 seconds 



WITH AMENDMENT 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

MOTION – Mover of the Motion to MOVE 

MOTION – Seconder of the Motion to SECOND – May reserve right to speak 

AMENDMENT – Mover of the Amendment to MOVE 

AMENDMENT – Seconder of the Amendment to SECOND 

DEBATE on the Amendment 
For Timings - (See Overleaf) 

AMENDMENT – Mover of Original 
Motion – Right of Reply 

AMENDMENT – Mover of Amendment – 
Right of Reply 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT ONLY – 
For/Against/Abstain – CARRIED/LOST 

Call for any debate on Substantive Motion as 

Amended and then Call upon Mover of 

Original Motion – Right of Reply 

Call for any debate 

on Original Motion 
and then Call upon 
Mover of Original 

Motion – Right of 
Reply 

VOTE – On Original 

Motion – 

For/Against/Abstain VOTE – ON SUBSTANTIVE MOTION as 
amended - For/Against/Abstain 

Declare Substantive Motion as amended 
Carried/Lost 

IF LOST –Declare 

Lost 

IF CARRIED – Declare Carried 

Declare outcome of 

the Vote 



 

COUNCIL 
19/05/2021 at 12.00 pm 

 
 

Present: The Mayor – Councillor Harrison (Chair) 

 
Councillors Abid, Ahmad, Akhtar, Al-Hamdani, G. Alexander, Ali, 

Alyas, Arnott, M Bashforth, S Bashforth, Birch, Briggs, 
Brownridge, Byrne, Chadderton, Chauhan, Cosgrove, Davis, 
Dean, Garry (Deputy Chair), C. Gloster, Goodwin, Hamblett, 

Hobin, Hulme, A Hussain, F Hussain, Ibrahim, Iqbal, Islam, 
Jabbar, Kenyon, Malik, McLaren, Moores, Murphy, Mushtaq, 

Phythian, Phythian, Roberts, Salamat, Shah, Sharp, Sheldon, 
Shuttleworth, Stretton, Surjan, Sykes, Taylor, Toor, Wilkinson, 
Williamson and Williams. 

 

 

1   TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Curley, H 

Gloster, Leach and Woodvine. 
 

2   TO ELECT THE MAYOR FOR THE 2021/22 MUNICIPAL 

YEAR  

 

Councillor S Bashforth MOVED, Councillor C Gloster 
SECONDED and Councillor Byrne SUPPORTED the election of 
Councillor Jenny Harrison as Mayor for the forthcoming 

Municipal Year. 
 

On being put to the vote, the nomination was CARRIED. 
 
Councillor Harrison then made and signed the declaration 

required by law which enabled her to act in the Office of Mayor. 
 

The retiring Mayor (Councillor Ginny Alexander) invested the 
newly elected Mayor with the chain of office; the Mayor’s 
Consorts were presented with their chains. 

 
(The Mayor, Councillor Harrison, in the Chair.) 

 
The Mayor then made a speech of acceptance of office. 
 

Councillor Shah MOVED, Councillor Williamson SECONDED 
and Councillor Byrne SUPPORTED a vote of thanks to the 

retiring Mayor and Consort. 
 
RESOLVED that: 

 

1. Councillor Jenny Harrison be appointed Mayor of Oldham 

Metropolitan Borough Council for the 2021/22 Municipal 
Year. 

2. The sincere thanks and appreciation of the Council be 

recorded to Councillor Alexander for her valuable 
services during her term of office as Mayor of the Oldham 

Metropolitan Borough Council for the 2019/20 and 
2020/2021 Municipal Years. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

 

3   TO APPOINT THE DEPUTY MAYOR FOR THE 2021/22 
MUNICIPAL YEAR  

 

Councillor Shah MOVED, Councillor Sykes SECONDED and 

Councillor Sheldon SUPPORTED the election of Councillor 
Garry as Deputy Mayor for the forthcoming Municipal Year. 
 

On being put to the vote, the nomination was CARRIED. 
 

Councillor Garry then made and signed the declaration required 
by law which enabled her to act in the office of Deputy Mayor. 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Garry be appointed Deputy Mayor 

for Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council for the forthcoming 

Municipal Year. 
 
At this point in the meeting, the Mayor adjourned the meeting for 

a short break. 
 

The meeting reconvened at 1.30 p.m. 
 

4   TO ORDER THAT THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 

THE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING AND THE ORDINARY 
COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 24TH MARCH 2021 BE 
SIGNED AS A CORRECT RECORD  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Special Council meeting 

and the Ordinary Council meeting held on 24th March 2021 be 
approved as a correct record. 

 

5   TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN ANY 
MATTER TO BE DETERMINED AT THE MEETING  

 

The Mayor informed the meeting that the Standards Committee 
had granted a dispensation to allow all Members to vote on Item 

18, Members Allowance Scheme 2021/22 – Report of the 
Director of Legal Services.  All members declared a disclosable 

pecuniary interest in this item, but the dispensation was 
applicable which allowed members to participate and vote on 
Item 18. 

 

6   TO DEAL WITH MATTERS WHICH THE MAYOR 
CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT BUSINESS  

 

There were no items of Urgent Business. 

 

7   TO RECEIVE COMMUNICATIONS RELATING TO THE 
BUSINESS OF THE COUNCIL  

 

The Council was informed of the death of former Councillors 

Delores Phelan and David Shaw.  
 

Councillor Sykes and Williams spoke in tribute and the meeting 
observed a minutes silence. 
 

Page 2



 

The Mayor advised the meeting that the following members had 
notified their wish to speak about retiring members: 

 
Councillors Davis, Roberts and Sykes paid tribute to the work of 
Councillor Fielding during his time served on the Council. 

 
Councillors Sykes and Hulme paid tribute to the work of 

Councillor Harkness during his time served on the Council. 
 
Councillors Alyas, Toor and C Gloster paid tribute to the work of 

Councillor Ur-Rehman during his time served on the Council. 
 

Councillors S Bashforth, Alexander and Williamson paid tribute 
to the work of Councillor Ball during her time served on the 
Council. 

 
Councillors Briggs and Hamblett paid tribute to the work of 

Councillor Jacques during her time served on the Council. 
 

8   TO NOTE THE REPORT OF THE RETURNING OFFICER 
CONTAINING THE RESULTS OF THE LOCAL ELECTIONS 

WHICH TOOK PLACE ON 6TH MAY 2021  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Returning Officer 
which informed members of the results of the Local Election 

which had taken place on 6th May 2021. 
 
RESOLVED that the results of the Local Election be noted. 

 

9   LEADER OF THE COUNCIL   

Consideration was given to a report regarding the appointment 
of the Leader of the Council in accordance with the provisions of 

the Local Government Act 2000 as amended. 
 
RESOLVED that the appointment of Councillor Shah as the 

Leader of the Council from the 19th May 2021 and ending on the 
day when the Council holds its first annual meeting of the 

Leader’s normal day of retirement as Councillor as outlined at 
paragraph 1.2 of the report be noted. 

 

10   APPOINTMENT OF THE DEPUTY LEADER, CABINET 
MEMBERS AND DEPUTY CABINET MEMBERS AND 
ALLOCATION OF PORTFOLIOS AND DELEGATION OF 

EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Leader of the Council 
which detailed the Cabinet portfolios and the appointments to 

the Cabinet for the 2021/22 Municipal Year. 
 
RESOLVED that the appointment of the Deputy Leaders, 

Cabinet Members, Deputy Cabinet Members, the allocation of 
portfolios to Cabinet Members and the determination of 

delegations to executive functions for 2021/22 be noted as 
outlined below: 
    

Page 3



 

Councillor Arooj Shah Leader of the Council Cabinet 
Member, Economic and Social 

Reform 
Councillor Amanda 
Chadderton 

Statutory Deputy Leader Cabinet 
Member, Neighbourhoods 

Councillor Abdul Jabbar Deputy Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member, Finance and Low 

Carbon 
Councillor Shaid Mushtaq Cabinet Member, Education and 

Skills 

Councillor Eddie Moores Cabinet Member, Children’s 
Services 

Councillor Zahid Chauhan
  

Cabinet Member, Health and Social 
Care 

Councillor Jean Stretton Cabinet Member, Corporate 

Services 
Councillor Hannah 

Roberts 

Cabinet Member, Housing 

Councillor Shoaib Akhtar Cabinet Member, Economy and 
Enterprise 

Councillor C Phythian Deputy Cabinet Member, Economy 
and Enterprise 

Councillor Mohon Ali Deputy Cabinet Member, Education 

and Skills 
Councillor Steve Williams Deputy Cabinet Member, 

Neighbourhoods 
Councillor George Hulme Deputy Cabinet Member, Finance 

and Low Carbon 

Councillor Valerie Leach Deputy Cabinet Member, Children 
and Young People 

Councillor Ros Birch Deputy Cabinet Member, Health 
and Social Care 

Councillor Chris Goodwin Deputy Cabinet Member, Corporate 

Services 
     

11   OPPOSITION NOMINATIONS TO THE SHADOW CABINET 

2021/22  

 

RESOLVED that the appointment of the Opposition Leader and 

the Shadow Cabinet as circulated at the meeting and as set out 

below be noted: 
 
Councillor Howard Sykes  Opposition Leader of the Liberal 

Democrat Group 
Councillor Howard Sykes Shadow Cabinet Member 

Economic and Social Reform 
 

Councillor Howard Sykes Shadow Cabinet Member 

Corporate Services 
 

Councillor Chris Gloster Deputy Opposition Leader of the 
Liberal Democrat Group 
 

Councillor Chris Gloster Shadow Cabinet Member  
Finance and Low Carbon 

 

Page 4



 

Councillor Sam Al-
Hamdani 

Shadow Cabinet Member 
Housing 

 
Councillor Louie Hamblett Shadow Cabinet Member 

Health and Social Care 

 
Councillor Hazel Gloster Shadow Cabinet Member 

Education and Skills 
 

Councillor Diane 

Williamson 

Shadow Cabinet Member 

Children and Young People 
 

Councillor Mark Kenyon Shadow Cabinet Member 
Employment and Enterprise 
 

Councillor Dave Murphy Shadow Cabinet Member 
Neighbourhoods 

 
 

12   APPOINTMENT TO COMMITTEES AND COMPOSITION OF 
POLITICAL GROUPS 2021/22  

 

Councillor Shah MOVED and Councillor Sykes SECONDED the 

report of the Director of Legal Services which sought a review of 
the political composition of committees and the composition of 

political groups as previously notified under Regulation 8(1) of 
the Local Government (Committees and Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990 and under Sections 15 and 16 of the Local 

Government Housing Act 1989. 
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The composition of the political groups as shown in 
paragraph 1.1 be noted; 

2. The several Committees detailed at paragraph 1.5 be 
constituted with the Terms of Reference and delegated 

powers as detailed in the Constitution; 
3. The number of seats on the various Committees for the 

2021/22 Municipal Year be as detailed in paragraph 1.6 

be approved and the terms of office referred to therein; 
4. Council confirms the allocation of seats to the political 

groups and makes appointments to fill the seats in 
accordance with Sections 15 and 16 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989, as detailed in 

Appendix 1; 
5. Council appoints a Chair and Vice-Chair of each of the 

various Committees for the 2021/22 Municipal Year, as 
detailed in Appendix 1, with the exception of the Selection 
and Appeals Committees and appoints a District Lead for 

each of the District Areas; 
6. The Co-opted Members detailed at paragraph 1.9 of the 

report be appointed to the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
and the Statutory Co-optees be given full voting rights in 
respect of education matters only; 

7. Any outstanding appointments to be delegated to the 
Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the 

Council and Leaders of the main opposition groups. 

Page 5



 

 

13   APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2021/22   

Councillor Shah MOVED and Councillor Sheldon SECONDED a 
report of the Director of Legal Services which detailed the 

appointments to Outside Bodies for the Municipal Year 2021/22. 
 
RESOLVED that: 

1. The appointments to the Outside Bodies as listed in the 
Appendices as circulated for the 2021/22 Municipal Year 

be agreed. 
2. Any outstanding appointments be delegated to the Chief 

Executive in consultation with the Leader of the Council 

and the Leader of the Main Opposition Group. 
 

14   COUNCIL MEETINGS AND MUNICIPAL CALENDAR 

2021/22  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Legal 
Services which set out the Calendar of Meetings for the 2021/22 

Municipal Year. 
 
RESOLVED that: 

 
1. The meetings of Full Council be held on the 

undermentioned dates during the 2021/22 Municipal 
Year, commencing at 6.00pm unless otherwise shown: 

 

14th July 2021 
8th September 2021 

3rd November 2021 
15th December 2021 
2nd March 2022 

16th March 2022 
 

2. The Council’s calendar of meetings for 2021/22 be 
approved. 

3. Approval of any outstanding dates or changes to dates to 

be delegated to the Chief Executive in consultation with 
Group Leaders. 

 

15   NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATION BUSINESS   

There were no items of Administration Business.  
 

16   NOTICE OF OPPOSITION BUSINESS   

There were no items of Opposition Business. 

 

17   COUNCIL CONSTITUTION   

Councillor Shah MOVED and Councillor Sykes SECONDED a 
report of the Director of Legal Services which invited the Annual 

Meeting of the Council to re-affirm the Council Constitution as a 
matter of good governance. 
 

Page 6



 

RESOLVED that: 

The Council’s existing Constitution be reaffirmed. 

The inclusion of such matters as agreed to be implemented with 
effect from this Annual Meeting, amendments identified as 
consequential to those matters, or as agreed at this Annual 

Meeting be approved. 
 

18   MEMBERS ALLOWANCE SCHEME   

Councillor Shah MOVED and Councillor Sheldon SECONDED a 

report of the Director of Legal Services which set out 
recommendations in relation to the Members Allowance 
Scheme, to which no changes were proposed for this year.  

 
The Council noted that the Scheme could include annual 

adjustment linked to an index and that it was proposed that this 
be reviewed by the Independent Remuneration Panel with a 
report to come back to a future meeting of the Council. 

 
RESOLVED that the Members Allowances Scheme for 2021/22 

as detailed at Appendix 1 to the report be approved 
 
 

 
The meeting started at 12.00 pm and ended at 2.45 pm 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

CABINET 
23/02/2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Fielding (Chair)  
Councillors Brownridge, Chadderton, Chauhan, Jabbar, Moores, 
Mushtaq, Roberts and Shah 
 

 Also in Attendance: Anne Ryans – Director of Finance  
 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

There were no apologies for absence received.  

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  

5   DRAFT MINUTES OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUDGET 
PERFORMANCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY SELECT 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 28TH JANUARY 2021  

 

Members considered the draft minutes of the Performance and 
Value for Money Select Committee held on the 28th January 
2021. 
It was reported that the Select Committee recommended to 
Council all of the budget reduction proposals included in the 
report to a value of £8.920m for approval.  
 
RESOLVED – That the deliberations and comments of the 
Performance and Value for Money Select Committee held on 
the 28th January 2021 be noted. 

6   DRAFT MINUTES OF THE OPPOSITION BUDGET 
PERFORMANCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY SELECT 
COMMITTEE HELD ON 9TH FEBRUARY 2021  

 

RESOLVED – That the deliberations and comments of the 
Performance and Value for Money Select Committee held on 9th 
February 2021 be noted. 

7   REVENUE MONITOR AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
PROGRAMME 2020/21 MONTH 8 – NOVEMBER 2020  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Director of 
Finance which provided them with an update on the Council’s 
2020/21 forecast revenue budget position and the financial 
position of the capital programme as at 30 November 2020 
(Month 8), together with the revised capital programme 2020/25.  
In relation to the Revenue position, the Cabinet was informed 
that the current forecast outturn position for 2020/21 was a 
projected deficit variance of £8.330m after allowing for approved 
and pending transfers to and from reserves. 
The position also included additional costs and pressures that 
have been identified by the Authority in this financial year as a 

Public Document Pack

Page 9

Agenda Item 8c



 

direct result of the Governments ongoing arrangements to 
mitigate the spread of COVID-19 which commenced on 23 
March 2020. The additional pressures included forecasts of both 
income shortfalls and additional expenditure that have impacted 
on the Authority’s budgets as a result of the pandemic. 
The pandemic has affected nearly all aspects of Council service 
delivery; however, the most significant areas of concern are the 
People and Place, Children’s Services and Community Health & 
Adult Social Care Portfolios. Action was being taken and will 
continue for the remainder of the financial year to address 
variances and take mitigating action as detailed in the report. 
The Cabinet noted the overall corporate position was, being 
offset by the application of the £24.902m unringfenced 
Government COVID related grant funding from the Ministry for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), of 
which £7.641m was received in 2019/20 and held in a specific 
Earmarked Reserve to underpin the 2020/21 budget. There had 
been actual, in-year, receipts of £16.337m of COVID Emergency 
Funding, including £1.282m for the first claim for loss of income 
in relation to sales, fees and charges under the income 
compensation scheme (SFC). In addition, provision was made 
for the second SFC claim, calculated as £0.924m for the period 
August to November, which has been submitted to the MHCLG 
but not yet formally agreed for payment. The overall pressure 
was further offset by a refund from the GMCA for waste disposal 
contributions. In Appendix 1 to the report, both the full 
Government grant and the refund were presented as single 
sums so that it highlighted the level of variation across all 
Council budgets, given that there was still insufficient resource 
to fully offset the adverse variance. However, this summary 
report presents the position after applying the Government grant 
and the refund across Portfolio areas. 
Section 4 of the report advised Cabinet of the grants that the 
Council had received. There have been a number of 
developments particularly in relation to support for businesses 
and to provide additional support for the Council. Further grant 
funding and external contributions were expected, as a result, 
both the overall financial position and the application of 
Government grant would therefore change during the remainder 
of the financial year. As this financial monitoring report reflected 
the financial position at Month 8, it could be regarded as an 
indicator of the potential year end position, however, 
management action had been initiated across all service areas 
to review and challenge planned expenditure and to maximise 
income. As previously mentioned, there was an expectation of 
increased grant funding and external contributions which, based 
on current projections should bring the Council to a balanced 
position by the year end. However, it was important to note the 
worsening position in relation to the course of the pandemic, 
potentially made more challenging firstly by the Authority, along 
with rest of Greater Manchester being placed under Tier 4 Stay 
at Home restrictions from 31 December 2020 and then the full 
national lockdown effective from 5 January 2021. Financial 
pressures on the Council could increase even further and 
therefore, much therefore depends on the future direction of the 

Page 10



 

pandemic, Government action and the response required from 
the Council. 
Information on the Month 8 position of the Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG), Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Collection 
Fund was also outlined in the report. There were no significant 
issues of concern in relation to the HRA and Collection Fund, 
however the Collection Fund, was forecasting an in-year, deficit 
of £7.110m directly as a result of COVID-19. This would have a 
budgetary impact in 2021/22. The DSG continued to be an area 
which was facing a financial challenge with a revised, projected 
deficit of £4.559m at the end of the current financial year. Action 
was being taken with the aim of reducing the cumulative deficit 
and bringing the DSG towards a balanced position 
With regard to the Capital position, the revised capital 
programme budget for 2020/21 was £81.013m at the close of 
Month 8, a net decrease of £66.619m from the original budget of 
£147.632m. Actual expenditure to 30 November 2020 was 
£50.566m (62.42% of the forecast outturn). It was probable that 
the forecast position would continue to change before the year 
end with additional re-profiling into future years. The Month 8 
Revenue Monitor and the Capital Investment Programme 
2020/21 report was presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance and Value for Money Select Committee on 28 
January 2021 to accompany the suite of 2021/22 budget 
reports. The Select Committee was content to note the report 
and commend it to Cabinet for approval. 
 
Options/Alternatives considered  
Option 1 – To approve the forecast revenue and capital 
positions presented in the report including proposed changes. 
Option 2 – To approve some of the forecasts and changes 
detailed within the report. 
Option 3 – Not to approve any of the forecasts and changes 
detailed within the report.  
 
RESOLVED – That:  

1. The forecast revenue outturn for 2020/21 at Month 8 
being a £8.330m adverse variance having regard to the 
action being taken to manage expenditure be approved.  

2. The forecast positions for the Dedicated Schools Grant, 
Housing Revenue Account and Collection Fund be 
approved.  

3. The use of reserves as detailed in Appendix 1 to Annex 1 
of the report be approved.  

4. The revised capital programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25 at 
Month 8 as presented in Annex 2 of the report be 
approved.  

8   COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2021/22   

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which set out the proposed Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
2021/22.  
Members were informed that there was a requirement to have a 
Council Tax Reduction (CTR) scheme to support residents who 
qualified for assistance in paying Council Tax. The Local 
Government Finance Act 2012 placed a requirement that each 

Page 11



 

year a billing authority must consider whether to revise its 
Council Tax Reduction scheme or to replace it with another 
scheme. Any change to the 2021/22 scheme must be agreed by 
full Council in line with budget setting and no later than 10 
March 2021. For Oldham, this required the Council to agree a 
revised 2020/21 scheme at the 4th March 2021 Council meeting. 
Any proposed change must be subject to prior consultation with 
the major preceptors and the public. 
Since 2015/16 the Council’s CTR scheme had limited CTR to a 
maximum of 85% of Council Tax for a Band A property and 
removed second adult rebate for those of working age. 
Following a public consultation exercise in Autumn 2018, the 
scheme was amended from April 2019 to introduce a range of 
changes to the scheme largely aimed at supporting those CTR 
claimants who received Universal Credit (UC). These included 
the application of some earnings disregards and treatment of 
information received from the Department for Work and 
Pensions (DWP) about UC as a claim for CTR. 
There were no changes to the CTR scheme for 2020/21 and 
none are proposed for 2021/22. 
 
Options/Alternatives considered: 
Option 1 - Maintain the present level of support i.e. limiting the 
level of support at 85% of the Council Tax for a Band A property. 
Option 2 - Reducing the maximum support to 82.5% 
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The Cabinet approved and commended to the Council 
the proposed Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2021/22 
which was unchanged from the 2020/21 scheme. 

2. The financial position during 2021/22 would be reviewed 
to assess whether resources could be found to support 
additional Exceptional Hardship Payments to support 
those residents in most need in 2021/22 and to alleviate 
the impact of the loss of COVID Hardship Fund grant 
awards. 

9   REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22 AND MEDIUM TERM 
FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2021/22 TO 2023/24  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which provided the Cabinet with the forecast budget reduction 
requirement and the budget proposals for 2021/22 together with 
forecast budget reduction requirement estimates for the period 
2022/23 to 2023/24, having regard to the Provisional Local 
Government Finance Settlement published on 17 December 
2020 and associated announcements and the subsequent Final 
Local Government Settlement approved on 10 February 2021 
and the February 2021: COVID-19 Funding for Local 
Government in 2021 to 2022 Policy Paper. 
The report set out proposals for the Council’s Revenue Budget 
for 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2021/22 to 
2023/24. The report advised Members of the key financial 
challenges and issues which would be faced by the Council over 
the forecast period and set out the Administration’s revenue 
budget proposals for 2021/22 together with updated budget 

Page 12



 

reduction requirement estimates for the period 2022/23 to 
2023/24.  
Members noted the purpose and scope of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and how it had a vital role to play in enabling 
the translation of the Council’s ambition and priorities into action. 
They were advised of the national policy landscape and 
economic context in which the Council was setting its revenue 
budget for 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 
2023/24. 
The report highlighted policy announcements and implications 
which arose from the Government’s 2020 Spending Round 
published on 25 November 2020, Provisional Local Government 
Finance Settlement (LGFS) published on 17 December 2020 
together with the complementary COVID Funding for Local 
Government in 2021/22 Consultative Policy Paper, Final Local 
Government Finance Settlement approved on 10 February 
2021; and  February 2021: COVID-19 Funding for Local 
Government in 2021 to 2022 Policy Paper. 
The LGFS confirmed referendum limits for a general purpose 
Council Tax increase and the Government would permit rises of 
up to 2% per annum for 2021/22 without the need to hold a 
referendum. The Government also confirmed the continued 
ability to charge an Adult Social Care Precept allowing a 
combined increase of up to 3% in Council Tax across 2021/22 
and 2022/23 (ringfenced for use for Adult Social Care). The 
Council Tax referendum limits for 2021/22 applicable to the 
Council therefore allow an overall increase of 4.99% without 
requiring a referendum. 
Members were reminded that the Council Tax policy approved 
within the 2020/21 budget was that for 2020/21 Council Tax 
would revert to its previous position. The Council would 
therefore increase Council Tax by 2% for the Adult Social Care 
Precept (ASCP) and 1.99% for general purposes; an overall 
increase of 3.99%. The referendum limits for 2021/22 as 
advised above would permit this approach. However, mindful of 
the financial position of the Authority but also the impact of a 
further increase in Council Tax on the citizens of Oldham, a 
revision to Council Tax policy was therefore proposed. Whilst 
the 2% increase in relation to the ASCP would continue, Council 
Tax for general purposes will increase by 0.99% rather than 
1.99%. In overall terms the Oldham Council Tax would increase 
by 2.99%. The Council proposed to use the flexibility allowed to 
defer a further 1% in the ASCP to 2022/23. This is of course 
subject to confirmation at Budget Council on 4 March 2021. 
The Government proposed not to set Council Tax referendum 
principles for Mayoral Combined Authorities in 2021/22 but had 
set referendum principles for Police and Crime Commissioners 
(including the GM Mayor) capped at a value of £15. The Mayoral 
General precept (including Fire Services) had been kept at 
2020/21 levels – with a Band D Council Tax Charge of £90.95. 
The Mayoral Police and Crime Commissioner Precept had 
increased by £10, giving a Band D Council Tax change of 
£218.30 
The Cabinet was informed that the report also advised of the 
proposal to leave the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
2021/22 unchanged from 2020/21. However, during 2020/21, 

Page 13



 

working age Council Tax reduction recipients have benefitted 
from support of £150 from a Government Hardship fund. This 
scheme was not continuing in 2021/22 and it was recommended 
that the Council reviewed its financial position during 2021/22 to 
determine if it is able to provide any additional hardship relief.  
The starting point for preparing the 2021/22 revenue budget 
estimates was the Month 8 2020/21 revenue budget forecast 
outturn position and summarised in Section 8. It highlighted a 
current adverse projected variance for 2020/21 of £8.330m 
(including COVID pressures). A reduction in this overspend 
position was anticipated as a result of further funding being 
provided by Central Government and contributions from partners 
alongside management actions. However, it was important to 
note that if there was any remaining overspending at the end of 
2020/21 then it would need to be funded by the use of reserves.  
Section 9 of the report detailed key budget adjustments and 
expenditure pressures underpinning the forecasts that provided 
the backdrop for the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 
including the mid-year adjustment to estimates from a budget 
reduction requirement of £23.251m to £29.940m (rounded to 
£30.000m). The major elements of this adjustment were 
addressing budget reduction proposals for 2020/21 (some 
approved in the budget for 2019/20) that could not be achieved 
(£2.089m), reduced treasury management income of £6.600m 
and an assumption that Flexible Use of Capital receipts at a 
value of £2.000m would support the budget.  
Since the mid-year budget review, there had been further 
changes to the estimates. Key expenditure adjustments 
following the mid-year review included:  

 £0.441m for additional treasury management and 
education services pressures. 

 £7.737m for pressures arising from COVID fully financed 
by Government grant. 

 A net reduction of pressures of £2.777m due to: 
o a revision of estimates for the cost of financing 

capital expenditure (Investment Fund) at a 
reduction of £1.650m. 

o reducing the estimate for pay inflation (£1.017m). 
o releasing unallocated Development Fund 

resources of £0.825m but in effect using it to 
finance pressures relating to a contract with a third 
party supplier (£0.500m) and costs no longer 
chargeable to the Dedicated Schools Grant 
(£0.265m). 

o the release of £0.050m of resources that were 
previously allocated to support additional Coroners 
Service pressures identified through the 2020/21 
Revenue Monitoring Process. 

 £0.166m reduction in spending relating to a revision to 
assumed passported Adult Social Care precept and 
Parish Precepts. 

 A net reduction in levies of £0.393m. 
In relation to income, the report highlighted:  

Page 14



 

 A reduction in Central Government Business Rates Top 
Up Grant and Grants in Lieu of Business Rates at a 
combined value of £1.087m. 

 £13.202m of increased Unringfenced Grant Funding, 
primarily £7.737m of COVID Grant, £3.183m Local 
Council Tax Support Grant and an increase of £1.993m 
for the Social Care Support Grant. 

 A reduction in Locally Generated Retained Business 
Rates income of £0.364m. 

 A reduction in the Council Tax Tax base (due to the 
impact of the increase in claimants of Council Tax 
Reduction resulting in a total reduction in Council Tax 
income of £2.597m from that expected of which £0.175m 
relates to ASCP that cannot be passported to the service 

Section 9 also advised of a Collection Fund deficit that would be 
charged to the General Fund of £25.809m. Of this sum £0.353m 
related to an adjusted 2020/21 balance using flexibilities allowed 
by Central Government. The balance was a technical 
adjustment required to the budget as a result of the Collection 
Fund deficit caused by the Government introducing Business 
Rate reliefs for retail, leisure, hospitality and nursery businesses 
after the 2020/21 budget had been set. The estimated sum (the 
final figures would only be confirmed at the end of the financial 
year) was £25.456m. Government was paying the Council grant 
compensation for this loss of Business Rates income through 
2020/21 and this would be carried forward as a reserve. This 
would then offset the Collection Fund deficit but had a significant 
impact on the overall use of reserves.  
Based on the latest estimates, the budget reduction requirement 
for 2021/22 has decreased from the previously reported figure of 
£29.940m to £27.623m, increasing to £53.079m after the 
technical adjustment.  
Section 10 of the report detailed the Administration’s budget 
reduction proposals. There was a total of 43 proposals expected 
to deliver savings of £8.920m in 2021/22 (of which one was a 
use of reserves), leaving recurrent budget reductions of 
£8.793m. In 2021/22, if approved in full, those recurrent 
proposals further reduced the budget reduction requirement to 
£44.286m for 2021/22.  
Sections 11 and 12 explained the approach to balancing the 
2021/22 budget. Importantly, the budget strategy of using 
£29.000m of reserves to support the budget over a two year 
period (2021/22 and 2022/23) was outlined together with the use 
of the opportunities provided by the ability to use Capital 
Receipts to support spending on transformational projects up to 
a value of £2.000m in 2021/22. A number of specific and 
corporate reserves would be used to address the balance as 
follows: 

 £25.456m of Section 31 grant received in 2020/21 held to 
support the Collection Fund Deficit in 2021/22 as a result 
of Business Rates relief for retail, leisure, nursery and 
hospitality businesses (a technical adjustment);  

 £0.127m as a result of budget reduction proposal REF-
BR1-432;  

Page 15



 

 £1.000m of 2020/21 Earmarked Reserves created as a 
result of the Local Tax Income Guarantee grant; and  

 £15.703m of other reserves brought forward from 
2019/20.  

There was also a reserve held at a value of £12.297m to support 
the 2022/23 budget if required. Approval of the proposals set out 
in this report in full by Budget Council would deliver a balanced 
revenue budget for 2021/22.  
Other key sections in the report: 

 summarised the forecast reserves and balances position 
supporting the Council’s financial resilience;  

 set out the Administration’s proposals in relation to Fees 
and Charges; and 

 detailed the Council’s Pay Policy Statement (as required 
by sections 38 to 43 of the Localism Act 2011).  

The final section of the report set out the Council’s MTFS 
covering the period 2021/22 to 2023/24, a shorter timeframe 
than is usual practice given the uncertainties created by COVID 
and the lack of clear direction Government funding intentions for 
future years. It was important to note that as the Government 
has only provided grant funding notifications for 2021/22, the 
MTFS estimates for 2022/23 to 2023/24 were based on a series 
of assumptions and therefore must be considered indicative at 
this stage. This has generated significant uncertainty and 
hindered effective planning by the Council both financially and 
operationally as future Government funding intentions are 
difficult to assess.  
This position, together with the transformational and 
organisational plans for change that the Council would 
implement to address the financial challenge were outlined in 
Section 17 of the report.  
After having addressed the £27.623m (adjusted for the technical 
Business Rates issue), the budget reduction requirement for 
subsequent years was forecast to be £31.900 m for 2022/23 and 
£21.849m for 2023/24.  
The MTFS highlighted the plan to deliver significant savings 
from 2022/23 onwards. Whilst it was anticipated that the Council 
will continue to rely on the use of reserves to support the 
revenue budget in 2022/23 at a value of £12.297m, additional 
budget reductions were expected to be achieved as part of the 
Council’s transformation programme.  
Given the importance of delivering budget reductions and 
embedding the programme of transformational change, during 
2021/22, there would be a regular review of the progress of 
existing change programmes against the delivery milestones 
and financial targets. 
The Revenue Budget 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 2021/22 to 2023/24 was presented to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money (PVFM) Select 
Committee for consultation and scrutiny on 28 January 2021. 
The Select Committee scrutinised the budget report and the 
other reports on the agenda that form a core part of the 
Council’s strategic financial planning framework. The Select 
Committee was content to commend the report to Cabinet 
without additional comment. It is important to note that the report 

Page 16



 

and financial information within it would continue to be revised 
as estimates are confirmed and external funding or charging 
notifications are received. 
 
Options/Alternatives considered:  
Option 1 – Cabinet accepts the assumptions and resulting 
financial forecasts presented within the report and the budget 
position at Appendix 4.  
Option 2 – Cabinet proposes amendments to the assumptions 
which would change the resulting budget gap and financial 
forecasts.  
Option 3 – Cabinet approves and commends to Council all the 
budget reduction proposals included in this report to the value of 
£8.920m and the approach to the use of reserves and balances 
as well as Council Tax and Adult Social Care Precept in 
increases.  
Option 4 - Cabinet requests that further work is undertaken on 
some or all of the budget proposals and the approach to 
reserves and balances. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Cabinet accepted and commended to 
Council: 

1. The policy landscape and economic context in 
which the Council was setting its revenue budget for 
2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 
2023/24; 

2. The impact of Oldham Council Policies and 
Strategies on the Council’s budget setting process 
and the development of its Medium Term Financial 
Strategy; 

3. The financial forecasts for 2021/22 to 2023/24 
having regard to the Final Local Government 
Finance Settlement and the February 2021: COVID-
19 Funding for Local Government in 2021 to 2022 
Policy Paper and associated funding 
announcements.  

4. The key issues to be addressed in continuing to 
respond to the financial challenges facing the 
Council; 

5. The proposal that the Council reviews its financial 
position during 2021/22 to determine if it was able to 
provide additional Council Tax hardship relief; 

6. The reaffirmation of the Council’s commitment to the 
modified Housing Benefits scheme, a discretionary 
local scheme which allows the Council to disregard 
the value of any War Disablement Pension or War 
Widows Pension over and above statutory disregard 
limits; 

7. The recurrent 2021/22 Budget Reduction Proposals 
at a value of £8.793m; 

8. Flexible Use of Capital Receipts at a value of 
£2.000m 

9. The proposed use of £42.286m of reserves to 
balance the 2021/22 budget including £0.127m for a 
one off budget reduction; 

Page 17



 

10. The proposed use of £12.297m of reserves to 
support the 2022/23 budget; 

11. The approach to managing the budget during the 
COVID pandemic and the continuation of budget 
management measures introduced in 2020/21 as 
outlined in Paragraphs 12.6 to 12.11; 

12. The proposed fees and charges schedule included 
at Appendix 7; 

13. The draft Pay policy statement included at Appendix 
11; 

14. A proposed Council Tax increase of 0.99% for 
Oldham Council General Purposes.  

15. A proposed 2.00% increase for the Adult Social 
Care Precept for 2021/22 and a further 1.00% 
increase for 2022/23. 

16. The specific 2021/22 charges set out at paragraph 
15.3 and Table 29 of the report and in detail at 
Appendix 8; 

17. The proposal to draw on the Collection Fund for 
major preceptors of £116.241m for Borough Wide 
services and £98.552m for Council services; 

18. The proposed net revenue budget expenditure for 
2021/22 for the Council set at £253.561m;  

19. Revised estimated budget reduction targets of 
£31.900m for 2022/23 and £21.849m for 2023/24 
before any use of reserves and indicative budget 
proposal. 
 

10   HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT ESTIMATES FOR 2021/22 
TO 2025/26 AND PROPOSED OUTTURN FOR 2020/21  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which set out the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) proposed 
2021/22 original budget and the forecast outturn for 2020/21. 
The opportunity was also taken to present the provisional 
strategic budgets for 2022/23 through to 2025/26. 
The Cabinet noted that HRA activities were a key element of the 
Council’s Housing Strategy (approved by Council on 10 July 
2019) which aimed to provide a diverse Oldham Housing offer 
that was attractive and met the needs of different sections of the 
population at different stages of their lives. 
After taking all relevant issues into account, the projected 
financial position for 2020/21 was estimated to be a £1.384m 
positive variance when compared to the original budget forecast 
for 2020/21 approved at the Budget Council meeting, 26 
February 2020. Most of this variance was attributable to the re-
profiling of HRA funded capital schemes into later years due to 
revisions to planned spending profiles. The balance at the end 
of 2020/21 was projected at £19.614m. 
The financial position for 2021/22 showed an estimated HRA 
closing balance of £17.463m which was sufficient to meet future 
operational commitments and the potential financial pressures 
identified in the risk assessment. 
The 2021/22 position had been presented after allowing for an 
increase in dwelling rents of 1.5%, the increase in non-dwelling 
rents in line with individual contracts, the freezing of all service 

Page 18



 

charges and the setting of Extra Care Housing concierge 
charges to fully recover costs. 
Members were reminded that the Government had previously 
advised that PFI properties were exempt from Central 
Government’s 1% Social Rent Reduction policy. This policy 
ended on 31 March 2020. Since this date, Central Government 
has reverted to its pre-2015 guidance for the period 2020-2025 
for all properties, confirming all rents are calculated based on 
the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rate at September of the 
preceding year plus 1%. All Oldham’s budget projections for the 
2021/22 budget will follow the rent setting guidance of CPI plus 
1%, resulting in an increase of 1.5% (CPI is taken as at 
September 2020). 
The financial projections for the HRA over the period 2020/21 to 
2025/26 showed an overall reduction in the level of balances 
from £19.614m at the end of 2020/21 to £3.906m at the end of 
2025/26.  
This was because HRA resources were used to support several 
major approved housing capital projects including development 
within the town centre and on numerous smaller sites around 
the borough. There is also a commitment to purchase currently 
empty properties owned by private sector landlords to increase 
the number of Council owned housing stock. 
 
Options/Alternatives considered  
In order that the Council complied with legislative requirements it 
must consider and approve a Housing Revenue Account budget 
for 201/22. 
Three options with regard to rent had been assessed. 

1. proposed rent increase of 1.5% 
2. proposed rent increase of 1.0% 
3. rents to be frozen for 2021/22. 

Compared to a 1.5% increase, the loss to the HRA for 2021/22 
in terms of rental income would be £0.044m at a 1.0% rent 
increase and £0.131m with no rent increase. 
The Cabinet was advised that, although losses in income for 
2021/22 could be considered manageable, it was the cumulative 
impact of sustained losses of income that would have a lasting 
and significant impact on the long-term financial strength of the 
HRA and potentially its ability to meet its current and future 
financial commitments. This was emphasised with the inflation 
factor built into the Unitary Charge. A proportion of the Unitary 
Charge expenditure currently increased by an inflation factor 
linked to the Retail Price Index (RPI), therefore were the Council 
not to introduce the proposed rent increase, or to increase rents 
at a level below the current proposal, it would limit the ability of 
the HRA to meet its future financial commitments and support 
the aspirations of the Council’s wider Housing Strategy. 
 
RESOLVED - That the following be approved and commended 
to Council: 

1. Forecast HRA outturn for 2020/21 (as per Appendix A) 
2. Proposed HRA budget for 2021/22 (as per Appendix B) 
3. Strategic estimates for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (as per 

Appendix D) 

Page 19



 

4. Proposed increase to dwelling rents for all properties of 
1.5%. 

5. Proposed increase to non-dwelling rents as per individual 
contracts. 

6. Proposal that service charges be unchanged. 
7. Proposal to set Extra Care Housing concierge charges to 

fully recover actual costs  

11   CAPITAL STRATEGY AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 
2021/22 TO 2025/26  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which set out the Capital Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 and 
thereby the proposed 2021/22 capital programme, including 
identified capital investment priorities, together with the 
indicative capital programme for 2022/23 to 2025/26, having 
regard to the resources available over the life of the programme. 
The Council’s Capital Strategy and Capital Programme were set 
over a five-year timeframe. The proposed Capital Strategy and 
Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 took the essential elements 
of the 2020/25 and previous years’ strategies and programmes 
and moved them forward in the context of the financial and 
political environment for 2021/22. 
The Strategy also included a longer-term vision, a forward look 
at those projects that were likely to run beyond the five-year 
strategy and programme period or be initiated subsequently. 
This covered a timeframe for the 10 years from 2026/27 to 
2035/36. 
Capital Strategy 
The format of the Capital Strategy reflected the requirements of 
the latest Prudential and Treasury Management Codes issued 
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA). The Strategy therefore presented: 

• A high-level long-term overview of how capital 
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management 
activity contribute to the provision of services 

• An overview of how the associated risk is managed 
• The implications for future financial sustainability 

The Capital Strategy ensured that all Council Members were 
presented with the overall long-term capital investment policy 
objectives and resulting Capital Strategy requirements, 
governance procedures and risk appetite.  
The Strategy incorporated the refreshed and updated elements 
of the Creating a Better Place Strategy, the Medium-Term 
Property Strategy and Housing Strategy. Following a review of 
the Capital Programme, as a result of the unprecedented 
economic circumstances due to the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic and the revised terms for PWLB borrowing, the 
principles established to complement the Capital Strategy as 
contained in the Commercial Property Investment Strategy and 
Fund and the Income Generation Strategy have been removed 
from the Capital Programme. 
The Capital Strategy section (section 1) highlighted the impact 
of COVID-19 and the way this has shaped capital spending 
plans for 2021/22 and future years. During 2020/21, the COVID-
19 pandemic has had a major impact on the borough, its 
residents and the economy. The financial year 2021/22 would 

Page 20



 

begin, at least, with a COVID-19 influence, however, it was 
expected, now that several vaccines were available, that normal 
activities 3 will be resumed and the Councils capital spending 
plans which had inevitably been interrupted in 2020/21, can get 
back on track during 2021. 
The Strategy also advised that the Council was proposing to 
continue the use the flexibility provided by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to use 
capital receipts to fund the revenue cost of transformation. The 
2021/22 revenue budget would rely on up to £2.000m of such 
funding from capital receipts. Annex D of the report set out the 
required Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy which 
advised of the summary of planned receipts, use and savings 
Capital Programme 2020/21 to 2024/25 
Members were advised that the 2020/21 month 8 capital 
monitoring position was detailed at Item 7 of the agenda and the 
projections included in that report were a key determinant of the 
2021/22 programme. As many schemes spanned more than one 
year, the anticipated level of reprofiling between years sets the 
underlying position. The projected outturn spending position for 
2020/21 is £81.013m. The People and Place Directorate which 
managed all of the major regeneration projects, constituted the 
main area of expenditure. Grants and Other Contributions 
(£20.151m) followed by Prudential Borrowing provided the main 
source of financing (£53.553m). Actual expenditure to 30 
November 2020 was £50.566m (62.24% of forecast outturn). 
This spending profile was in line with that in previous years, 
however the position would be kept under review and budgets 
will continue to be managed in accordance with forecasts. 
Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2025/26  
The Council has set out its capital programme for the period 
2021/22 to 2025/26 based on the principles of the Capital 
Strategy. The Capital Programme and Capital Strategy have 
been influenced by the level of resources considered available. 
The level of prudential borrowing included reflected the financing 
available in the revenue budget, capital receipts aligned with 
forecasts and grant funding and other contributions were based 
on already notified allocations or best estimates at time of 
preparation. If additional resources became available, projects 
that met the Council’s strategic capital objectives would be 
brought forward for approval. Due to the impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic on a number of schemes, over the summer 
months the capital programme for 2020/21 was significantly re-
phased. On 24 August 2020, Cabinet approved a revised vision 
and strategic framework for ‘Creating a Better Place’ which had 
associated with it, a significant level of investment. The revised 
vision placed more emphasis on economic recovery and 
accelerating the potential for generating revenue budget 
savings. The report was the culmination of a fundamental review 
of the programme which commenced in April 2020 close to the 
start of the pandemic. Following the review and in anticipation of 
the PWLB consultation outcome the Creating a Better Place 
Strategy was reduced by approximately £90.000m. As at the 
month 8 capital monitoring position, the anticipated expenditure 
over the five year life of the 2020/21 to 2024/25 strategy was 
£404.630m, taking 2020/21 aside (£81.013m) leaves 

Page 21



 

£323.617m for the remainder of the approved 2021/22 to 
2024/25 capital programme. Following the refresh of existing 
strategies including Creating a Better Place, and moving forward 
the planning period by one year, the Capital Strategy for 
2021/22 to 2025/26 totalled £341.102m. The capital programme 
included proposed expenditure for 2021/22 of £84.912m, with 
the largest area of expenditure being on regeneration, schools, 
transport and infrastructure projects within People and Place 
Directorate. Total expenditure increases to £94.765m in 
2022/23, then decreases to £71.418m, £62.553m and £27.454m 
in 2023/24, 2024/25 and 2025/26 respectively. 
The Government was continuing to provide significant levels of 
grant funding. The main sources of grant income are the 
Highway Maintenance Grant at £12.204m, along with Education-
related Basic Need Capital grant provision of £10.677m over the 
life of the programme. There were also considerable resources 
allocated to the Council via the GMCA including the Mayors 
Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (£11.273m in 2021/22).  
The majority of capital Government Grant funding is un-
ringfenced. 
The 2021/22 capital programme relied on £12.071m of 
unringfenced and £22.508m of ringfenced grants. As in previous 
years, a major source of financing remained prudential 
borrowing. The amount required in 2021/22 (£42.871m) included 
borrowing attributed to schemes that had slipped from prior 
years as well as new borrowing associated with the regeneration 
programme. The timing of the borrowing was linked to the cash 
position of the Council and may therefore not mirror the 
spending/financing profile set out above.  
There would be a continued review of capital spending 
requirements as the Council has further regeneration ambitions, 
but affordability and deliverability would be a key consideration 
in this regard, however, it was possible that the capital position 
could change prior to the start of 2021/22 and during the year as 
there may be further Government funding allocations announced 
prior to the start of 2021/22, new initiatives announced later in 
the financial year and the opportunity to bid for additional 
funding. 
Therefore, the overall capital programme position would be kept 
under review and any new information regarding funding 
allocations would be presented to Members in future reports.  
There had been consultation with the Members of the Capital 
Investment Programme Board on the proposed Capital Strategy 
and Capital Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26. The 
consideration of the proposed Capital Strategy and Capital 
Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money Select Committee 
on 28 January 2021 was a key element of the consultation 
process. The Select Committee was content to commend the 
report to Cabinet. 
 
Options/Alternatives considered  
Members could choose to accept the proposed Capital Strategy 
and Capital Programme or revise and suggest an alternative 
approach to capital investment including the revision of capital 
priority areas. 

Page 22



 

 
RESOLVED - That the Cabinet accepted and commended to 
Council: 

1. The Capital Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 at Appendix 
1 of the report and summarised at section 2.1. 

2. The Capital Programme for 2020/21 and indicative 
programmes for 2022/23 to 2025/26 at Annex C of 
Appendix 1 and summarised at sections 2.2 to 2.6 of the 
report. 

3. The Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy as 
presented at Annex D of Appendix 1. 

12   TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 
2021/22 INCLUDING THE MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 
POLICY STATEMENT, ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Director of 
Finance which presented the strategy for 2021/22 Treasury 
Management activities including the Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement, the Annual Investment Strategy and 
Prudential Indicators together with linkages to the Capital 
Strategy. 
Members were informed that the Council was required through 
regulations supporting the Local Government Act 2003 to ‘have 
regard to’ the Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators 
for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans were affordable, prudent and sustainable. It 
was also required to produce an annual Treasury Strategy for 
borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy setting 
out the Council’s policies for managing its investments and for 
giving priority to security and liquidity of those investments. 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 (the 
Code) required the receipt by full Council of a Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement. 
The Strategy for 2021/22 covered two main areas. 
Capital Issues 

• The Capital expenditure plans and the associated 
Prudential Indicators 

• The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy 
Statement 

Treasury Management Issues: 
• The Current Treasury Position 
• Treasury Indicators which limited the treasury risk and 

activities of the Council 
• Prospects for Interest Rates 
• The Borrowing Strategy 
• The Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need 
• Debt Rescheduling 
• The Investment Strategy 
• The Creditworthiness Policy 
• The Policy regarding the use of external service 

providers. 
The report outlined the implications and key factors in relation to 
each of the above Capital and Treasury Management issues 

Page 23



 

and made recommendations with regard to the Treasury 
Management Strategy for 2021/22. 
Cabinet noted that the Audit Committee, the body charged with 
the detailed scrutiny of Treasury Management activities 
considered the proposed Treasury Management Strategy report 
at its meeting on 21 January 2021. It was also presented to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money Select 
Committee on 28 January 2021. Both the Audit Committee and 
the Overview and Scrutiny Performance and Value for Money 
Select Committee were content to commend the report to 
Cabinet. 
 
Options/Alternatives considered 
The Council was required to comply with the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management the Council and has no option other 
than to consider and approve the contents of the report. 
Therefore, no options/alternatives were considered. 
 
RESOLVED -That the following be accepted and recommended 
to Council: 

1. Capital Expenditure Estimates as per paragraph 2.1.2 of 
the report. 

2. Minimum Revenue Provision policy and method of 
calculation as per Appendix 1 of the report. 

3. Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Projections as per 
paragraph 2.2.4 of the report. 

4. Projected treasury position as at 31 March 2020 as per 
paragraph 2.3.3 of the report. 

5. Treasury Limits as per section 2.4 of the report. 
6. Borrowing Strategy for 2021/22 as per section 2.6 of the 

report. 
7. Annual Investment Strategy as per section 2.10 including 

risk management and the creditworthiness policy at 
section 2.11 of the report.  

8. The level of investment in specified and non-specified 
investments detailed at Appendix 5 of the report. 

13   STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON 
RESERVES, ROBUSTNESS OF ESTIMATES AND 
AFFORDABILITY AND PRUDENCE OF CAPITAL 
INVESTMENTS  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance 
which recommended that the Cabinet considered the level of 
balances necessary to support the 2021/22 budget underpinned 
by the agreed policy on Earmarked Reserves, setting a properly 
balanced revenue budget which included the financing of capital 
investments within the present investment proposals. 
Members were informed that, in order to comply with Section 25 
of the Local Government Act 2003; the Authority’s Chief 
Financial Officer (the Director of Finance) was required to report 
on the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the 
revenue budget calculations and the adequacy of the proposed 
reserves. This information enabled a longer-term view of the 
overall financial resilience of the Council to be taken. It also 
reported on the Director of Finance’s consideration of the 

Page 24



 

affordability and prudence of capital investment proposals. The 
level of general balances to support the budget and an 
appropriate level of Earmarked Reserves maintained by the 
Council in accordance with the agreed Council Policy on 
Earmarked Reserves, were an integral part of its continued 
financial resilience supporting the stability of the Council. 
There had been several reports issued on the subject of the 
financial resilience of Local Authorities alongside the publication 
by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
(CIPFA) of a Local Authority Financial Resilience Index and the 
implementation of a Financial Management Code. These issues 
were highlighted in Section 5 of the report but were largely 
prompted by the financial challenges at Northamptonshire 
County Council during 2018 followed by both Nottingham City 
Council (NCC) and the London Borough of Croydon Council 
(LBC) in 2020 and the raising of significant concerns about the 
financial stability of other Local Authorities. On 10 February it 
was announced that four other Councils were to be provided 
with financial support by the Ministry of Housing, Communities 
and Local Government (MHCLG) in the form of a capitalisation 
direction. This was to ensure that they are able to set a 
balanced budget for 2021/22 
Whilst the Council had prepared a detailed revenue budget 
within a five-year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), a 
five year capital programme and continued the closure of 
accounts within an appropriate timeframe allowing early focus 
on the upcoming challenges and a robust financial 
transformation programme, there continued to be a reliance on 
the use of reserves to balance the revenue budget. 
Since 2016/17, reserves of £32.945m had been used to 
underpin the Council’s revenue budget. For 2021/22, there was 
a proposed use of reserves of £10.008m combined with a 
number of one-off measures totalling £5.150m.  
Included within the Medium Term Financial Strategy was the 
required use of reserves of £29.000m over the next two financial 
years. For 2021/22, it was proposed to use corporate reserves 
of £16.703m and specific reserves of £0.127m together with 
£25.456m to offset the Collection Fund deficit arising from the 
awarding of business rates reliefs in 2020/21 (this is a technical 
accounting adjustment) combined with one-off measures 
totalling £2.000m. The remaining corporate Balancing Budget 
reserve of £12.297m would be used to support 2022/23 
The continued use of reserves and one-off measures had the 
impact of deferring the changes that were required to balance 
the revenue budget by on-going sustainable means. The 
implementation of the next phase of the transformation 
programme in 2021/22 was expected to begin to address this 
challenge. The expected benefits of the transformation 
programme would be phased over several financial years and it 
was anticipated that there would continue to be a need to utilise 
reserves until the programme was complete. 
As detailed within the Council’s Audit Completion Report, 
presented alongside the Statement of Accounts, the External 
Auditors concluded that for 2019/20 the Council had made 
proper arrangements to deliver financial sustainability in the 
medium term. However, it was also pointed out that “The 

Page 25



 

Council had significant levels of Earmarked Reserves as at 31 
March 2020, but these were not sufficient to sustain the 
Council’s financial position over the medium term”. It was 
important to note that the public findings into both 
Nottinghamshire City Council and London Borough of Croydon 
(LBC) indicated Councils were at risk of not being able to agree 
balanced budgets as their reserves were insufficient to mitigate 
either in year or 2021/22 estimated shortfalls in resources. LBC 
is still awaiting a response to its request for support from the 
MHCLG.  
Members noted that financial resilience depended in part on the 
Council maintaining an adequate level of reserves. In order to 
scrutinise the level of reserves held by the Council, the policy on 
earmarked reserves was considered by the Audit Committee in 
June 2020 and it was proposed to action the same review again 
in 2021/22 after the closure of the accounts for 2020//21. 
Whilst the Council was utilising a number of reserves to support 
the 2021/22 revenue budget, and anticipated a use of reserves 
in 2022/23, Members were assured that the Council currently 
remained financially resilient and was working hard to address 
the pressures that had arisen over a number of years and 
therefore still continued to be well placed to meet the difficult 
financial challenges that it faced. 
 
RESOLVED - That the following be accepted and commended 
to Council: 

1. The proposed General Fund Balance currently calculated 
for 2021/22 at £15.641m. 

2. The initial estimate of General Fund Balances to support 
the Medium Term Financial Strategy is as follows: 

 £17.349m for 2022/23 and 

 £18.602m for the years 2023/24  
3. The intended report to be presented to the Audit 

Committee on Earmarked Reserves to ensure this area is 
subject to appropriate scrutiny. 

4. The actions necessary to secure a properly balanced 
budget as presented in paragraph 3.6 of the report. 

5. The actions necessary to ensure the prudence of the 
capital investments as noted in Section 4 of the report. 

 
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 18.42 
 

Page 26



 

CABINET 
22/03/2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Fielding (Chair)  
Councillors Brownridge, Chadderton, Chauhan, Jabbar, 
Mushtaq, Roberts and Shah 
 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Moores. 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  

5   MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETINGS HELD ON 22ND 
FEBRUARY 2021 AND 23RD FEBRUARY 2021  

 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 
22nd February 2021 and 23rd February 2021 be approved.  

6   REVENUE MONITOR AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
PROGRAMME 2020/21– MONTH 9 DECEMBER 2020  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Director of 
Finance which provided Members with an update on the 
Council’s 2020/21 forecast revenue budget position at Annex 1 
and the financial position of the capital programme as at 31 
December 2020 (Quarter 3), together with the revised capital 
programme 2020/21 to 2025/26, as outlined in section two of the 
report at Annex 2. Both elements of the report incorporated 
more recent information as appropriate. 
 
Revenue Position 
It was reported that the current forecast outturn position for 
2020/21 was a projected favourable variance of £0.522m after 
allowing for approved and pending transfers to and from 
reserves. 
The position also included additional costs and pressures that 
have been identified by the Authority in this financial year as a 
direct result of the Governments ongoing arrangements to 
mitigate the spread of COVID-19 which commenced on 23 
March 2020. The additional pressures included forecasts of both 
income shortfalls and additional expenditure that have impacted 
on the Authority’s budgets as a result of the pandemic 
The pandemic has affected nearly all aspects of Council service 
delivery; however, most significantly People and Place, 
Children’s Services and Community Health & Adult Social Care 
Portfolios. Action had been taken and would continue up to the 
year end to address variances and take mitigating action as 
detailed in the report. 

Public Document Pack

Page 27



 

The overall corporate position was partly being offset by the 
application of the £25.802m un-ringfenced Government COVID 
related grant funding from the Ministry for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), of which 
£7.641m was received in 2019/20 and held in a specific 
Earmarked Reserve to underpin the 2020/21 budget. There had 
been actual, in-year, receipts of £17.261m of COVID Emergency 
Funding, including £1.281m for the first submission for loss of 
income in relation to sales, fees and charges under the income 
compensation scheme (SFC). Further provision was made for 
the second and third SFC submissions in the sum of £0.924m 
and £0.900m respectively, the former had been submitted but 
not yet paid, the latter was an estimate for the period December 
2020 to March 2021. 
The COVID pressure was further offset by actual and 
anticipated refunds from the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority (GMCA) of £3.133m together with a contribution from 
Oldham CCG to support the cost of adult social care services 
via the Section 75 Pooled Funding Agreement that was in place 
between the Council and the CCG. 
In Annex 1 to the report, both the full Government grant and the 
GMCA refunds were presented as single sums so that it 
highlighted the level of variation across all Council budgets. 
However, this summary report presented the position after 
applying the Government grant and the refunds across Portfolio 
areas. 
An update on the major issues driving the projections were 
detailed within Annex 1, Section 3. 
Section 4 of the report supplemented by Appendices 3 and 4 
advised the Cabinet of the grants that the Council had received. 
There had been a number of developments particularly in 
relation to support for businesses and to provide additional for 
the Council. Further grant funding and external contributions 
were possible, as a result, both the overall financial position and 
the application of Government grant could change before the 
end of the financial year. 
As this financial monitoring report reflected the financial position 
at Quarter 3 updated with more recent information where 
possible, it could be regarded as a reliable indicator of the 
potential year end position. Therefore, based on current 
projections it was anticipated that the Council would retain at 
least the current, favourable position to the end of the financial 
year. 
 
 
Capital Position 
The report outlined the most up to date capital spending position 
for 2020/21 to 2025/26 for approved schemes. The revised 
capital programme budget for 2020/21 was £71.012m at the 
close of Quarter 3, a net decrease of £76.620m from the original 
budget of £147.632m. Actual expenditure to 31 December 2020 
was £56.080m and had increased to £61.483m at the end of 
February 2021 (86.58% of the forecast outturn). The forecasts 
for 2021/22 onwards reflected the Capital Strategy and 
Programme approved at the Budget Council on 4 March 2021. 

Page 28



 

It is probable that the forecast position would continue to change 
before the year end with additional re-profiling into future years. 
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1 – To approve the suggested recommendations  
Option 2 – Not to approve the recommendations  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The forecast revenue outturn for 2020/21 at Quarter 3, 
being a £0.522m favourable variance having regard to 
the action being taken to manage expenditure be 
approved. 

2. The forecast positions for the Dedicated Schools Grant, 
Housing Revenue Account and Collection Fund be 
approved  

3. The use of reserves as detailed in Appendix 1 to Annex 1 
of the report be approved.  

4. The revised capital programme for 2020/21 to 2025/26 at 
Quarter 3 as presented in Annex 2 of the report be 
approved.  

7   ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE PREPARATION OF 'PLACES 
FOR EVERYONE': A PROPOSED JOINT DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN DOCUMENT ON BEHALF OF NINE GREATER 
MANCHESTER DISTRICTS  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive, People and Place which sought approval to the 
arrangements necessary to formulate and prepare the joint 
development plan document (DPD) ‘Places for Everyone’, 
including the establishment of a joint committee to represent 
Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts (Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan).  
It was reported that on 11 December 2020, following the 
withdrawal of Stockport Council from the production of the 
Greater Manchester Plan for Jobs, Homes & the Environment 
(the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework), the Association of 
Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA) Executive Board 
agreed in principle to the a joint Development Plan Document 
(DPD) of the nine remaining Greater Manchester (GM) districts, 
to cover strategic policies including housing and employment 
land requirements and, as appropriate, strategic site allocations 
and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated 
infrastructure. 
A report was taken to AGMA Executive Board on 12th February 
2021 setting out the next steps in relation to the Joint DPD of the 
nine GM districts, to be known as ‘Places for Everyone’, 
including the required decisions by individual Districts to initiate 
this process as set out below in the recommendations and 
discussed further in this report. 
The approval to establish the new Joint Committee was a 
decision for each district according to their own Constitutional 
arrangements and approval to delegate the formulation and 
preparation of the Joint DPD to that committee was a Cabinet 
function. 
 
Options/alternatives considered  

Page 29



 

Option 1: To approve the arrangements necessary to formulate 
and prepare the joint development plan document (DPD) 
“Places for Everyone” as set out in the recommendations to this 
report, including the establishment of a joint committee to 
represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts 
(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, 
Trafford, Wigan).  
Option 2: To not approve the arrangements necessary to 
formulate and prepare the joint development plan document 
(DPD) “Places for Everyone” as set out in the recommendations 
to this report, including the establishment of a joint committee to  
represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts 
(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, 
Trafford, Wigan) 
 
RESOLVED – That: (subject to Full Council approving 
recommendations on the 24th March 2021 in relation to the Joint 
Development Plan and the establishment of a Joint Committee) 

1. The required approval of Full Council to the making of an 
agreement with the other 8 Greater Manchester councils 
(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, 
Trafford, Wigan) to prepare a joint development plan 
document to cover strategic policies including housing 
and employment land requirements and, as appropriate, 
strategic site allocations and Green Belt boundary 
amendments and associated infrastructure across the 
nine districts be noted.  

2. The formulation and preparation of the joint development 
plan document to cover housing and employment land 
requirements including, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and 
associated infrastructure across the nine Greater 
Manchester districts insofar as such matters are 
executive functions be delegated to a Joint Committee of 
the nine Greater Manchester councils. 

3. It be noted that the following are the sole responsibility of 
full Council: 

a. Responsibility for giving of instructions to the 
Cabinet to reconsider the draft plan submitted by 
the Cabinet for the Council’s consideration. 

b. The amendment of the draft joint development 
plan document submitted by the Cabinet for the full 
Council’s consideration. 

c. The approval of the joint development plan 
document for the purposes of submission to the 
Secretary of State for independent examination. 

d. The adoption of the joint development plan 
document.  

8   ACCESSIBLE OLDHAM FRAMEWORK CONTRACT   

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive which sought approval to delegate authority the 
Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader the 
award of the Accessible Oldham Strategic Partnership 
Agreement and reserve supplier agreement, and to delegate 
authority to the Director of Environmental Management in 

Page 30



 

consultation with the Director of Finance and the Director of 
Legal Services to award the individual call off orders for the 
separate projects, due to the urgency to deliver a programme of 
works in accordance with the funding timeline constraints.  
It was reported that the Transportation and Planning Team in 
collaboration with Unity Partnership had successfully bid for 
several capital funded multi-disciplinary highway improvement 
programme of work, namely Growth Deal 3 (GD3) and Mayor’s 
Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF). The funds 
(cumulatively amounting to circa £16.5m) are managed by 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) under the overarching 
administration of Department for Transport (DfT). 
For Oldham Council to deliver the programme it was considered 
necessary to seek a mid-term (4 years) Strategic Partner 
(Partner) to assist the Delivery Team at key stages of the design 
and construction work. The current method of delivery of the 
highway construction work was described below which can take 
upwards of 12 weeks from tender stage to commencement on 
site. Ultimately, in order to deliver the GD3 and MCF programme 
within the set timeframe, a more streamlined method of 
procuring construction work was required. The intention was that 
individual projects would be procured via a Call Off procedure 
under the Strategic Partnership Agreement. This would require 
Director sign off (in liaison with the Directors of Finance and 
Legal Services) rather than an individual Cabinet report for each 
element of work. 
The Accessible Oldham Strategic Partnership Agreement was 
scheduled to be advertised by the Commercial Services Team 
before the end of the year and it was expected to be available 
for use in March/April 2021. An initial sift would be undertaken 
with a shortlist of three Contractors being invited to 
enhance/review their respective bids with one being awarded as 
the outright winner.    
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1 - Delegated authority is given to:  
  

 the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader to 
award the Strategic Partnership Agreement and Reserve 
Supplier Agreement.   

 the Director of Environmental Management in consultation 
with the Director of Finance and the Director of Legal Services , 
in consultation with the Director of Finance and Director of Legal 
Services  to award the individual call off contracts for the works 
packages under the Strategic Partnership Agreement and 
Reserve Supplier Agreement if necessary.  

 the Director of Legal Services to affix the Council’s seal to the 
Strategic Partnership Agreement and Reserve Supplier 
Agreement any incidental and ancillary documentation and also 
to the individual call off contracts under the Strategic Partnership 
Agreement and Reserve Supplier Agreement any incidental and 
ancillary documentation. This would minimise the time taken to 
award the Strategic Partnership Agreement and call off 
contracts under the Agreement and be ready to commence the 
project on site without any unnecessary delay.   

Page 31



 

Option 2 – Wait until the contractor is selected and seek 
approval to award the Strategic Partnership Agreement and 
Reserve Supplier Agreement once the outcome of the 
evaluation is known. There would therefore be a delay in 
implementation of the projects and potential delay in the delivery 
of certain aspects of the  programme which must meet the tight 
timescales under the GD3 funding agreement.  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. Authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Leader to award the Strategic 
Partnership Agreement and Reserve Supplier 
Agreement, in consultation with the Director of Finance 
and Director of Legal Services.  

2. Authority be delegated to the Director of Environmental 
Management in consultation with the Director of Finance, 
and the Director of Legal Services  to award the individual 
call off contracts for the separate works packages under 
the Strategic Partnership Agreement and Reserve 
Supplier Agreement. 

3. Authority be delegated to the Director of Legal Services 
to affix the Council’s seal to the Strategic Partnership 
Agreement and Reserve Supplier Agreement any 
incidental and ancillary  documentation and also to the 
individual call off contracts under the Strategic 
Partnership Agreement and Reserve Supplier Agreement 
any incidental and ancillary documentation.  

9   STREET BIN REPLACEMENT   

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive, People and Place which sought approval to secure 
funding to replace the street bins, two vehicles and the need to 
minimise manual handling and reduce the dangers associated 
with needles and glass contained within street bins. 
The new bins would no longer require the constant replacement 
of plastic bin bags which would normally end up in the waste 
stream assisting with the councils target of becoming carbon 
neutral by 2025. The new bins have a greater capacity than the 
existing bins, with approximately 3 times the waste volume 
which can be currently held before requiring emptying. This new 
type of bin would allow for a reduction in the number to be 
installed, however, keeping the same number as current may 
allow the option to locate bins in more built up residential areas 
giving greater widespread coverage than we currently have on 
non-primary routes. This decision will be made following the 
consultation and ultimately the level of finance secured for this 
proposal.  
In addition it was proposed to replace bins within Oldham Town 
Centre with a new (ecofriendly) solar powered type. These are 
similar to those currently in use within Manchester City Centre. 
The town centre bins are serviced on average 4 times a day; 
sometimes more depending on season. The new bins which 
utilise solar power to power a compactor, allows a normal 240 
litre wheelie bin to hold the capacity of a large commercial 1100 
litre bin. 

Page 32



 

If the above proposals were accepted it would require the 
replacement of two existing 3.5-ton crew cab caged vehicles 
with two new purpose built 7.5-ton small compacting waste 
vehicles. These new vehicles would take up the role of street 
litter bin servicing across the whole Borough, but will also take 
on a secondary role currently serviced by a second crew and 
vehicle, servicing the existing 19 static dandy staff operating 
across the districts and main corridor routes. These larger 
capacity vehicles (3-ton waste carrying capacity) will allow for a 
full day servicing of bins, requiring only one recycling site visit 
either early morning or end of day.  
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1 – New proposal 

Capital implications of purchasing 

Vehicle/ bin 
receptacles 

Quantity Purchase 
costs £ 

Useful 
Economic 
Life 
(years) 

Total cost 
(£) 

     

*7.5-ton 
compactors 

 
2 

 
86000 

 
7 

 
£172,000 

     

Wheelie 
Bins 

1172 35  £41,020 

     

** Wheelie 
Bin Housing 

 
1152 

 
260.00 

 
15 

 
£299,520 

     

Wheelie Bin 
installation 
cost 

 
1152 

 
75 

  
£86,400 

     

Solar-Bin 20 5150 10 £103,000 

     

Solar-Bin 
installation 
cost 

 
20 

 
100 

  
£2000 

     

Software 
and 
servicing 
costs for 
Solar bin 

20 
 
 
20 

Software 
license £800 
 
Maintenance 
cost per bin 
£550/5yrs 

Covers 
10yrs 
 
 
 
10 

£800.00 
 
 
 
£22,000 

     

Grand 
Total, with 
replacement 
vehicles 
funded 
through this 
program. 

    
 
 
 
£726,770.00 

     

Grand Total    £554770.00 

Page 33



 

if Vehicles 
funded 
through 
Fleet 
replacement 
programme. 

 
Option 2 - Replacement of existing street litter bins on a like for 
like basis. 
  

Bin 
receptacles/Consumables 

Quantity Purchase 
costs £ 

Useful 
Economic 
Life 
(years) 

Total cost 
(£) 

     

Replacement bins 1172 215 15 £251,980 

     

Installation costs 1172 65  £76,180 

     

Replacement steel liners 1172 70 x 3 
over 
lifetime 
of bin 

3.5  £246,120 

     

Consumables (plastic 
bags) 

1172 Average 
£13 per 
bin / 
annum  

£15,236 
x 15yr life 

£228,540 

     

Grand Total    £802,820.00 

  
*Excluding the purchase of any vehicles. 
Total storage capacity for litter with existing 1172 x 120ltr bins is 
140,640 litres.    
 Proposal will see capacity of 298,480 litres for 1172 x 240ltr of 
new units. 
 
RESOLVED – That Option 1 replacing the bins with a new 
proposal be approved.  

10   TELEPHONY MODERNISATION   

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Chief 
Technology Officer, Unity Partnership which sought approval to 
modernise the Council’s Telephony system.  
Oldham Council currently maintained a traditional, fixed desk 
telephony system provide by Mitel.  Since 2004 this system had 
grown and adapted and now required significant investment to 
bring it in line with the current standards and the council’s 
needs. The system did not cater for remote working and lacked 
many modern features.  
If left, the current provision will become less reliable and pose 
cyber security risks for Oldham Council. 
Additionally, staff had access to systems with overlapping 
features.  

a. Microsoft Teams 

Page 34



 

b. Mitel Fixed Desk Telephony 
c. A mobile phone (where necessary) 

 
Option alternatives considered  
Option1 - Do nothing. 
This option would see Oldham Council retain the outdated 
telephone system resulting in reliability and cyber security 
issues.  This would be a strategic barrier. 
Annual charges for mobile phones and fixed desk telephony 
remain the same. 
Option 2 - Upgrade the current system. 
This option would upgrade the current system, bringing it up to 
date with modern components, including those needed for Agile 
working.  This would cost a projected £1.9m over 5 years and is 
not a good strategic fit. 
Option 3  - Migrate to Cloud telephony system. 
Allocate £1.6m from the current ICT Capital Programme to fund 
moving to a modern cloud-based Telephony system.  This 
option was a strategic enabler, improved service availability and 
resilience and reduced cyber security risks.   
 
RESOLVED – That the allocation of £1.6m form the current ICT 
Capital Porgramme be agreed to fund moving to a cloud based 
telephony system. 

11   CONSTRUCTION FRAMEWORK DELIVERY AND 
MANAGEMENT PARTNER CONCESSION CONTRACT  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of 
Commisisoing which sought approval to award a Concession 
Contract to Procure Partnerships Limited following a fully 
compliant procurement process that would enable them to 
commence working with the Council to procure a Construction 
Works Framework, sought to delegate authority to the Director 
of Economy in consultation with the Director of Finance and 
Director of Legal Services to award the planned Framework on 
behalf of the Council, and authorise the Director of Legal 
Services to sign the contractual documentation and any 
incidental and ancillary documentation to enable the required 
deadlines to be achieved. 
The request to award the five year Concession Contract to 
Procure Partnerships Limited (the “Concessionaire”) following a 
fully compliant procurement process was to enable the Council 
and the Concessionaire to commence working together to 
procure a Construction Works Framework which will facilitate the 
award of contracts from the Council’s own projected pipeline of 
works requirements. By virtue of procuring the Framework in a 
manner which enabled it to also be used by other Public Sector 
Bodies, the planned Framework was also expected to generate 
a monetary income for the Council and the Concessionaire 
which will contribute to the Council’s challenging savings 
targets. 
Option 1 – To approve the award  
Option 2 – Not to approve the award  
 

Page 35



 

RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information at Item 15 of the agenda 
before making a decision.  

12   REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO COLLABORATIVELY 
COMMISSION AN INTEGRATED SEXUAL HEALTH 
SERVICE WITH ROCHDALE AND BURY COUNCILS  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Public 
Health which sought approval to recommission the Integrated 
Sexual Health Service as part of a cluster commisisoing 
arrangement with Bury and Rochdale Councils, to ensure that 
Oldham had a high quality integrated sexual health service to 
support population health and meet our mandated 
responsibilities for open access sexual health services. 
The current Integrated Sexual Health Service had been provided 
by the current provider since January 2016 as part of a cluster 
commissioning arrangement with Bury and Rochdale Councils. 
In June 2020, Cabinet agreed to extend the contract, under 
Regulation 72 (1)( c) of the PCR2015, for a period of 12 months 
(1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022) due to the COVID-19 outbreak.   
This paper outlined proposals to recommission the service, with 
the same cluster arrangement, and proceed to market for 
procurement of a new service for commencement from 1 April 
2022.  Rochdale Council would act as the lead commissioner for 
the service, and STAR Procurement (Stockport, Trafford and 
Rochdale Procurement) would lead the procurement.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information contained at Item 16 of the 
agenda before making a decision.  

13   0-19 YEARS INTEGRATED PARTNERSHIP MODEL   

Consideration was given to a joint report of the Managing 
Director, Children’s Services, Director of Public Health, Strategic 
Director of Communities and Reform, Strategic Director 
Commissioning which sought to outline proposals for the future 
design and delivery of a high quality universal and targeted 
services for children and families including meeting our 
mandated public health services for 0-19 year old children, 
Children’s Centre core offer and support for early years 
education 
The current Right Start and School Nursing Service had been 
provided by Bridgewater since 1st April 2016. The contract was 
extended in 2020 for one year from 2020 to 2021 and approval 
has recently been given to extend it for another year from 2021 
to 2022 due to the COVID-19 outbreak.   
No further extensions to the service are permissible under the 
Contract Procedure Rules, and this is the key opportunity to 
redesign the delivery to meet the wider aims of the services in 
Oldham.   
This paper outlined proposals for the future design and delivery 
of the service, ahead of a new contract from 1 April 2022.  The 
COVID pandemic has impacted on our capacity for this work 
until now and there was limited time before a new contract 
needs to be agreed.   
 

Page 36



 

RESOLVED – That the commercially sensitive information 
contained at Item 17 of the agenda would be considered before 
a decision was taken.  

14   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraphs 
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on 
balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports. 

15   CONSTRUCTION FRAMEWORK DELIVERY AND 
MANAGEMENT PARTNER CONCESSION CONTRACT  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 11 Construction Framework 
Delivery and Management Partner Concession Contract. 
 
RESOLVED – That recommendations as detailed within the 
report be approved.  

16   REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO COLLABORATIVELY 
COMMISSION AN INTEGRATED SEXUAL HEALTH 
SERVICE WITH ROCHDALE AND BURY COUNCILS  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 12 - Request for approval to 
collaboratively commission an Integrated Sexual Health Service 
with Rochdale and Bury Councils. 
 
RESOLVED – That the recommendations as contained within 
the report be approved.  

17   0-19 YEARS INTEGRATED PARTNERSHIP MODEL   

The Cabinet gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 
information contained at Item 13 of the agenda. 
 
RESOLVED – That the recommendations contained within the 
commercially sensitive report be approved.  
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and finished 6.37pm 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 

BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE ASSOCIATION OF GREATER 
MANCHESTER AUTHORITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD HELD ON 12 FEBRUARY 2021 

VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor   Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bolton      Councillor David Greenhalgh 
Bury      Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester     Councillor Richard Leese 
Oldham     Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford      City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport      Councillor Elise Wilson 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford     Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan      Councillor David Molyneux 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Rochdale     Councillor Janet Emsley 
Tameside     Councillor Leanne Feeley 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA - Chief Executive   Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA - Deputy Chief Executive  Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer   Liz Treacy 
GMCA – GMCA Treasurer   Steve Wilson 
Bolton      Tony Oakman 
Bury       Donna Ball 
Manchester     Fiona Leddon 
Salford     Tom Stannard 
Stockport     Michael Cullen 
Tameside      Steven Pleasant 
Trafford     Sara Todd 
Wigan      Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor   Kevin Lee 
TfGM      Steve Warrener 
GMCA      Simon Nokes 
GMCA      Claire Norman 
GMCA      Julie Connor 
GMCA      Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA      Nicola Ward 
 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8d



2 

 

 
AGMA 01/21  APOLOGIES  

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That apologies be received and noted from Geoff Little (Bury), 
Pam Smith (Stockport Council) and Joanne Roney (Manchester 
City Council). 
 

 

AGMA 02/21  CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
There were no Chairs announcements or urgent business. 
 

 

 
AGMA 03/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest in relation to any item on the agenda.  

 
 

AGMA 04/21 MINUTES OF THE AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING HELD ON 11 
DECEMBER 2020  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

 That the minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2020 be approved as a 
correct record. 

  
 

AGMA 05/21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGMA BUDGET UPDATE 2020/21 AND BUDGET 2021/22  
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced the AGMA 
budget update report. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the report and the current AGMA revenue outturn forecast for 2020/21, 

which showed a breakeven position be noted. 
 

2. That the budget relating to AGMA functions in 2021/22, as set out in section 
2 of the report, be approved. 

 
3. That the charges to the GM District Councils in support of the AGMA 

functions for 2021/22 of £634,000, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, be 
approved, noting that this excluded items billed directly from lead districts. 

 
4. That the forecast position of reserves in 2021/22, as detailed in section 3 of 

the report, be noted. 
 
 

AGMA 06/21 PLACES FOR EVERYONE: PROPOSED JOINT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

Page 40



3 

 

DOCUMENT OF NINE GREATER MANCHESTER DISTRICTS 
 
Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead for Housing, Homelessness and 
Infrastructure took Members through a report which provided further details on the 
next steps in relation to that joint plan of the nine GM districts, to be known as 
“Places for Everyone”. 
 
The next stage would be to establish a joint committee, with the approval of each 
local authority, to oversee the process, scope out the plan, publish a timetable and 
develop the final report.   
 
Members of the Combined Authority urged that the proposed timetable remains on 
track and it was reported that there were no anticipated further delays in relation to 
further housing or population modelling from Government. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1.      That it be noted that Each full Council will be requested to: 

i. Approve the making of an agreement with the other 8 Greater Manchester 
councils (Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Oldham, Rochdale, Salford, 
Tameside, Trafford, Wigan * delete as appropriate) to prepare a joint 
development plan document to cover strategic policies including housing 
and employment land requirements and, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated 
infrastructure across the nine districts. 
 

ii. Agree the district lead Member for the joint committee and a nominated 
deputy to attend and vote as necessary. 

 
iii. Note that the [Council’s Executive / Cabinet] will be asked to delegate the 

formulation and preparation of the draft joint development plan document 
to a joint committee of the nine GM authorities. 

 
iv. Note that a further report will be brought to full Council seeking approval to 

submit the joint development plan document to the Secretary of State for 
independent examination. 

 
 

2.     That it be noted that each Executive / cabinet/ leader/ the City Mayor 
(depending on each Council’s own arrangements and in the event that the 
Councils have approved the above recommendations):  

 
i. Note that full Council has approved the making of an agreement with the 

other 8 Greater Manchester councils [state] to prepare a joint development 
plan document to cover strategic policies including housing and 
employment land requirements and, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated 
infrastructure across the nine districts.  
 

ii. Delegate to the joint committee of the nine Greater Manchester councils 
the formulation and preparation of the joint development plan document to 

Page 41



4 

 

cover housing and employment land requirements including, as 
appropriate, strategic site allocations and Green Belt boundary 
amendments and associated infrastructure across the nine Greater 
Manchester districts insofar as such matters are executive functions. 

 
iii. Note that the following are the sole responsibility of full Council: 
 

 Responsibility for giving of instructions to the executive to reconsider 
the draft plan submitted by the executive for the authority’s 
consideration. 

 The amendment of the draft joint development plan document 
submitted by the executive for the full Council’s consideration 

 The approval of the joint development plan document for the purposes 
of submission to the Secretary of State for independent examination. 

 The adoption of the joint development plan document.  
 
 

 
 

Page 42



1 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE  
GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  

HELD ON FRIDAY 12 FEBRUARY 2021 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor   Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bolton      Councillor David Greenhalgh 
Bury      Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester     Councillor Richard Leese 
Oldham     Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford      City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport      Councillor Elise Wilson 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford     Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan      Councillor David Molyneux 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Rochdale     Councillor Janet Emsley 
Tameside     Councillor Leanne Feeley 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA - Chief Executive   Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA - Deputy Chief Executive  Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer   Liz Treacy 
GMCA – GMCA Treasurer   Steve Wilson 
Bolton      Tony Oakman 
Bury       Donna Ball 
Manchester     Fiona Leddon 
Salford     Tom Stannard 
Stockport     Michael Cullen 
Tameside      Steven Pleasant 
Trafford     Sara Todd 
Wigan      Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor   Kevin Lee 
TfGM      Steve Warrener 
GMCA      Simon Nokes 
GMCA      Claire Norman 
GMCA      Julie Connor 
GMCA      Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA      Nicola Ward 

 
 
GMCA 17/21  APOLOGIES 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

Page 43



2 
 

1. That apologies be received and noted from Geoff Little (Bury), Pam Smith (Stockport 
Council) and Joanne Roney (Manchester City Council). 
 

2. That it be noted that Steve Rumbelow (Rochdale Council) was unable to join the 
meeting due to technical difficulties. 

 
 
GMCA 18/21  CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the new Chief Executive of Salford Council, Tom Stannard be welcomed to his first 
meeting of the Greater Manchester Combined Authority. 
 
 
GMCA 19/21  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
City Mayor Paul Dennett and Councillor Richard Leese declared personal prejudicial 
interests in relation to item 17 (GM Investment Framework: Conditional Project Approval). 
 
 
GMCA 20/21  MINUTES OF THE GMCA MEETING HELD 29 JANUARY 2021 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the GMCA meeting held on 29 January 2021 be approved as a correct 
record. 
 
 
GMCA 21/21  MINUTES OF THE GMCA OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

MEETINGS HELD IN FEBRUARY 2021 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the minutes of the Economy, Business Growth and Skills Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee held on 5 February 2021 be noted. 
 

2. That the minutes of the Housing, Planning and Environment Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee held on 4 February 2021 be noted. 

 
 
GMCA 22/21 BUDGET REPORTS: GMCA REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS  

2021/22 OVERVIEW 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a suite of budget reports that began with an overview of the 
GMCA revenue and capital budgets for 2021/22. Thanks were expressed to officers of the 
GMCA in preparing these reports for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the report be noted. 

Page 44



3 
 

 
 
GMCA 23/21  MAYORAL GENERAL BUDGET AND PRECEPT PROPOSALS  

2021/2022 
 
Councillor Richard Leese, Deputy Mayor took the Chair. 
 
The GM Mayor was invited to take Members of the GMCA through the budget proposals.  
He affirmed that setting a budget within the current environment had been additionally 
challenging as there had to be a balance between managing short term pressures and 
getting to a position of recovery.  It was further recognised that many residents across GM 
were also facing financial hardship and tens of thousands of people were still excluded from 
any financial support from Government.  The Mayor commented that awareness of this 
difficult time for many was at the forefront of his mind when determining these budget 
proposals, as too were the financial pressures that had increased significantly across Local 
Authorities.   
 
It was clearly important to maintain essential services, but the momentum of working 
towards GM priorities, including the rebuild of systems to aid with recovery, also needed to 
be maintained.  Much of this added financial pressure could be attributed to the gradual loss 
of Government support and austerity across public services.  However, further savings had  
to be found to create financial stability for the GMCA and Greater Manchester Fire and 
Rescue Service (GMFRS) to ensure that they were in a position of strength to move forward 
into recovery.  In relation to the GMFRS, these proposals would allow for 50 pumps to be 
maintained across GM as a minimum whilst delivering on other priorities such as the High-
Rise Task Force’s review of cladded buildings. 
 
Other GM wide initiatives including work to address homelessness and rough sleeping 
would also receive the necessary funding through these budget proposals, as further 
support would be needed post pandemic in light of the A Bed Every Night programme 
already being at capacity.  At last count there were 70 people sleeping rough across 
Greater Manchester and it remained a key priority to ensure there was a place offered to 
everyone initially throughout the winter period, and further longer-term housing options also 
being made available. 
 
Members of the Combined Authority expressed their support for these budget proposals, 
especially in relation to the proposed freeze on the mayoral precept element.  However, 
concerns remained regarding the significant financial pressures on Local Authorities as a 
result of not only the financial impact of Covid, that was not reimbursed as promised, but 
continuing austerity for public services.  Frustrations were shared as to how Local 
Authorities had particularly stepped up to support residents through the pandemic but were 
now facing deeper budget cuts and employment uncertainties for staff.  Members expressed 
how there had been £15bn reportedly cut from Local Authority grants since 2010 and that 
the recent applications for Section 114 notices from 12 Local Authorities across the UK was 
just the ‘tip of the iceberg’ in relation to the precarious position of many LA budgets.  As a 
result, many were having to look to increase their council tax, which ultimately was a 
regressive form of taxation direct to the resident and felt to be irresponsible of Government, 
especially in the midst of a global pandemic. 
 
Members added that Government’s description of the latest Local Authority settlement was 
not reflective of the current serious position, and that there also remained too much 
uncertainty regarding future funding to allow Local Authorities to undertake any significant 
creative or innovative planning.  The impact of funding the covid response had been 

Page 45



4 
 

significant across all Greater Manchester and only further deepened the budget challenges 
for the forthcoming year and Members of the GMCA called upon Government to take a 
greater interest in the situation currently faced within Local Authorities in order for any sense 
of ‘levelling up’ to be achieved. 
 
Members further urged the Government, as a priority, to look to address the increasing 
demand and financial pressures upon the Adult Social Care and Children’s budgets as 
these were proving the most challenging areas for Local Authorities under such significant 
budget reductions and were a serious cause for concern. 
 
It was further emphasised that Westminster had little understanding of the role, governance 
and delivery taking place in Local Authorities and that their approach to funding needed a 
fundamental shift in order to ensure residents had access to essential services into the 
future.  The necessity of support had been seen even more significantly through the 
pandemic and would be seen for many years to come, furthermore Members recognised the 
inequality as to which communities had been worst affected and that were not afforded 
equal access to support.  Members reiterated the extraordinary way that Local Authorities 
had stood up throughout the pandemic and that it was now time for the Government to 
deliver on their promises of support. 
 
It was felt that the demand on Local Authorities to re-shape, re-design and re-structure 
services to meet a balanced budget became more difficult every year, with reports of annual 
savings to be found in the range of £30m which had seen the impact on residents spiralling 
further each year. Adding further taxation to residents was not a sustainable way of 
addressing the issues and caused significant concerns for all Members of the GMCA. 
 
With respect to the digital reform programme ‘Unified Architecture’, Members requested 
further clarity as to its purpose, delivery and governance arrangements. 
 
The GM Mayor thanked Members of the Combined Authority for their support and strong 
contributions and added his recognition as to the need for more financial support from 
Government to ensure the efficient delivery of Local Authority functions and a strong 
foundation upon which to level up. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the Mayor’s General budget for 2021/22, together with the calculation of the 

precepts and Council Tax rates, set out in Appendix 4, be approved. 
 
2. That a Mayoral General Precept for 2021/22, frozen at £90.95 (Band D) comprising of 

£66.20 for functions previously covered by the Fire and Rescue Authority precept and 
£24.75 for other Mayoral General functions, be approved.   

 
3. That the overall budget for the Fire and Rescue Service for 2021/22 covered by the 

Mayoral precept and the medium-term financial position for the Fire and Rescue 
Service be approved. 

 
4. That the funding included in the budget for Bus Reform be approved and that it be 

noted that a further update on expenditure and funding would be provided following a 
Mayoral decision on Bus Reform. 

 
5. That the use of reserves, as set out in section 4 of the report, and the assessment 

by the Treasurer that the reserves as at March 2022 were adequate, be approved. 

Page 46



5 
 

 
6. That it be noted that in accordance with legal requirements, the minutes will record the 

names of those Members voting for or against the Mayor’s budget and precept 
proposals. 

 
7.  That it be noted that discussions were continuing on the governance and delivery of 

Unified Architecture Digital Reform. 
 
 
GMCA 24/21  GMCA TRANSPORT REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22 
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced a report which set out 
the transport related GMCA budget for 2021/22. The proposed Transport Levy to be 
approved for 2021/22 was also included within the report together with the consequent 
allocations to the District Councils of Greater Manchester.   
 
Steve Wilson, Treasurer to the GMCA added that conversations were ongoing with 
Government as to funding for light rail post March 2021. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the issues which were affecting the 2021/22 transport budgets, as detailed in the 

report, be noted. 
 

2. That the GMCA budget relating to transport functions funded through the levy, as set 
out in this report for 2021/22, be approved. 
 

3. That a Transport Levy on the District Councils in 2021/22 of £105.773 million, 
apportioned on the basis of mid-year population 2019, be approved. 
 

4. That a Statutory Charge of £86.7 million to District Councils in 2021/22, as set out in 
Part 4 of the Transport Order, apportioned on the basis of mid-year population 2019, be 
approved. 
 

5. That the use of reserves in 2020/21 and 2021/22, as detailed in section 5 of the report, 
be approved. 
 

6. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer, in conjunction with the TfGM 
Finance and Corporate Services Director, to make the necessary adjustments between 
capital funding and revenue reserves to ensure the correct accounting treatment for the 
planned revenue spend on the following schemes: 

 

 GMIP development costs of up to £7 million from the second tranche of the 
Transforming Cities Fund (TCF2);  

 Mayors Challenge Fund programme costs of up to £1.5 million; and  

 Clean Air Plan Delivery costs of up to £2.2 million 
 

7. That it be noted that the funding position on Bus Reform remains as set out in the report 
to GMCA on 27 November 2020. 
 

8. That the proposal to increase fares by Retail Price Index (RPI) where applicable be 
endorsed and the increases proposed to Bus Stop closure charges be further endorsed. 

Page 47



6 
 

 
 
GMCA 25/21  GMCA REVENUE GENERAL BUDGET 2021/22  
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced a report which set out 
the GMCA General budget for 2021/22.  The proposed District Council contributions to be 
approved for 2021/22 of £8.603m were also included within the report together with the 
consequent allocations to the District Councils which detailed a reduction of £437k on the 
contribution for 2020/21.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the budget relating to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority functions 

excluding transport and waste in 2021/22, as set out in section 2 of the report, be 
approved. 

 
2. That the District Contributions of £8.603 million, as set out in section 3 of the report, be 

approved. 
 
3. That the use of reserves, as set out in section 4 of the report, be approved. 
 
 
GMCA 26/21  GREATER MANCHESTER WASTE BUDGET AND LEVY 2021/22 

AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN TO 2024/25 
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced a report which sought 
comment on the budget and levy for 2021/22 and on the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) for the three year period to 2024/25. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the proposed revised budget and levy for 2021/22 be noted. 
 
2. That the Trade Waste of £102.30 in 2021/22 and £114.83 in 2022/23 be approved to 

allow forward planning for the Districts. 
 
3. That the transfer, to earmarked reserves, of any unspent budget in relation to potential 

areas of underspend to support activity in 2021/22, as set out in paragraphs 2.3 and 2.5 
of the report, be approved.   

 
 

GMCA 27/21  GMCA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21-2023/24   
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources presented an update in relation to 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority capital expenditure programme for Transport 
and Economic and Regeneration functions. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the revisions to the 2020/21 capital forecast, as set out in Appendix A and detailed 

within the report be approved. 
 
2. That the capital programme budget for 2021/22 and the forward commitments, as 

Page 48



7 
 

detailed in the report and in Appendix A, be approved. 
 
3. That it be noted that the capital programme was financed from a combination of grants, 

external contributions and long term borrowings. 
 
4. That it be noted that provision has been made in the revenue budget for the associated 

financing costs of borrowing. 
 
5. That the addition to the capital programme of the second Transforming Cities Fund 

(TCF2) as per the prioritised programme be approved and it be noted that the prioritised 
TCF 2 programme budgeted capital expenditure for 2021/22 is £2.6 million, as set out in 
section 6 of the report. 

 
6. That the addition to the capital programme of the ‘OZEV EV (Office for Zero Emission 

Vehicles Electric Vehicle) Taxi project’ (as part of the Greater Manchester Clean Air 
Programme) be approved, with a current forecast expenditure of £0.1 million in 2020/21 
and £2.0 million budgeted expenditure for 2021/22, as set out in section 9 of the report. 

 
7. That the addition to the capital programme of the Access for All programme (part of the 

Department for Transport’s Access for All programme for rail stations) be approved, with 
a current forecast expenditure of £0.1 million in 2020/21 and £1.1 million budgeted 
expenditure for 2021/22, as set out in section 10 of the report. 

 
8. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, GMCA & TfGM, where 

necessary, to vary individual scheme allocations for the Growth Deal programmes, in 
order to optimise Growth Deal grant expenditure by 31 March 2021. 

 
9. That it be noted that the capital programme would continue to be reviewed, with any 

new schemes which have not yet received specific approval being the subject of future 
reports. 
 

 
GMCA 28/21  TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND 

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2021/22 
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced a report which set  out  
the  proposed  Treasury  Management  Strategy  Statement,  Borrowing  Limits  and 
Prudential Indicators for 2021/22 to 2023/24 for the GMCA.   The strategy reflected the 
2020-2024 Capital Programme for GMCA Transport, Economic Development, Fire and 
Rescue and Waste reported separately on this agenda and the previously approved Police 
Capital Programme for 2020-2023. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy, to apply from the 1 April 2021 be approved, in particular: 

 
a) The Treasury and Prudential Indicators listed in Section 5 of the report. 
b) The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Strategy outlined in Appendix  
c) The Treasury Management Policy Statement at Appendix B 
d) The Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation at Appendix C. 
e) The Borrowing Strategy outlined in Section 7 of the report 
f) The Annual Investment Strategy detailed in Section 8 of the report. 

Page 49



8 
 

g) Delegation to the Treasurer to step outside of the investment limits to safeguard the 
GMCA’s position as outlined in section 8.18 of the report.   

 
 
GMCA 29/21  CAPITAL STRATEGY 2021/22 
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced a report which set out 
the Capital Strategy providing the medium to long term context in which capital investment 
decisions were made and the governance for those decisions.  It also offered a summary of 
the GMCA approach to investments and the Treasury Management Strategy and the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2021/22. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the Capital Strategy for 2021/22 be approved. 
 
 
GMCA 30/21  GMCA REVENUE UPDATE 2020/21 
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced a report which informed 
the GMCA of the 2020/21 forecast revenue outturn position as at the end of Quarter 3, 31st 
December 2020.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That it be noted that the Mayoral General revenue outturn position for 2020/21 showed 
an underspend of £5.5m and that the proposed transfer to Mayoral reserve, at set out in 
Section 2 of the report, be approved. 

 
2. That the GMCA General Budget revenue outturn position for 2020/21 which showed a 

breakeven position, be noted. 
 
3. That an increase in 2020/21 budget for the GM Delivery Team of £30k funded from 

revenue grant from Homes England be approved, and that it be spent before 31st March 
2021 as set out in paragraph 3.5 of the report. 

 
4. That it be noted that the Mayoral General – GM Fire & Rescue revenue outturn position 

for 2020/21 showed an underspend position of £1.641 million and that the proposed 
transfer to general reserve, as set out in Section 4 of the report, be approved. 

 
5. That the Waste outturn position of breakeven for 2020/21, after proposals agreed with 

GMCA on 31st July and 25th September, and the agreement, in principle, to refund the 
Districts for the levy adjustment that will be paid to GMCA as a result of increased 
tonnages, be noted. 

 
6. That it be noted that the TfGM revenue position for 2020/21 was in line with budget. 
 
7. That the use of reserves of £2.1 million to fund the costs of voluntary severance 

incurred in 2020/21, the costs of which will be replenished from savings in future years, 
as set out in paragraph 6.2 of the report, be approved. 

 
8. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer, in conjunction with the TfGM 

Finance and Corporate Services Director, to make to make the necessary adjustments 

Page 50



9 
 

between capital funding and revenue reserves to ensure the correct accounting 
treatment for the planned revenue spend on the following schemes as set out in 
paragraphs 6.8 and 6.9 of the report: 

 

 Greater Manchester Infrastructure Programme (GMIP) development costs of up 
to £6.3m from Transforming Cities 2  

 Mayors Challenge Fund delivery costs of up to £1.5 million 
Clean Air Plan Delivery costs of up to £4.3 million 

 
 
GMCA 31/21  GREATER MANCHESTER - A CITY-REGION THAT SUPPORTS THE 

'RIGHT TO FOOD' 
 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which outlined the ‘Right to Food’ campaign, a lobbying 
effort calling on Government to make access to food a legal right in the UK as part of the 
National Food Strategy. This report sought agreement of Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority to show Greater Manchester wide support to the Right to Food pledge, 
recognising the far-reaching opportunities and benefits this would have for all residents.  It 
was considered critical territory as recovery from the pandemic began, to ensure that all 
residents still had access to basic necessities and that this ongoing support for families was 
supported by UK law. 
 
Councillor Elise Wilson, Portfolio Lead for the Economy reported that many inequalities had 
been exasperated by the covid pandemic, and that basic food provision had been 
underfunded for many years resulting in increasing examples of food poverty across the UK.  
With thanks to recent public campaigns, Government was beginning to recognise this issue 
and ensure provision was available.  This was often being delivered through proactive 
voluntary and community groups but remained the responsibility of all public bodies to sign 
up to a collaborative approach.  However, this could also be further strengthened by 
ensuring that access to food was a legal right in the UK as a holistic approach would further 
be able to address some of the wider determinants to the inequalities that cause food 
poverty and create a fairer and more equal society. 
 
Members felt that Greater Manchester had excelled in providing access to food throughout 
the pandemic with thanks to an amazing network of local delivery organisations, however it 
was imperative that there was strong Government support to drive this agenda forward and 
ensure that every person was afforded access to basic provision. 
 
The GM Mayor added that the support of the foodbanks movement had been monumental 
in creating traction for this agenda, and further support from the National Food Commission 
would also be welcomed in highlighting the issue.  Locally in Greater Manchester, the GM 
Poverty Action work had been successful in broadening this work to signpost people to 
support services and gain a greater understanding as to the determinants to their poor 
access to food provision. 
 
Members further recognised this and had seen examples within their own local foodbanks of 
people who were experiencing a range of connecting issues such as debt and fuel poverty, 
so the interaction at foodbanks was proving crucial in the first step to addressing these 
additional needs.  There were strong examples of where projects had begun as foodbanks 
and had broadened to support wider issues, such as the Bury Community Support Network.  
It was important that Local Authorities were given the opportunity to see what initiatives 

Page 51



10 
 

were already being delivered across GM, to learn from their ideas and potentially expand 
their current local offer. 
 
It was disappointing to Members of the GMCA that as one of the richest countries in the 
world, a discussion on food poverty was necessary and urged that focus on a broader 
prevention agenda was also prioritised at a Central Government level to address the failing 
system that causes such symptoms.  Specific drivers of inequality included, unaffordable 
housing, rising rents, high property prices, zero-hour contracts, part time working, no living 
wage, welfare reform, austerity on LA finances and no support for increasing personal debt. 
 
Members further expressed concern that more people were falling into food poverty, even 
when they were working.  However, this initiative would offer a further opportunity to begin 
to address the wider issues that sit closely alongside the inequalities agenda to help build a 
fairer society. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the call for the ‘Right to Food’ to be incorporated into the ‘National Food Strategy’ 
and in time enshrined in legislation, recognising that such a national reassurance could 
address wider issues in the welfare system and enable us to focus local efforts on 
upstream poverty prevention, be endorsed.   

 
2. That a unified message be co-signed from Greater Manchester in the form of a letter to 

the Independent Lead of the National Food Strategy commission to highlight this 
request. 

 
3. That the intention to develop the Greater Manchester ‘No Child Should Go Hungry’ 

campaign into a broader GM-wide ambition around tackling the root causes of poverty 
with an appropriate balance of targeted work and early intervention & prevention be 
noted. 

 
4. That the work of the Bury Community Support Network be noted and considered as a 

potential blueprint for similar networks across Greater Manchester. 
 
5. That the role of the GM Good Employment Charter be recognised as key to sustainable 

and fair employment and that this should be sought through all public procurement 
exercises to enable it to have the greatest possible impact. 

 
6. That is be noted that the GMCA is the first Combined Authority in England to endorse 

the right to food for all. 
 
 

GMCA 32/21  ECONOMIC RECOVERY DASHBOARD  
 
 
Councillor Elise Wilson, Portfolio Lead for the Economy took Members through the latest 
Economic Recovery Dashboard which had shown an increase in people claiming 
unemployment benefits since December that had now plateaued.  However, data still 
indicated that the North West had a higher proportion of inactive residents than the UK 
average. 
 
Passenger journeys were still lower than pre-covid levels, however, were significantly higher 
than during the first lockdown. 

Page 52



11 
 

Trading was now taking place under the new EU regulations which had created some 
issues specifically in relation to import and export activity that would take some time to 
address.  It was anticipated that the size of impact may be masked by the current covid 
situation and once the UK begins to function inline with pre-covid levels, the impact 
(especially in relation to the service sector) would become more apparent.  
 
Members reported some initial conversations with large GM companies regarding their 
potential relocation to Europe as a result of the restriction of the new regulations which 
potentially indicated a concerning trend and urged for the GMCA to monitor this position. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the Economic Recovery Dashboard be noted. 
 

 

GMCA 33/21  CLIMATE EMERGENCY - 6 MONTH UPDATE 
 
Councillor Andrew Western, Portfolio Lead for the Green City Region took Members through 
an update on the climate emergency declared by the GMCA at their meeting in July 2019.  
With regards to the 5 Year Environment Plan, all governance actions had been completed 
and all operational actions had commenced.  As a result of the impact of Covid, some 
progress had slowed, however there was a planned approach set out as to how each action 
would be taken forward.  Significant traction had been made in relation to the improved 
energy efficiency of domestic and public buildings with over £10m of Green Homes Grants 
having been awarded and over £80m of funds secured to retrofit public buildings in GM.  
Further progress was expected throughout 2021, with an additional £15m of grants 
anticipated to be at the approval stage before the next meeting of the CA. 
 
Members suggested that the Climate Change Conference scheduled to take place in 
Glasgow this November would be an ideal venue to showcase the work of GM on this 
agenda to date. 
 
In relation to social value, Members questioned as to whether the grants had been awarded 
to schemes which offered local employment.  It was confirmed that this element would be 
built into the contracting process as it was recognised that such schemes were unique 
opportunities to offer re-training and create new jobs. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the paper and the progress against the GMCA Climate Emergency declaration be 

noted. 
 
2. That the GM Green City Region briefing on delivery against the GM 5 Year Environment 

Plan for September-December 2021 be noted and disseminated to elected members.   
 
3. That further information on the social value of local jobs created through this work be 

shared with Councillor Greenhalgh. 
 

 
GMCA 34/21  BIOWASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 

Page 53



12 
 

Cllr Andrew Western, Portfolio Lead for the Green City Region took Members through a 
report which set out the steps required to develop a strategy to manage kerbside collected 
biowaste from across the conurbation in light of potential service changes arising from the 
implementation of the English Resources and Waste Strategy.  Part A of the report detailed 
the implications for Greater Manchester if the proposed weekly separate food waste 
collection were to be introduced and the accompanying Part B report set out the gap in 
terms of interim provision. 
 
Members were informed that the current contractual position (with Suez) was due to expire 
in May 2022, which equated to 80,000 tonnes of waste, 136,300 of which was classified as 
biowaste.  Officers were also addressing the non-Suez biowaste contracts and developing a 
strategy to further understand the potential implications of the Governments national 
strategy on GM. 
 
There was concern from Members of the GMCA that residents would not be in favour of 
another recycling collection and the potential additional costs to Local Authorities to set up 
and maintain such a collection.  The rationale for these proposed changes was also unclear, 
as current systems were working well and biowaste was already collected successfully.  
Government had promised that any additional cost would be met, however there was some 
scepticism regarding this statement as not all costs had yet been fully understood.  Officers 
would be robustly setting out the additional costs as part of the consultation feedback. 
 
Members urged that Government should be focussing on some of the broader 
conversations regarding how additional products could be made recyclable and how to 
support large manufacturers in their recycling efforts. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the commencement of the procurement process for biowaste treatment contracts 

for the period June 2022 to May 2026 be approved. 
 
2. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, GMCA & TfGM, in 

consultation with the GMCA Treasurer and the Portfolio Lead for Green Cities to 
approve the award of contracts under the biowaste framework. 

 
3. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Monitoring Officer to complete all necessary 

legal agreements for the Biowaste treatment contracts. 
 
 
GMCA 35/21  THE MAYOR'S CYCLING AND WALKING CHALLENGE FUND 
 
The GM Mayor took Members through the latest update on the Mayor’s Cycling and 
Walking Challenge Fund, which sought approval for two development cost approvals and 
one full cost approval. 
 
The City Mayor of Salford, Paul Dennett thanked the GMCA for the specific support to the 
schemes in Salford which would improve connectivity and encourage more active travel 
across the borough. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the agreed MCF delivery priorities across GM and the prioritised first phase for the 

programme, as set out in Appendix 1 of the report be noted.  

Page 54



13 
 

 
2. That the release of up to £0.7 million of development cost funding for the 2 MCF 

schemes set out in section 2 of the report be approved. 
 
3. That the release of up to £0.51 million MCF funding for Salford’s Liverpool Street 

scheme (Phase 1), in order to secure full approval and enable the signing of a delivery 
agreement, as set out in section 3 of the report be approved. 

 
 
GMCA 36/21 GMCA RESPONSE TO THE CONSULTATION ON TIMETABLE 

OPTIONS TO IMPROVE RAIL PERFORMANCE IN THE NORTH OF 
ENGLAND 

 
The GM Mayor introduced a report which set out the proposed approach in response to the 
consultation into the Timetable Options to Improve Rail Performance in the North of 
England and recommend next steps.  Members of the GMCA were aware that the 
congestion experienced in this area of the network was as a result of the lack of 
infrastructure development over the past few years, which now prevented the system from 
being able to cope with the level of demand. 
 
These proposals were for a temporary solution to enable greater reliability of services, 
however the GMCA recognised that removing services was not a long term or sustainable 
solution. 
 
Network Rail had provided three potential options, however, each one had negative impacts 
on one or more GM communities, and therefore TfGM had been asked to look at a revised 
option that would have no disproportionate impact to any GM borough. 
 
Members of the GMCA supported this working principle and urged that services remain 
regular, well connected and provided employment/education links as their first priority.  
However, there were fundamental system changes that also needed to be addressed to 
ensure that the rail network could support Government to reach its climate change 
ambitions and was fit for purpose including electrification of lines, access for all, the re-
opening of lost stations and confirmed long-term funding arrangements. 
 
Many GM Local Authorities reported that they would be responding on their own behalf to 
the consultation, but that their response would also be in-line with a collaborative GM 
response. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That the content of this report be noted. 
 

2. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the 
Mayor of Greater Manchester, to approve and submit a response to the consultation on 
behalf of GMCA. 

 
3. That consideration would be given to Members’ concerns in relation to the inclusion of a 

half hourly service to Greenfield, a more frequent service along the Atherton line and 
the retention of a link between Eccles and the Airport as part of GM’s response to the 
consultation. 

 

Page 55



14 
 

4. That it be noted that TfGM were working up an alternative proposal and that the draft 
consultation response would be shared with GM Leaders before its final submission. 

 
 
GMCA 37/21 GM BROWNFIELD HOUSING FUND - ADDITIONAL AWARD OF 

FUNDING FROM MHCLG 
 
Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead Leader for Housing, Homelessness and 
Infrastructure introduced a report which sought the approval for the allocation of Brownfield 
Housing Fund monies to Local Authority projects.  Over £81m had been awarded to Greater 
Manchester to support such schemes over the next five years, of which £37.2m had already 
been allocated to projects in tranche one.  Further to this, GM had been successful in an 
additional grant of £15.8m of the remaining national funding for tranche one.  All of these 
schemes would support Government’s ambition for 1043 additional homes to be built in 
Greater Manchester and demonstrates the GMCAs commitment to brownfield land 
development. 
 
Members of the GMCA welcomed this scheme as a demonstration to the ‘brownfield land 
first’ approach and recognised that it was a key determining factor to ensuring the 
availability of housing could be improved.  For example, Bury reported an additional 120 
units as a result of tranche 1 funding, providing much needed affordable and low carbon 
homes. 
 
Salford City Mayor Paul Dennett thanked Members for their support and reported that the 
awaited outcomes of the Green Book revision could potentially enable further levelling up, 
however there were significant challenges to get schemes off the ground that needed 
further Government support to address. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That the allocation of £18.2m of Brownfield Housing Fund monies to fund Local 
Authority priority projects that were submitted to MHCLG as part of the Brownfield 
Hosing Fund bidding process be approved in principle, subject to satisfactory due 
diligence being undertaken to confirm the deliverability of the projects. 

 
2. That the allocation of £16.01m of funding to those projects set out in Annex 1 of the 

report where satisfactory due diligence has already been undertaken be approved. 
 
3. That authority be delegated to the GMCA Treasurer acting in conjunction with the 

GMCA Monitoring Officer to agree the final terms of all the necessary agreements. 
 
 
GMCA 38/21 GM INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK, CONDITIONAL PROJECT 

APPROVAL 
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced a report which 
requested   the GMCA to note the Chief Executive Decision Notice for the approval of loans 
to Manchester Science Partnerships Limited and to IRAF UK Vantage 3 Limited.  In view of 
the prolonged timeframe between the Combined Authority’s meetings in February and 
March 2021, the report further sought approval to delegate authority to the Combined 
Authority Chief Executive in consultation with the Combined Authority Treasurer and the 
Portfolio Lead for Investment and Resources, to approve projects for funding and agree 

Page 56



15 
 

urgent variations to the terms of funding previously approved by the Combined Authority, for 
the period 13 February 2021 to 25 March 2021. 
 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That the Chief Executive Officer, GMCA & TfGM Decision Notice for the approval of 
loans to Manchester Science Partnerships Limited (“MSP”) and to IRAF UK Vantage 3 
Limited (“Vantage”) be noted. 
 

2. That authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, GMCA & TfGM, and the 
GMCA Treasurer, in consultation with the Portfolio Lead for Investment and Resources, 
to approve projects for funding and agree urgent variations to the terms of funding in 
the period 13 February 2021 to 25 March 2021. Any recommendations that are 
approved under the delegation will be reported to the next available meeting of the 
GMCA. 

 
 
GMCA 39/21  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That, under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public 
should be excluded from the meeting for the following items on business on the grounds 
that this involved the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out in the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 
 
 
GMCA 40/21  BIOWASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
 
CLERK’S NOTE: This item was considered in support of the report considered in Part A of 
the agenda (Minute GMCA 34/21 above refers). 

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 41/21  DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That it be noted that the GMCA will next meet on Friday 26 March, as agreed at the Annual 
Meeting. 
 

1.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE  
GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY  

HELD ON TUESDAY 23 MARCH 2021 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor   Andy Burnham 
Bolton      Councillor David Greenhalgh 
Bury      Councillor Eamonn O’Brien 
Manchester     Councillor Richard Leese (In the Chair) 
Oldham     Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford      City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport      Councillor Tom McGee 
Tameside     Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford     Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan      Councillor David Molyneux 

 
 

IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Manchester     Councillor Bev Craig 
Rochdale     Councillor Janet Emsley 
Stockport     Councillor Elise Wilson 
 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA & TfGM - Chief Executive Officer Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA - Deputy Chief Executive  Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer   Liz Treacy 
GMCA – GMCA Treasurer   Steve Wilson 
Bolton      Tony Oakman 
Bury       Donna Ball 
Manchester     Joanne Roney 
Oldham      Lewis Greenwood 
Rochdale     Steve Rumbelow     
Salford     Tom Stannard 
Stockport     Pam Smith 
Tameside      Steven Pleasant 
Trafford     Sara Todd 
Wigan      Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor   Kevin Lee 
TfGM      Steve Warrener 
TFGM      Michael Renshaw 
TFGM      Kate Brown 
TFGM      Simon Warburton 
TFGM      Ian Palmer 
GMCA      Simon Nokes 
GMCA      Claire Norman 
GMCA      Julie Connor 

Page 59



2 
 

GMCA      Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA      Nicola Ward 

 
 
GMCA 42/21  APOLOGIES 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That apologies be received and noted from Baroness Bev Hughes, Deputy Mayor. 
 
 
GMCA 43/21  CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

1. That it be agreed that the report on Bus Reform: Bus Back Better - Item 5A on the 
agenda, be considered as an item of urgent business, given the report details the 
recent publication of the National Bus Strategy by Government. 
 

2. That the meeting of the GMCA be adjourned at 11:50am and reconvened at 12.10pm 
in recognition of Covid-19 National Day of Reflection to allow members of the GMCA 
to observe the national minutes silence in memory of all those who have lost their 
lives due to Covid over the past year.  

 
 
GMCA 44/21  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
There were no interests declared at the meeting. 
 
 
GMCA 45/21  MINUTES OF THE GMCA HOUSING, PLANNING AND   

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD 19 
MARCH 2021 

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the minutes of the Housing, Planning & Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
held on 19 March 2021 be noted. 
 
 
GMCA 46/21  BUS REFORM: BUS BACK BETTER  
 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the contents of the National Bus Strategy and the matters considered in this report be 
noted. 
 
 
GMCA 47/21 BUS REFORM: CONSULTATION AND THE GMCA RESPONSE 
 

Page 60



3 
 

Eamonn Boylan, Chief Executive Officer GMCA & TfGM introduced a suite of reports which 
brought together the outcome of work that first commenced in June 2017 with the 
preparation of an Assessment of a proposed franchising scheme following process set out 
in the Bus Services Act.  The reports further set out the outcome of two periods of 
consultation totalling 20 weeks, including views on the conclusions of the Assessment and 
the proposed franchising scheme in light of Covid-19 further to the additional analysis 
completed between June and November last year. 

 
The consultation saw over 12500 responses from the public and stakeholders including 
those currently running bus services in Greater Manchester. The detailed analysis includes 
a report prepared by Ipsos Mori who analysed and reported on key themes from the 
consultation as well as a detailed consideration of the issues raised and the TfGM response 
to these issues.   
 
On Monday 15th March, the Government published the National Bus Strategy ‘Bus Back 
Better’. The Strategy was very much aligned to GMCA’s own vision for bus and objectives 
to reform the market, with Greater Manchester’s proposals specifically referenced in the 
document. 
 
All these reports have also been considered by the GMCA Housing, Planning and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their meeting on the 19 March, and their 
minutes had been included with this agenda for Members to note. 
 
The assessment had been based on a statutory required structure consisting of five cases.  
In relation to the strategic case the assessment considered how the different options for 
reform were likely to perform in terms of meeting GMCA’s objectives. Both the original 
Assessment and the subsequent Covid -19 Impact report concluded that franchising is the 
best option to pursue to deliver Greater Manchester’s Vision for Bus as part of an integrated 
transport network.  Furthermore, this was very much endorsed by respondents to the 
consultation, both individuals and statutory consultees. The greatest challenge to the 
Strategic Case came from incumbent operators, advocating a Partnership model. 
 
In relation to the economic case the Assessment concluded that the case was for 
investment and reform was strong, with both partnership and franchising options 
representing high value for money. The Assessment further concluded that the Proposed 
Franchising Scheme was preferable because it created more economic value (as defined by 
a Net Present Value, “NPV”) and was likely to result in more durable and lasting economic 
impacts. It also concluded that the Proposed Franchising Scheme would create a better 
platform to deliver further potential economic value.   
 
The Covid-19 Impact Report concluded that the additional analysis that it provided 
confirmed that, on balance, the conclusion that the Proposed Franchising Scheme 
represents value for money was likely to be robust to the uncertainty created by Covid-19 in 
all reasonably likely scenarios.  It also concluded that the Proposed Franchising Scheme 
remained preferable to the Operator Proposed Partnership option as, on balance, the 
overall net benefits were likely to remain higher and more deliverable, particularly given the 
considerable uncertainty surrounding what, if any, partnership options were on offer.   
 
Taking into account consultation responses, TfGM remained of the view that, on balance, 
the value for money of the franchising scheme is likely to be robust to the uncertainty 
created by Covid-19 in all reasonably likely scenarios and that it remained preferable to both 
the partnership options as, on balance, the net benefits were likely to remain higher and be 

Page 61



4 
 

more deliverable, particularly given the uncertainty surrounding what, if any, partnership 
options were on offer. 
 
The financial case in the Assessment set out that the GMCA would be able to afford the 

transition to, and to operate, any of the options, including the Proposed Franchising 

Scheme. The financial case considered the forecast income, costs and risks of each option 

and the associated funding requirements.  The Covid-19 Report concluded that the 

Proposed Franchising Scheme remained affordable, provided that mitigation options of the 

form and scale included in the report were accepted.  It confirmed that the sources of 

funding which were included in GMCA’s preferred funding strategy for the transition period, 

which total £134.5m, remained available for the Mayor, GMCA and local authorities to 

prioritise to bus reform over a transition period to 2025/26 if they wished to do so.  These 

resources were intended to cover the transition to a fully franchised bus network across the 

whole of Greater Manchester and include acquisition of assets such as depots and ticketing 

systems, staffing and IT, as well as providing an allowance to manage risks.  Proceeding 

with franchising would mean more financial responsibility and associated risks belonging to 

the GMCA.   

During the transition period, and beyond, GMCA would assume financial risk on the farebox 

(c£180m p.a. in total within GM pre-Covid-19).  In the Impact Report’s two ‘central’ 

scenarios, the reduction in farebox that was assumed to accrue to GM in the Assessment 

would be circa £82 to £96m in the period to 2025/26, at which point the whole market would 

be fully franchised. Under the most optimistic scenario, farebox is similar to the 

Assessment. Under the most pessimistic scenario (that assumes no further government 

Covid-19 related funding) and that assumes patronage levels below those currently being 

experienced, the farebox that would accrue to GMCA would reduce by c£292m in the period 

to 2025/26.  Having considered the responses to the first and second consultations, TfGM 

considered that it remained the case that in light of Covid-19 there was now significantly 

greater uncertainty over future bus patronage and related factors.  If bus revenues, and net 

revenues, were lower than forecasted in the Assessment, GMCA would need to consider 

further mitigations and/or funding sources.  These mitigation options would build upon the 

Assessment, but the scale of any or all of the options may need to change. These 

mitigations could include: 

 Paying concessionary reimbursement based on actual usage as opposed to 

pre‑Covid-19 levels. 

 Reducing transition costs. 

 Using other sources of funding available to GMCA. 

 Making reductions to the network. 

 
Whilst this uncertainty was not specific to the Proposed Franchising Scheme, and GMCA 

would still face risks under a Do Minimum or Partnership option, it would assume financial 

risks more directly under the Proposed Franchising Scheme.  For this reason, it was 

important that GMCA notes this uncertainty and accepts the potential requirement to 

implement mitigation options of the form and scale identified in the Covid-19 Impact Report. 

If this were the case, TfGM considered that this would provide an acceptable balance of 

risks to achieve GMCA’s objectives for bus services and that the GMCA could afford to 

make and operate the Proposed Franchising Scheme.   

 

Page 62



5 
 

As part of the Assessment, the Act required GMCA to compare the making of the proposed 

franchising scheme to one or more courses of action. Various options were considered in 

the Assessment and in particular, two alternative options were considered in detail. These 

options were a ‘do minimum’ option, which effectively meant leaving the market as is, and 

partnership.  The Assessment considered two different partnership options which illustrated 

the range of potential outcomes that could be achieved, including an Ambitious Partnership 

which went further than GM operators were prepared to go themselves and which would 

have required an Enhanced Partnership Scheme to be implemented. Having considered 

these options in the Assessment, it was concluded that the Proposed Franchising Scheme 

would be GMCA’s preferred option in terms of meeting the objectives for improving bus 

services in GM.  During the first consultation, two substantive partnership proposals were 

put forward by OneBus, building on their previous proposals, and Stagecoach, being a 

partnership for the south of Greater Manchester only.  Both were reviewed in detail and it 

remained the conclusion that the Proposal Franchising Scheme was GMCA’s preferred 

option.  During the second consultation, some of the operators stated their preference for a 

partnership however OneBus and Stagecoach both confirmed that its previous proposals 

were no longer valid given the uncertainty caused by Covid-19.  A number of operators also 

proposed that a ‘recovery partnership’, based on high-level principles set out by the 

Confederation of Passenger Transport, should be considered by GMCA. Operators clarified 

that this was not an alternative to the longer-term partnership but would be focused on the 

short to medium term as the operators seek to stabilise the network and grow patronage. 

The National Bus Strategy sets out the Government’s strategy for the future of bus services 

including continued financial support as the market recovers and the requirement for Local 

Transport Authorities to explore either an enhanced partnership or franchising by June 2021 

and references Greater Manchester specifically.  There was strong alignment between the 

National Bus Strategy and Greater Manchester’s Vision for Bus and the strategic case in the 

Assessment which was highlighted in the report on the National Bus Strategy.  Due to the 

commitment to ongoing funding, the National Bus Strategy had reduced the likelihood of the 

downside scenarios materialising when considering the value for money and affordability of 

the proposed franchising scheme.  The Strategy may be said to increase the incentives for 

operators to agree to an Enhanced Partnership that they had previously rejected, but the 

overall conclusion of the Assessment was that, despite the extensive engagement the level 

of ambition from operators for a partnership was low.  Members of the GMCA had also 

received further correspondence overnight from Diamond Bus who are part of Rotala which 

highlighted the fact that these strategies were very much aligned.  Indeed, the Strategy 

required all Local Transport Authorities to determine whether a franchising scheme or an 

Enhanced Partnership Scheme was the best option for them. Greater Manchester’s 

Proposed Franchising Scheme was specifically referenced as we are significantly further 

advanced in this area, having fully considered the other options available against our 

strategic objectives.  The report before Members expressly stated that this was the case 

and highlights that Enhanced Partnerships were considered in the assessment in detail but 

that this does not provide the platform for investment and the fundamental structural market 

change required to deliver GMCA’s ambitions.  The advice from officers was that any further 

delay would postpone the structural reform of the bus market in accordance with these 

strategic objectives, which the analysis concluded best delivers its vision for bus. It would 

also reduce GMCA’s ability to plan for the long-term future of the bus market and the fullest 

recovery from Covid-19. 

Page 63



6 
 

In relation to questions from Operators regarding the audit activity, it was confirmed that 

Grant Thornton had provided its opinion on the Assessment in accordance with the Bus 

Services Act.   The independent auditor had also been asked to provide a review of the 

Report to provide the GMCA with independent assurance on the approach taken by TfGM in 

preparing the Covid-19 Impact Report.  The audit opinion on the Assessment and the audit 

review of the Covid-19 Impact Report were published as part of the consultation processes 

and have been appended to the various reports to GMCA.  During the first and second 

consultation period, some consultees made comments relating to the auditor’s reports on 

both the Assessment and the Covid-19 Impact Report. Details of the issues raised, and 

responses are also set out in the appendices.  Having considered the points raised through 

the consultations, TfGM did not agree that either Grant Thornton failed to consider anything 

deemed material or that its opinion was not one that they were reasonably entitled to reach 

when carrying out their audit of the Assessment.  Further, with regard to the criticisms of 

Grant Thornton’s approach to its review of the Covid-19 Impact Report made during the 

second consultation period, it was not accepted that a further audit report was required, but 

rather that reliance can be placed on the auditor’s conclusion in respect of it. 

The main legal matters for consideration were set out in section 18 of this report and section 

16 of the TfGM report. In particular, members were advised to have regard to the public 

sector equality duty, the requirement to carry out a fair consultation and the operator’s rights 

under the Human Rights Act.  In relation to the Public Sector Equalities Duty, an equality 

impact assessment is attached to the report and following a review of the responses to the 

consultations, it was not anticipated that the Proposed Franchising Scheme would have any 

significant adverse impacts on those with protected characteristics and there would in fact 

be positive impacts of varying degrees on certain groups.  Regarding the human rights 

implications of the recommendation and proposed decision the GMCA and the Mayor would 

need to be satisfied that in the absence of provision for compensation, the public interest in 

the benefits of franchising justify the interference with the operator’s possessions and that it 

does not impose an individual and disproportionate burden on any of them. 

Members were also made aware that bus operators had raised issues in their responses to 

the consultation about the lawfulness and rationality of making a decision to implement the 

Proposed Franchising Scheme at this time and on the basis of the information available. 

Two incumbent operators had made claims for a Judicial Review of these processes and 

they were being considered by the courts. Those claims were being defended and Officers 

were satisfied that the requirements of the legislation had been met, there was no 

impediment to the GMCA should it approve the recommendations today. 

The November 2020 report set out the reasons for proceeding with a decision at this stage 

or alternatively deferring the decision until there was more certainty with the pandemic. The 

GMCA had already agreed to proceed with the consultation, and respondents were asked to 

consider if this was the right time to make a decision about whether or not to proceed with 

the Proposed Franchising Scheme.  The second consultation found that there was 

substantial support for taking a decision at the present time – from local authorities, 

stakeholder and academic institutions and from the public.  The main criticisms of taking a 

decision now were that the Assessment was deemed out of date, there was still too much 

uncertainty with the pandemic, future patronage was unknown, and that the continuing 

economic uncertainty meant that operators could not put forward credible partnership 

options.  There were clear reasons to take the decision now and these were set out in 

paragraph 15.4 of the report – particularly in giving GMCA levers to help support the 

Page 64



7 
 

recovery of the bus market, the wider economy and society of Greater Manchester – 

therefore, the judgement remains that it was appropriate to make a decision on the 

Proposed Franchising Scheme now. 

In conclusion, it was considered that, when compared to the alternatives, the Proposed 

Franchising Scheme is preferable to other options including Enhanced Partnership as it 

would contribute to the implementation of GMCA’s local transport plan policies made under 

the Act and other policies affecting local services that GMCA has adopted and published.  

The proposed scheme represented value for money, the GMCA can afford to make and 

operate the scheme and that the GMCA was likely to be able to secure that local services 

are operated under local service contracts.  Although it may have some detrimental effect 

on services entering Greater Manchester, which GMCA would seek to mitigate as far as 

possible and is likely to interfere with enjoyment of their ‘possessions’ by bus operators, it 

was nonetheless considered that, on balance, it was in the public interest to make the 

Proposed Franchising Scheme and that it should be progressed subject to a number of 

minor proposed amendments set out in the report to modify the scheme. 

 
The Chair reiterated that the GMCA were not considering the transport strategy today, as 
the vision for bus was clearly set out in the GM Transport Strategy 2040, but whether these 
proposals would allow the strategy’s objectives to be delivered.  The reports set out in detail 
the criteria to be considered by Members in relation to economic benefits, commerciality, 
value for money, equalities & human rights, environmental impact and the impact of the two 
consultations undertaken.  Furthermore, the issue of timing had been raised and whether 
the decision should be taken now, following the latest 12-month evolution of a process 
which began in 2017.  He added that the final substantial issue to be considered would be 
the adequacy of the process and documented audit assurances. 
 
Councillor Eamonn O’Brien expressed how important bus travel was to ensure residents 
can access all areas of the Bury borough and wider conurbation, especially for work and 
education.  Ensuring an integrated public transport network was clearly an ambition that 
many consulted respondents also echoed, as the current system was described as 
fragmented and not fit for purpose.  The detail of the reports and length of time of the work 
to date gave assurances that this had been a comprehensive process that not only reflects 
the challenges of the pandemic but seeks to find long-term opportunities to create a more 
sustainable network. 
 
Councillor Sean Fielding commented that the consultation findings reflected residents’ 
experiences of a fragmented bus network since de-regulation that was currently made up of 
a patchwork of isolated routes that often make it difficult for people to travel across the 
Oldham borough, especially those in more rural areas.  It was time for greater local 
accountability as to how the bus network was designed, overseen and integrated with other 
modes, akin to the seamless multi-modular first-class system in London that residents of 
Greater Manchester also deserved.  The reports highlighted that these proposals would be 
the only way to ensure the vision for the sub-region could be realised in providing quality, 
clean, affordable and reliable bus travel that would also be crucial to the sub-region’s 
recovery from Covid. 
 
Councillor Brenda Warrington agreed with points that had already been made in relation to 
the fragmented network and unaffordable pricing structure that currently penalised those 
who had no alternative to public transport.  She felt that the de-regulation of buses had led 
to a system that was predominantly profit focussed to the detriment of many communities 
who were reliant on bus services to keep them connected.  It was important that Greater 

Page 65



8 
 

Manchester could take some authority in determining the location of routes to ensure that 
communities were no longer adversely affected by decisions taken for short term 
commercial reasons that rarely looked to provide a longer-term lasting solution. 
 
City Mayor Paul Dennett emphasised the importance of the bus network in connecting other 
modes of public transport and allowing people full access to the city-region.  In Salford there 
were 40% of households without access to a car and therefore the provision and reliability 
of bus services was crucial.  The relatively new Guided Busway in Leigh has proven how 
successful bus provision could be if the infrastructure was right, it was well managed, 
provided a high quality of service and was well publicised as pre-covid there were 60,000 
passengers using these services per week.  A strong bus network would also provide some 
broader benefits including supporting GM’s ambitions to tackle congestion and reach carbon 
neutrality.  In London, since 1986 bus patronage has doubled, and this was the type of 
radical reform that was also needed for Greater Manchester that did not accept cutting off 
communities and outlying areas for financial reasons despite significant subsidies being 
provided to operators.  He was grateful that the Chief Executive had taken the CA through 
the wealth of contributing documents today, which had made it clear that residents of 
Greater Manchester did not think that the current system was fit for purpose and were 
supportive of the recommendations. 
 
Councillor David Molyneux expressed his support for the proposals, the comments which 
had already been made and added that a strong bus network was fundamental to the public 
transport system in Wigan.  
 
Councillor Tom McGee recognised the importance of multi-modular travel to ensure that rail 
and Metrolink services were knitted together with a strong bus network and furthermore that 
cross-ticketing would enable people to travel across Greater Manchester seamlessly. 
 
Councillor Andrew Western explained that due to the significance of this decision, he had 
considered in detail all options outlined in the reports and chosen the proposal which was 
most in line with GM ambitions as this was the best approach to not only deliver a truly 
integrated public transport system but to also drive forward economic growth.  A lack of 
transport connectivity could often in fact be a barrier to such growth and opportunities for 
residents and therefore it was imperative to ensure that all parts of Greater Manchester 
were better connected, and that no community was detrimentally affected by a network that 
penalised outlying areas. 
 
Councillor David Greenhalgh recognised the need for bus reform as the current system was 
not acceptable and did not meet GM’s ambition for a truly integrated network.  However, he 
expressed his concerns in relation to the timing of making a decision on a chosen proposal 
in light of the current uncertainty around covid recovery and future Government funding 
opportunities.  He felt that deferring such a decision would not be detrimental as the earliest 
point of delivery would not be until 2023-2025, furthermore the funding model for phase two 
was still to be secured.  In times of Local Authority funding uncertainties, it would be difficult 
to give a strong commitment to delivery and it would be wise to defer to allow further 
modelling of an enhanced partnership model to be explored.  In view of his significant 
reservations, it would prevent his support to pursuing this approach as the situation was 
very different to when initial decisions were taken by the GMCA.  Further exploration of 
other options would ensure that the GMCA could make the right decision and reduce any 
additional risk or uncertainty. 
 

Page 66



9 
 

Councillor Allen Brett said that all communities needed a strong bus network and that the 
current de-regulated arrangement did not actively support this.  Therefore, in his view the 
proposed franchising scheme would be necessary to ensure this could be achieved. 
 
Clerks note: The meeting was adjourned between 11.50am and 12.10pm to give 
opportunity for Members of the GMCA to mark the National Day of Reflection and take a 
minute’s silence for all those who have lost their lives due to Covid-19. 
 
Councillor Richard Leese agreed with members comments that the current system was not 
sustainable and needed to see fundamental change, however as now, a continued 
cooperative and collaborative relationship with bus operators was desired.  Thanks were 
expressed to them for their significant efforts in keeping the city region moving throughout 
the pandemic specifically, and it was acknowledged that they would be instrumental in 
ensuring GM could recover at the required pace.  The work on bus reform to date had 
indicated that short term decisions had not made the substantial changes that were needed 
across the bus network, and therefore it was time for serious consideration to be given to 
the long-term future of buses in Greater Manchester.  At the end of the first consultation 
there were three partnership models put forward by operators, however none covered the 
whole of Greater Manchester nor were they compatible with one another and following the 
second consultation there were no partnership proposals still on offer predominately due to 
the level of uncertainty faced by operators post pandemic.  He said that in his view deferring 
any decision would not address this uncertainty and in line with the expectations of the 
National Bus Strategy, all Local Authorities were to have committed to enhanced 
partnership models by June 2021, unless they were Combined Authorities who had already 
begun the franchising process.  Although there were risks associated with both proposals, 
there were more risks associated with a partnership model where the GMCA could have no 
level of certainty as to the location of future bus routes or ticketing prices.  GM would also 
have access to funding as detailed in the National Bus Strategy to further enhance the bus 
network irrespective of which model was selected, however this Strategy identified that a 
franchising model would be Government’s preference. 
 
In response to questions, officers confirmed that the National Bus Strategy had stated that 
by July 2021 all Local Authorities who had met the requirements would have access to 
available Government grants and that as the GMCA had already begun its legal process 
under the Bus Services Act, the Combined Authority were already underway with the 
required steps to meet this deadline. 
 
The Chair requested a named vote on all the recommendations in the report. This was 
recorded as follows: 
 

Cllr David Greenhalgh, Bolton Against  

Cllr Eamonn O’Brien, Bury For 

Cllr Richard Leese, Manchester For 

Cllr Sean Fielding, Oldham For 

Cllr Allen Brett, Rochdale For 

City Mayor Paul Dennett, Salford For 

Cllr Tom McGee, Stockport For 

Cllr Brenda Warrington, Tameside For 

Cllr Andrew Western, Trafford For 

 
 
RESOLVED /- 

Page 67



10 
 

 
1. That the Mayor be recommended to make a franchising scheme as set out in 

Appendix 5 to this Report. 
 

2. That the completion of the consultation process on the Proposed Franchising 
Scheme; its extent and the responses received be noted. 
 

3. That the TfGM Report ‘Bus Franchising in Greater Manchester March 2021: 
Consultation Report’ (Appendix 1) be noted and that the conclusions therein be 
endorsed.  
 

4. That the Mayor be recommended, that if he decides to make a franchising scheme, 
he should also publish a transitional notice in the form at Appendix 7 (which the 
GMCA would do if it were the relevant person to do so). 
 

5. That when the Mayor has decided whether or not to make a franchising scheme, it is 
agreed: 

 
i. to adopt and publish this report and its appendices as its response to the 

consultation, together with the Mayor’s decision, as the report to be published 
by the GMCA under section 123G (1) of the Act.  

ii. to give notice of that report to traffic commissioner (s.123G (2) of the Act). 
 
6.   That if the Mayor decides to make a franchising scheme, it is agreed: 

 
i. to publish the scheme on behalf of the Mayor at the same time as the report to 

be published under section 123G (1) of the Act.  
 

ii. at the same time to publish a transitional notice in the terms set out in 
Appendix 7 and then, within 14 days of date upon which transitional notice is 
published, to give notice to the traffic commissioner of its publication on behalf 
of the Mayor if the Mayor so decides (or alternatively the GMCA) as required 
by the Public Service Vehicles (Registration of Local Services) (Franchising 
Schemes Transitional Provisions and Amendments) (England) Regulations 
2018, and 

 
iii. that, in conducting the procurement process for the provision of local services, 

the GMCA will facilitate the involvement of small and medium sized operators 
in the provision of local services as set out in section of this Report; (s123 G 
(3) of the Act). Page 5 Agenda Item 52 

 
7.   That it be noted that the proposed funding arrangements and mitigations for the 

Scheme as set out in this report were approved by GMCA at its meeting on 27 
November 2020 and to confirm those arrangements.  

 
8.   That it be noted that the GMCA has considered the contents of the National Bus 

Strategy and the matters considered in the Report ‘Bus Reform: Bus Back Better’. 
 
 
 
 
Signed by the Chair: 
 

1.  
 
 
 
 

Page 68



 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GM POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL HELD ON FRIDAY 
29 JANUARY 2021 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS  
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Nadim Muslim  Bolton Council 
Councillor David Jones  Bury Council 
Councillor Nigel Murphy   Manchester City Council – (In the Chair) 
Councillor Steve Williams  Oldham Council 
Councillor Janet Emsley  Rochdale Council    
Councillor David Lancaster  Salford City Council 
Councillor Amanda Peers  Stockport Council 
Councillor Allison Gwynne  Tameside Council 
Councillor Graham Whitham  Trafford Council 
Councillor Kevin Anderson  Wigan Council 
Angela Lawrence    Independent Member 
 
ALSO PRESENT: 
Andy Burnham   GM Mayor 
Baroness Beverley Hughes  GM Deputy Mayor 
Ian Pilling    Acting Chief Constable, GMP  
Robert Potts    Assistant Chief Constable, GMP   
Chris Sykes    Assistant Chief Constable, GMP 
Dave Russel    Chief Fire Officer, GMF&RS 
    
OFFICERS: 
Kevin Lee Director GM Mayor’s Office  
Clare Monaghan Director Policing, Crime and Fire, GMCA 
Jeanette Staley   Salford City Council & GM Police and Crime Policy Lead 
Gwynne Williams   Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA   
Sarah Keaveny    Head of Comms, GMCA  
Steve Annette    GMCA Governance and Scrutiny 
Paul Harris                  GMCA Governance and Scrutiny   
Joanne Herron    GMCA Governance and Scrutiny  
Paul Fearnhead   Area Manager, GMF&RS 
 
APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received on behalf Carolyn Wilkins, Lead Chief Executive, Policing, Fire and 
Crime, and Majid Hussain, Independent Member. 
 
PFCP/01/21     CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS     
 
There were no items raised.  
 
PFCP/02/21  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 

Page 69



 

2 
 

 
PFCP/03/21  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest made.     
 
PCFP/04/21 INITIAL RESPONSE TO HMIC REPORT  

GM POLICE PRECEPT DECISIONS FOR 2021/22 
 
Opening the discussion, the Chair proposed, and members agreed, that due to the 
commonality of many of the issues involved it would be helpful to consider together the 
proposals in relation to the precept and the report of the Acting Chief Constable on initial 
responses to the findings within the HMIC report. 
 
The Greater Manchester Mayor then set out for the Panel a full statement on the HMIC 
report and the wider implications this presented for Greater Manchester Police going 
forward. He indicated that the HMIC report had necessarily prompted himself and the 
Deputy Mayor to undertake a frank reflection and critical assessment of the background to 
its findings. They acknowledged that there were longstanding issues about recording of 
crimes and support to victims by the Force, and whilst the Force had made some progress 
this had not been sustained. Funding cuts since 2010 had clearly had an impact on GMP’s 
overall capability and performance, and whilst the reduction of £215M and loss of 2000 
officers was a major cause of the problems identified by HMIC, it was their view not the only 
cause.   
 
The Mayor indicated that he and the Deputy Mayor had reflected at length on the 
operational, structural, and cultural problems that prevented GMP being the Force that it 
should be. The Force had been slow to respond to changing times and changing demands 
upon it and had too often underplayed problems and failed to keep the Mayor and Deputy 
Mayor fully in the loop.  In the light of the HMIC report the need now was for an open, 
honest, and critical review of the Force’s practices and culture and to make positive changes 
building on the many examples of outstanding work and the dedication of many individuals, 
with the ambition of creating a culture of positive, accountable, victim-centred policing. He 
welcomed the initial actions taken by the Acting Chief Constable to begin that process and 
to sustain public confidence in the Greater Manchester Force. 
 
The Deputy Mayor indicated that the Mayor’s statement represented their joint view, and 
she reiterated the difficulties they had jointly encountered within a culture that was overly 
defensive and persistently resisted openness at the very top of the structure, and her own 
belief that the Force could not move forward without a change in leadership. She extended 
her thanks to the Acting Chief Constable for quickly picking up the immediate challenges and 
the positive messages coming from him both to the Force and to the public. She expressed 
confidence that GMP could and would rise to successfully meet the challenges ahead. 
 
Turning to the consideration of the precept proposals, the Mayor indicated that the 
maximum precept allowed by the Government was £15 for Band D properties. A revised 
report containing responses to the public consultation which had concluded at midnight on 
the 28th January 2021 was provided at the meeting, from which it was clear that there was 
less appetite for the application of the maximum precept increase of £15 than there had 
been in previous years. The revised proposal was therefore for an increase of £10 which was 

Page 70



 

3 
 

considered absolutely essential for the delivery of the operational plans for GMP in 2021/22 
including the recruitment of 325 new frontline officers for Greater Manchester, but the 
impact of reducing the proposed precept increase to £10 would be a corresponding 
reduction of £3.8m in the income raised which would set total funding for police and crime 
in 2021/22 at £671m, an increase of £25.8m on the 2020/21 funding level, but lower than 
the level of funding anticipated by the Home Office in its assumption that all areas would 
implement the maximum precept rise. 
 
The Panel noted that any increase in precept funding was effectively recurrent and therefore 
to not increase by the full £15 would involve recurrent impacts on police and crime funding 
from 2021/22 onwards, and that in order to manage its finances GMP will need to identify 
savings within the service, though the proposals for neighbourhood policing, the number of 
officers to be recruited and the major deliverables described in the original budget proposal 
were not expected to be affected by this change.  
 
The financial impact for each Council Tax band of a £10 increase was reported as follows - 
 
COUNCIL TAX BANDS 
    A B C D E F G H 
2021/22 proposed precept  145.53 169.78 194.04 218.30 266.81 315.32 363.83 436.60 
2020/21 PCC precept  138.86 162.01 185.15 208.30 254.58 300.87 347.16 416.60 
Change (£ per year)  6.67 7.77 8.89 10.00 12.23 14.45 16.67 20.00 
 
The Chair then opened the meeting for contributions and questioning by members, and 
responses by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor and the Acting Chief Constable, that included - 
 

 Members welcomed the Mayor’s full and frank assessment of the situation facing the 
Force, and the pragmatic approach to reduce the level of the precept for 2021/22, 
but they sought reassurance that the budget shortfall would not impact on key 
priorities. Responding, the Mayor indicated that the budget reduction of £3.8M 
represented 0.5% of the overall Force budget. The Force would continue to have 
sufficient resources to support continued recruitment, but it would be up to the 
Acting Chief Constable and his team to identify at an early stage where operational 
savings could be achieved without impacts on key services.    
         

 Members supported the imperative for change outlined by the Mayor but remained 
sceptical that everything that needed to be done could be done to achieve the 
desired operational model. The Mayor acknowledged that members were entitled to 
reserve judgement at this stage, but he referred to the inherent strengths within the 
Force, which when combined with the Panel’s pivotal role as a critical friend in the 
process going forward, must provide a measure of confidence for the future. 
         

 The Panel welcomed and supported the hard work and commitment of police officers 
and stressed the importance that public confidence was retained during the change 
process, specifically in terms of neighbourhood and partnership working where so 
much progress had already been achieved. Politicians had to accept their 
responsibilities to act both as scrutineers and critical friends in a governance process 
that required openness and transparency and access to reliable evidence-based data.  
The Mayor and Deputy Mayor acknowledged the key role that local members would 

Page 71



 

4 
 

play in identifying local priorities and improved community working and cooperation.
            

 Members reflected on the many positive achievements made by the Force in recent 
years, not least the degree of diversity achieved in the workforce that had delivered 
a young and diverse public facing image that better reflected the community mix in 
Greater Manchester, together with the commitment to neighbourhood policing, 
engagement and accountability, and many positive elements of community work 
emerging from the Covid-19 emergency. The Deputy Mayor acknowledged that 
whilst a lot of challenges remained there were also many strengths to be built upon.
      

 The commitment to maintain the recruitment of a further 325 police officers in 
2021/22 on top of the 667 previously established and supported by this Panel and 
the public through the precept was welcomed, though it was also recognised that 
this itself would place pressures on the Force in terms of training and mentoring, and 
careful succession planning for the loss of experienced officers retiring from the 
Force. 

 
Whereupon – 
 
MOTION MADE AND SECONDED /- 
 
In agreeing the proposal to increase the precept, the Panel is disappointed that instead of 
fairly funding the police directly, the Government continues to expect an increase to 
residents Council Tax bills, this time by £15 per Band D household, despite the inequalities 
and unfairness of the system. This is especially disturbing at a time of such uncertainty when 
residents across Greater Manchester are worried about the future of their jobs and how they 
make ends meet. We note that the £10 increase in precept leaves a £3.8m reduction in 
funding for this year and in future years and call on Central Government to properly fund the 
Police Service in Greater Manchester. 
We acknowledge that last year’s increase in precept delivered continued investment in 
neighbourhood policing including a named and contactable Neighbourhood Beat Officer and 
Police Community Support Officer for each ward in Greater Manchester. In addition, GMP is 
introducing a full-time school liaison officer in schools across Greater Manchester in the 
greatest need and request it. Investment has been made in an online crime reporting system 
alongside the improvements to the telephone system that has seen an improvement in the 
101 service.    
 
This year’s increase in precept will contribute to schemes including: 

 Funding for training and equipment cost for the 325 new officers. 

 A new approach to safeguarding with 150 officers to keep our most vulnerable victims 
safe.  

 Initiatives to reduce death and serious injury on the roads, supporting conventional 
enforcement with a more localised approach to educate drivers, including pilots of 
community lead speed-watch schemes. 

We welcome the continued support given to Community Safety Partnerships and voluntary 
sector organisations giving them additional resources to tackle on a local basis issues 
including ASB, support victims of domestic and sexual abuse, and work on reducing offending 
and re-offending. 
 

Page 72



 

5 
 

 
The Motion being then put, there voted - 
 
FOR the motion (9)   
Councillors Anderson, Emsley, Gwynne, Jones, Lancaster, Murphy, Peers, Whitham and 
Williams so voting. 
AGAINST the Motion (2)   
Lawrence (Independent Member) and Muslim so voting. 
Abstentions (0) 

 
The Chair declared the Motion to be CARRIED, and it was – 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. In agreeing the proposal to increase the precept, the Panel is disappointed that 
instead of fairly funding the police directly, the Government continues to expect an increase 
to residents Council Tax bills, this time by £15 per Band D household, despite the inequalities 
and unfairness of the system. This is especially disturbing at a time of such uncertainty when 
residents across Greater Manchester are worried about the future of their jobs and how they 
make ends meet. We note that the £10 increase in precept leaves a £3.8m reduction in 
funding for this year and in future years and call on Central Government to properly fund the 
Police Service in Greater Manchester. 
We acknowledge that last year’s increase in precept delivered continued investment in 
neighbourhood policing including a named and contactable Neighbourhood Beat Officer and 
Police Community Support Officer for each ward in Greater Manchester. In addition, GMP is 
introducing a full-time school liaison officer in schools across Greater Manchester in the 
greatest need and request it. Investment has been made in an online crime reporting system 
alongside the improvements to the telephone system that has seen an improvement in the 
101 service. 
This year’s increase in precept will contribute to schemes including: 

 Funding for training and equipment cost for the 325 new officers. 

 A new approach to safeguarding with 150 officers to keep our most vulnerable victims 
safe.  

 Initiatives to reduce death and serious injury on the roads, supporting conventional 
enforcement with a more localised approach to educate drivers, including pilots of 
community lead speed-watch schemes. 

We welcome the continued support given to Community Safety Partnerships and voluntary 
sector organisations giving them additional resources to tackle on a local basis issues 
including ASB, support victims of domestic and sexual abuse, and work on reducing offending 
and re-offending. 
 
2. To receive and welcome the report of the Acting Chief Constable on the initial actions 
and responses made by Greater Manchester Police to the findings of the HMIC report. 
 
PCFP/05/21 GREATER MANCHESTER FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE REVENUE AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET 2021/22 
 
Steve Wilson GMCA Treasurer introduced a report which informed members of the proposed 
budget for Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service (GMFRS) budget for 2021/22 and 

Page 73



 

6 
 

updated Medium Term Financial Plan. The precept proposals for GMFRS in 2021/22 will form 
part of the Mayoral General Budget and Precept Proposals report to GMCA on 29th January 
2021.  The Panel noted that the precept was to be retained at the same level for 2020/21 
without implications for staffing levels.  The Service exhibited a robust financial position with 
adequate levels of reserves going forward. 
 
A member sought and received an assurance that not raising the precept level did not involve 
implications in terms of delivering the ambitions within the Fire Plan. Other members 
enquired whether there were any plans to review the number of station managers, and the 
Chief Fire Officer indicated that going forward it would be reasonable to envisage various 
areas of efficiency review and he welcomed members’ willingness to embrace cultural 
change where that was found to be necessary.   A member asked that a report be brought to 
a future meeting providing a breakdown of the Fire Service estate and its current valuation. 
 
The Deputy Mayor indicated that there was considerable scope for the Government to better 
fund core fire services, emphasising that the standstill on the fire precept resulted in part 
from budget easement from planned recruitment that had not been fully realised in 2020/21 
due to the Covid-10 emergency. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. To support the overall budget proposed for the Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
Service in 2021/22; the proposed use of reserves to support both the Revenue and Capital 
budgets; the proposed Fire Service Capital Programme and proposals for funding, and the 
medium-term financial position for the Fire and Rescue Service covered by the Mayoral 
Precept. 
 
2. To note that at the GMCA meeting on 12 February 2021 there will be an updated 
budget submitted, consistent with the precept proposals, and reflecting final tax base and 
Collection Fund calculations. and the final Revenue Support Grant settlement.  
 
PFCP/07/21  IOPS UPDATE 
 
ACC Sykes., GMP introduced a paper and provided members with an update on the progress 
in the continuing development of GMP’s iOPS technology. He reported that Version 7 of 
Police Works was successfully launched in January and provided several welcome 
enhancements.  A programme of further improvements to the platform was planned during 
the year ahead.   
 
The Chair thanked the officers for the advance notice given of the downtime associated with 
the recent system upgrade. A member expressed concern about the lack of access to 
detailed local crime statistics.  ACC Sykes agreed to look into these concerns as in his view 
substantial crime data should be readily available at local level. 
Responding to members about the current levels of service compared to initial 
implementation, ACC Sykes cited examples of system stability, intelligence, search facilities 
and data security as positive outcomes, but accepted that challenges remained in terms of 
system speeds and individual elements of functionality. 
       
RESOLVED/- 

Page 74



 

7 
 

1. That the update be noted. 
 
PFCP/08/21  EU TRADE AND COOPERATION AGREEMENT- SECURITY AND LAW 

ENFORCEMENT  
 
A PowerPoint presentation provided Members with an EU Systems overview and an impact 
update post EU exit. 
 
The Deputy Mayor indicated that the report highlighted the number of areas where ‘work 
Arounds’ had been made necessary to replace previous direct access arrangements, which 
will continue to have impacts both in terms of demands on officer time and also delays in  
accessing essential information and initiating timely responses. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the presentation be noted. 
 
 
PFCP/09/21  DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday 23 March 2021 at 3.00pm MS Teams  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE  
GMCA WASTE AND RECYCLING COMMITTEE 

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 13 JANUARY 2021 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
PRESENT:  

Councillor Adele Warren 
Councillor Alan Quinn  
Councillor Rabnawaz Akbar 
Councillor Yasmin Toor 

Bolton 
Bury 
Manchester 
Oldham 

Councillor Tom Besford Rochdale  
Councillor David Lancaster 
Councillor Robin Garrido 

Salford 
Salford 

Councillor Helen Foster Grime 
Councillor Alison Gwynne (Chair) 
Councillor Steve Adshead 

Stockport 
Tameside 
Trafford 
 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
David Taylor GMCA – Executive Director, Waste & 

Resources 
Paul Morgan GMCA – Waste & Resources 
Justin Lomax 
Lindsey Keech 

GMCA – Waste & Resources 
GMCA – Waste & Resources 

Michelle Whitfield 
Michael Kelly 
Gwynne Williams 

GMCA – Waste & Resources 
GMCA – Waste & Resources  
GMCA – Deputy Monitoring Officer  

Nicola Ward 
 

GMCA – Governance & Scrutiny  
 

 
WRC 21/01   APOLOGIES 
 

1. Apologies for absence were received and noted from Councillors Susan Emmott 

(Rochdale) and Atteque Ur-Rehman (Oldham).  Apologies were also received from 

Eamonn Boylan, Chief Executive Officer GMCA & TfGM. 

 

2. That it be noted that Councillor Roy Driver (Stockport) was unable to join the 

meeting due to technical reasons. 

 
WRC 21/02  CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
There were no announcements or items of urgent business reported. 
 
 
WRC 21/03  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Page 77



 

 

 
There were no declarations of interest reported by any Member in respect of any item on 
the agenda.  
 
 
WRC 21/04  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14 OCTOBER 2020  

 
 

RESOLVED/- 
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on 14 October 2020 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
 
WRC 21/05 GREATER MANCHESTER WASTE AND RECYCLING 

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 
 
In relation to the headlines from the English National Waste Strategy, Members raised a 
series of concerns relating to the proposal for weekly separate food waste collections.  
Specifically, the added cost to residents for new vehicles, extra staff, new equipment at 
treatment plants and additional general resourcing if this was not covered by the New 
Burdens Regime.  It was confirmed that the 9 GM Local Authorities in the GMCA waste 
disposal arrangements already re-cycle food waste and this is collected on a fortnightly or 
weekly basis mixed with general garden waste.  It was anticipated that these proposals 
would expect food to still be collected in the current caddies used in the majority of GM 
boroughs.  Defra’s proposals reference the potential capture of additional tonnage if 
collected separately, and also the ability for electricity generation or bio-fuel production 
from anaerobic digestion of the food waste.  However, this must be weighed up against 
the cost of setting up, and the potential locations for the digestate to be spread and stored 
for the remainder of the year.   
 
Members noted the recent pilot in Salford to increase the collection of food waste through 
the provision of extra caddies, however, were not convinced that keeping this separate 
from garden waste would result in extra food waste being recycled.  Officers confirmed 
that these proposals were based on analysis from WRAP, whereby their comparison of 
mixed or separate food waste did not take into account the loss of moisture and other 
factors, and that this would be included in Greater Manchester’s response to the 
consultation. 
 
There was further concern expressed from Members in that an additional food waste 
collection would result in less regular garden waste collections across GM which would 
not be welcomed by residents.  It was felt that this was an additional pressure and cost to 
Greater Manchester that was not necessary as the current system was fit for purpose and 
it could actually be detrimental to our current footprint.  Officers confirmed that Technical, 
Economic, Environmentally Practical Assessment (TEEP) may potentially justify that no 
changes were needed due to the success of the current arrangements and that further 

Page 78



 

 

details on guidance for TEEP was anticipated to be included in the next round of 
consultations on the Strategy due to be released in March. 
 
In relation to a potential charge for the collection of garden waste, officers reported that 
the current consultation made limited reference to this, and further details may be included 
in the March consultations. 
 
Members queried as to whether there were any updates on the deposit return scheme, or 
extended producer responsibility.  Officers confirmed that both items would be included 
within the March consultation, and that conversations were already underway in relation 
to the potential impact of a deposit return scheme in GM.  Funds raised through the 
extended producer responsibility system would also be used to fund any changes to 
collection of packaging materials and extra recycling costs. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That a breakdown of which GM Local Authorities currently use food waste caddies be 
shared with the Committee. 
 
 
 
WRC 21/06 WASTE AND RESOURCES COMMUNICATIONS AND BEHAVIOURAL 

CHANGE PLAN  
 
Michelle Whitfield, Head of Communications and Behavioural Change, GMCA Waste and 
Resources Team took Members through a report on communications and behavioural 
change between October – December 2020.   
 
In relation to waste prevention, due to the time of year there was little activity on home 
composting during this period, however there was an ongoing home composting 
campaign that would go into 2021 to advise residents as to how they can compost their 
own waste.  It was recognised that further advice was required to stop people putting 
inappropriate items in their green waste bins, and also their food waste in general waste 
bins.  A survey had been undertaken in Oldham which would help determine the key 
messages of the forthcoming communications campaign. 
 
The R4GM Waste website had recently been reviewed and updated, offering further 
advice to residents, especially in relation to covid restrictions at Household Waste 
Recycling Centres (HWRCs).  This would be further reorganised in line with recent 
questions received from visitors. 
 
Over the Christmas period, there had been a specific campaign focussed on paper and 
card recycling that had been well received, although there remained some concerns that 
contamination in paper collections was still recurring and therefore a campaign to remind 
people as to what could be included in this collection was underway.  Members were 
specifically concerned about nappies continually being put in the paper waste collection 

Page 79



 

 

and suggested that specific targeted campaigns be delivered to maternity hospitals and 
requests made to manufacturers to be more explicit on the product’s packaging. 
 
At the start of 2021, there would also be a further communications campaign to encourage 
further recycling at HWRCs, within the guidelines of the current covid restrictions. 
 
Regarding waste prevention, Members questioned whether there were any pilots being 
undertaken in relation to food waste being collected within flat properties.  Officers 
confirmed that there had been a trial undertaken in Salford in 2019 in low rise flat 
accommodation with a shared lockable food waste container with a small aperture.  This 
work had highlighted the need for bespoke solutions depending on the accommodation 
arrangements.  
 
Members highlighted the usefulness of virtual visits to GM’s Material Recovery Facility as 
detailed within the report and asked whether there could be other ways in which these 
could be promoted more widely.  Officers welcomed the offer of elected Members’ to share 
these details with their own constituents through their contacts and social media channels. 
 
The appendix to the report highlighted a peak in hits to the R4GM website during 
November 2020, this was mainly attributed to the changing position of lockdown 
restrictions, and residents seeking clarity as to whether there would be further closures of 
centres.  In response to these repeated questions, the front page of the website was 
updated to make this information as accessible as possible. 
 
As the use of social media increases, Members asked how the Waste Team were planning 
to use their Instagram account to reach a further cohort of residents, and what the cost 
per social media interaction equated to.  Officers explained how the predominant social 
media platforms were Facebook and Twitter, however the new Instagram page would 
allow for a different style of messaging to be shared, with the use of styled photographs.  
The team had also recently purchased a new social media management tool, Falcon, 
which would further strengthen their social media presence, and support their ambitions 
to use these avenues to specifically promote the Re-Use shops.  Members were interested 
to see the impact of this new tool, as it was hoped to further streamline the GM Waste 
Team’s social media presence. 
 
Members reported new apps available on the market which highlight to the user how their 
waste gets processed and where it ends up, which seemed to be growing in popularity 
and were linked to the smart waste streams agenda.  Officers agreed that people seemed 
to want to know more about where their waste goes, and they would investigate these 
apps further. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the progress against the communications and behavioural change plan be 
noted. 
 

Page 80



 

 

2. That the progress on the joint SUEZ and R4GM communications and engagement 
plan be noted. 
 

3. That the outcomes of the food waste collection trial for flat properties be shared 
directly with Councillor Lancaster. 

 
4. That details of the virtual MRF visits be shared with Members of the GM Waste and 

Recycling Committee for wider promotion. 
 

5. That further data on the cost per social media interaction be included in a future 
report to the Committee. 
 

6. That further information on the smart waste stream apps be brought to the next 
meeting. 

 
 
WRC 21/07 CONTRACTS UPDATE 
 
Justin Lomax, Head of Contract Services, GMCA Waste and Resources Team presented 
a report which provided an update on performance of each of the waste contracts between 
April-September 2020.  In comparison to this same period in 2019, there had been 50,000 
less tonnes collected as a direct impact of the Covid pandemic.  The report further detailed 
the kerbside recycling rates, site recycling tonnage, landfill diversion rates, contamination 
rates, and the amount of tonnage rejected. 
 
In relation to Household Waste Recycling Centres, on 24 March 2020 they were closed in 
line with the ‘stay at home’ Government messaging, and then re-opened on a phased 
approach from the 2 May 2020 in order to minimise queues, congestion and other impacts.  
Visits to the HWRCs peaked in July 2020, and since then had plateaued, with significant 
impact seen as a result of lockdown 1, but no impact seen as a result of lockdown 2. 
 
Members reported visiting HWRC sites over the Christmas period and although they were 
busy, they were well managed.  Officers confirmed that there had been minimal 
complaints regarding breaches of social distancing, and that all frontline staff had been 
trained on the current regulations and how to communicate these to site visitors.  There 
was also signage across centres reminding visitors to behave as if they were in any other 
form of public space, wear a face mask and keep 2 metres social distance, Members 
urged that this messaging be given the most prominent position possible. 
 
In relation to contaminated pulpables separated from the recycling streams, Members 
asked whether these would go to landfill or be incinerated.  It was confirmed that they 
would go into solid recovered fuel production for energy generation. 
 
Work had been undertaken to scope the principles of the new permit scheme for trade 
waste, whereby van owners would only be permitted to register one vehicle per 
household, and those hiring a van for personal use could resister for a free daily permit.  

Page 81



 

 

The process for registration had been designed to be as easy as possible so that it could 
be undertaken at the kerbside (with only a proof of address necessary) if anyone had 
approached the HWRC without the required permit.  Members suggested that van hire 
companies could offer advice to people taking out a hire agreement that they would be 
required to register for a permit if they were planning to dispose of any waste from the 
vehicle.  Officers confirmed that there were to be advice leaflets produced that could be 
shared with hire companies, and that those who were unaware of the permit would be 
able to use their van hire permit as proof of their address. 
 
Members were aware of the continued issues with illegal trade waste, including those who 
were charging for collection from other properties.  The trade waste prevention scheme 
was still underway, and any trade waste (through a paid transaction) was required to go 
through the weigh bridge and would be subject to a charge.  Members were reminded that 
each GM Local Authority also offered a bulky waste removal service available to its 
residents. 
 
In relation to walk-ins at HWRCs, Members reported that some residents had wished to 
walk in with their local waste but had not been permitted access.  Officers were aware of 
the issue, and the necessity for walk in provision, however this had become increasingly 
challenging during Covid.  Residents were being advised to only use the option if there 
were no other options available to them, to wait at the entrance and notify a member of 
staff so that the contents of their waste could be confirmed and they would have no reason 
to put themselves at danger walking onto the site. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 
 
2. That messaging about covid-safe visits to the HWRCs be given the most prominent 

positions. 
 

3. That further consideration be given as to how best to inform people who are hiring a 
vehicle for home improvements of their requirement to obtain a permit for accessing 
the HWRC. 

 
 

WRC 21/08 BUDGET AND LEVY 2021/22 AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL 
PLAN TO 2024/25  

 
Steve Wilson, Treasurer to the GMCA and Lindsey Keech, Head of Finance, Waste and 
Resources Team introduced the GM waste budget forecast position for 2020/21 and 
proposed budget for 2021/22.  Subject to the Committee’s comments, the proposed 
budget would be shared with the GMCA at their meeting in February.  This year’s 
budget has seen £4.8m returned to GM Local Authorities and £32m remaining in 
reserves.  Members requested a further breakdown of the levy adjustment for each 
Local Authority. 

Page 82



 

 

 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the forecast outturn for 2020/21 be noted. 

 

2. That the proposed 2021/22 trade waste rate of £102.30 and £114.83 in 2022/23 to 

allow forward planning by Local Authorities be noted. 

 

3. That the capital programme for 2021/22 be noted. 

 

4. That the budget and levy for 2021/22 of £162.4m (2.9% decrease) be noted. 

 

5. That the risk position set out in the Balances Strategy and Reserves be noted. 

 

6. That a breakdown of levy adjustments for each Local Authority be shared with 

Members. 

 
WRC 21/09  BIOWASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  
 
Paul Morgan, Head of Commercial Services, GMCA Waste and Resources Team 
introduced the proposals for a biowaste management strategy that would form part of the 
National Waste Strategy, and contribute towards GM’s overall recycling service. 
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the report, and proposed Biowaste Strategy be noted. 

 
 

WRC 21/10 DATE AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the following programme of meetings for the Committee for 2020/21 be agreed,  
 

 14 April 2021, 10am, via Microsoft Teams 
 
 
WRC 21/11 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED/-  
 
That, under section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, member of the press 
and public should be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that this involves the likely disclosure of exempt information, as set out in 

Page 83



 

 

paragraphs 3 & 5, Part 1, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and that the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 
 
 
WRC 21/12 CONTRACTS UPDATE  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 
1. That the contract updates and key risks set out in the report be noted. 

 
2. That the guidance document for the Community Fund be approved. 

 

3. That authority be delegated to the Executive Director in consultation with the Chair to 
conclude the contractual processes for additional clean up of contaminated fibre 
materials. 

 

4. That the commencement of the technical advisor procurements be approved and 
authority delegated to the Executive Director to make the appointment in consultation 
with the Chair. 

 
 
WRC 21/13 BIOWASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  
 
RESOLVED/- 

 

1. That the report be noted. 

 

2. That the commencement of the approvals and procurement of the biowaste 

contracts be noted. 

 

3. That officers would report back to the Committee on the budget details in relation 

to the current biowaste contracts. 

Page 84



 

GM HEALTH AND CARE BOARD 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 31 JANUARY 2020 AT CORPORAL TONY DOWNES 
HOUSE, TAMESIDE COUNCIL 

 
 
Bolton Council        Councillor David Greenhalgh 
        Tony Oakman  
 
Bury Council        Councillor David Jones  
        Geoff Little  
 
Manchester CC       Councillor Bev Craig 

Councillor Richard Leese 
        Carol Culley  
 
Oldham Council       Councillor Sean Fielding 
        Carolyn Wilkins 
 
Rochdale Council       Councillor Allen Brett 
        Councillor Wendy Cocks   
        Councillor Sara Rowbotham 
        Steve Rumbelow 
 
Salford CC        Mayor Paul Dennett 
        Jim Taylor    
          
Stockport MBC      Councillor Keith Holloway 

Councillor Elise Wilson  
Councillor Jude Wells 
Pam Smith 

 
Tameside Council       Councillor Brenda Warrington 
        Councillor Eleanor Wills 

Stephanie Butterworth 
Pat McKelvey 
Steven Pleasant  

 
Trafford Council       Councillor Andrew Western 
        Sara Todd 
         
Wigan Council       Councillor Keith Cunliffe 
        Councillor John O’Brien 

Councillor Peter Smith (Chair) 
        Alison McKenzie-Folan  
 
 

Page 85



   

 
 

Manchester Health and Care Commissioning   Ruth Bromley   
 
Salford CCG         Tom Tasker  
 
Wigan CCG        Tim Dalton 
        Craig Harris  
 
GM Mental Health NHS Trust     Rupert Nichols 
 
Tameside NHS FT      Karen James 
        Jane McCall 
 
The Christie        Roger Spencer 

Thomas Thornber 
 
Alzheimer’s Society      Jeremy Hughes 
 
GM Commissioning Hub      Rob Bellingham 
             
GM Deputy Mayor       Baroness Beverly Hughes  
 
GM Mayor       Andy Burnham 
 
GMCA        Eamonn Boylan 

Julie Connor 
Lindsay Dunn 
Kevin Lee 
Andrew Lightfoot 

        Liz Treacy 
 
GMCVO        Alex Whinnom 
 
GM Health and Social Care Partnership Team  Janet Castrogiovanni 

Julie Dawes 
Gaynor Edwards  
Warren Heppolette  
Alex Little  
Laura Mercer 
Claire Norman 
Sally Parkinson 
Jane Pilkington  
Sarah Price 
Jon Rouse (Chief Officer) 
 

GMP Mental Health Tactical Advice Service   Emma Dickinson  
 
Greater Manchester Transport Committee   Mike Aldred 

Page 86



   

 
 

 
Healthwatch        Heather Fairfield  
 
Primary Care Board      Varun Jairath 

Tracey Vell 
 

Provider Federation Board      Riona Grainger  
            
TfGM         Simon Warbuton 
 
 
HCB 01/20 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

 
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and apologies for absence were received from  
 
Evelyn Asante-Mensah, Joan Beresford, Chris Brookes, Kathy Cowell, Louise Robson, Joanne 
Roney and Neil Thwaite. 
 
HBC 02/20 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 
HCB 03/20 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 25 OCTOBER 2019 
 
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 25 October 2019. 

 

RESOLVED/- 

That the meeting minutes be approved as a correct record. 

 

HCB 04/20 CHIEF OFFICER REPORT   

 

Jon Rouse, Chief Officer, GM Health and Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP), provided the 

GM Health and Care Board (the Board) with an update on activity relating to health and care 

across the Partnership. The update included key highlights relating to performance, 

transformation, quality, finance and risk. A summary of the key discussions and decisions of 

the Partnership Board were also provided.  

 

 It was advised that the first reported case of Coronavirus had been confirmed in the 

UK. The co-ordinated response would be jointly managed between Public Health 

England and the NHS. If any suspected cases arise in GM, assessments would take 

place at the infectious diseases specialist centre at North Manchester General 

Hospital. National advice and guidance would be followed.  

 It was reported that the last step in completing the response to the NHS Long Term 

Plan was to secure clarity on the funding that would come into Greater Manchester 

via the NHS LTP. Clarity on levels of transformation funding would enable 

Page 87



   

 
 

prioritisation on where resources were committed over the period to 2024. 

Negotiations with NHSE/I continue on the two main sources for transformation 

funding, fair share and targeted funding.  

 An update on progress of the Pennine Acute Transaction was provided. Salford Royal 

NHS Foundation Trust (SRFT) would formally acquire the Oldham, Bury and Rochdale 

sites as part of its Northern Care Alliance NHS Group (NCA). Manchester University 

NHS Foundation Trust (MFT) would officially obtain NMGH as part of the Manchester 

Single Hospital Service. A complex acquisition process and significant capital 

investment being sought from Government has meant that it was not possible to 

complete the formal acquisitions by 1 April 2020. An overview of the agreed interim 

management arrangements was provided and it was anticipated that the 

acquisitions would both be complete by March 2021. 

 Gratitude was extended to those across the system in GM who have worked 

collaboratively hard and contributed to meet the quarter one to three financial 

performance. It was anticipated that quarter four and the next financial year would 

be more arduous. 

 Front line staff who have worked tirelessly through winter pressures and demand 

were acknowledged. NWAS were recognised for their significant co-operation with 

hospital staff in handover of patients and transitions.  

 Access, recovery and 18 week waiting time standards against the key constitutional 

standards for mental health was reported to be improving.  

 

In recognition of the constraints of finances over the forthcoming period and anticipated 

funding to GM, members considered it critical to ensure that existing programmes were 

sustained.  

 

It was reported that attendances at A&E departments over the winter period had increased 

by 3% nationally, 7% in the North West and 11% in GM, the reasons for GM being an outlier 

were requested. It was advised that the increase over the winter period was 8% and the 

analysis suggested a spike in self-referrals and an increase in certain GP referrals. The reason 

for the increase was thought to be that patients believe that this was the quickest and best 

way to be treated. Further analysis would be required to reduce demand at the front door 

of A& E departments. However it was believed that patient’s expectations needed to be 

managed along with communicating the community offer more clearly and simpler.  

 

RESOLVED/- 

 

That the content of the report be noted.  

 
HCB 05/20 HALF YEAR BUSINESS PLAN REVIEW  

 

Warren Heppolette, Executive Lead, Strategy and System Development presented the Half-

Year Business Plan Review to the Board. Key areas of progress along with the recognition of 

areas of challenge were highlighted.  

Page 88



   

 
 

Members were informed that the rate of smokers had reduced and rates of inactivity were 

decreasing twice as fast as the national average. It was advised that 8.2% of GM children were now 

starting school ready to learn and there were particularly strong improvements for disadvantaged 

children. Focused Care had supported over 2,500 households with challenges such as mental health 

issues, alcohol addiction, drug addiction, domestic violence, social isolation, debt and 

unemployment. Furthermore, targets were being exceeded in the work on HIV.  

In a clear commitment to tackling climate change and promoting sustainable development, the 

Partnership declared a climate emergency in August 2019 and developed the first Sustainable 

Management Development Plan. In acknowledgement of the impact rough sleeping and 

homelessness has on both physical and mental health, a £2m investment case had supported the 

continuation of the emergency rough sleeper programme ‘A Bed Every Night’.  

It was advised that each GP Practice in GM is now part of a Primary Care Network and each locality 

had continued to deliver the national priority of full population coverage of 7-day access for primary 

care. 

Implementation of the Mental Health Strategy including innovative services such as the GM Mentally 

Healthy Schools and Colleges Project and the University Students Service Pilot had continued along 

with strong performance against Mental Health standards. 

Good or outstanding ratings for care homes in GM had now reached 80% of those inspected. 

Furthermore, significant progress had been made with regards to social prescribing referrals in the 

year to date against the annual ambition.  

In support of the highlight report, the Mayor of Greater Manchester welcomed the improvements in 

social care with 80% of those nursing homes inspected rated good or outstanding. Furthermore,   

the continued delivery of the Mental Health Strategy which was translating into positive 

performance across NHS Constitution Standards and ahead of the rest of the country in many cases.  

In highlighting Appendix 4.1 in the Chief Officer report, the Mayor identified that developments in 

population health programmes were not necessarily having a positive impact on some of the key 

NHS constitutional targets. He highlighted to GM leaders the locality dashboard at Appendix 4.1, 

which he described as providing a clear picture for each locality of the core performance issues in 

relation to GM and the rest of England.   

Under the next phase of health devolution, he requested leaders to take steps to study if 

implementation of integrated working at place based level was translating into the release of 

pressure and demand across the acute health system. He suggested that localities should review the 

dashboard and consider if it offered the correct level of data. He further proposed that feedback on 

how it could be improved further should be provided to the GMSCP. 

The Chief Officer informed the Board that it was recognised that there were fundamental 

differences across geographies in GM, therefore a version would be developed which would 

compare statistical neighbours. 

RESOLVED/- 

 

1. That the content of the presentation be noted.  

Page 89



   

 
 

2. That the locality dashboard at Appendix 4.1 of the Chief Officer report at agenda 

item 4, be reviewed regularly by locality leaders to monitor performance against the 

key NHS constitutional standards.  

3. That it be noted that the dashboard would be improved further to provide 

comparison for statistical neighbours. 

 

HCB 06/20 TAMESIDE LOCALITY PRESENTATION 
 
Stephen Pleasant, Chief Executive, Tameside Council and Chief Accountable Officer, 
Tameside and Glossop CCG introduced a presentation which provided an overview of the 
Living Life Well Programme. 
 
Pat McKelvey, Head of Mental Health and Learning Disability Commissioning reported on 
the work undertaken in Tameside and Glossop to co-produce a new model for improving 
mental health within neighbourhoods.  The gaps in provision and concerns which led to the 
creation of a new model of mental health care which would, as well as reducing problems or 
eliminating symptoms, focus on providing support to people to get and keep well was 
provided. 

Councillor Brenda Warrington, Leader Tameside Council acknowledged the ambitious work 
undertaken on the innovative integrated model of care driven by Pat McKelvey as an 
integral feature of Tameside’s Corporate Plan. The determined approach to assist people to 
become mentally well and remain well, removing stigma associated with mental health 
would continue as part of a long term programme. 

Members requested further information with regards to work undertaken in Tameside 
borough to address mental health issues with children. An overview of the significant 
partnership approach for children and young people enabling and supporting schools was 
provided. It was advised that both schools and parents with the correct level of support 
were a significant resource to address the mental health challenges with younger people. 
 
It was acknowledged that other localities across GM could develop a model based on the 
shared learning of the innovative approach developed by both Tameside and Salford as pilot 
sites.  
 
The level and scope of future prescribing of anti-depressants was discussed and it was 
suggested that alternatives to prescribing should be readily available and funded. 
  
RESOLVED/- 
 
That the presentation be noted. 
 
HCB 07/20 PRIMARY CARE STRATEGY   
 
Sarah Price, Executive Lead for Population Health and Commissioning introduced a report 
which aimed to raise awareness of the refreshed Greater Manchester primary care strategy 
and primary care workforce strategy. Both strategies described the renewed ambition for 

Page 90



   

 
 

primary care and its contribution to the delivery of Taking charge: The next five years: Our 
prospectus’. 
 
It was advised that the five-year primary care strategy aimed to expand the traditional 
concept of primary care to create a much wider integrated health system to achieve the 
broader, long-term vision which would improve the health and wellbeing of Greater 
Manchester residents.  
 
The traditional model of primary care would evolve, with more focus on digitally enabled, 
multidisciplinary, integrated and preventative support, based in the right place for local 
populations. This would not only improve the quality of primary care delivery and improved 
population health outcomes, it would also ensure its future sustainability.  
 
Dr Tracey Vell, Chief Executive, Manchester Local Medical Committee and GP supplemented 
this by providing an overview of achievements so far, further work required and priorities.  
 
Varun Jairath, Pharmacist, Greater Manchester Primary Care Board commented that 
community pharmacy leads had been appointed to support the sixty seven Primary Care 
Networks to build on the innovative approaches already introduced, for example the 
community pharmacy referral service.   
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the progress to date be noted. 
2. That the refreshed Primary Care Strategy be agreed. 
3. That the Primary Care Workforce Strategy be agreed. 

 
HCB 08/20 DEMENTIA UNITED (DU) AND ALZHEIMER’S SOCIETY PARTNERSHIP 

AGREEMENT 
 
Warren Heppolette presented to the Board for endorsement, a partnership agreement 
between Dementia United and Alzheimer’s Society which set out the scope of collaboration, 
along with the key objectives and principles of the collaboration. Furthermore, the respective 
roles and responsibilities of the partners in relation to the collaboration.  
 
Jeremy Hughes, Chief Executive, Alzheimer’s Society welcomed the opportunity to present to 
the Board an agreement to work in Partnership to contribute significantly to achieve the 
shared ambition of a transformation of the health, wellbeing and experience of people living 
with dementia, and Carers in Greater Manchester, together making GM the best place to live 
with dementia. 
 
The Chair acknowledged the care and support provided by the VCSE in localities across GM to 
those with Dementia,  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the content of this partnership agreement be noted; and 

Page 91



   

 
 

2. That the direction of travel be endorsed. 
 
HCB 09/20 GREATER MANCHESTER HEALTH AND JUSTICE STRATEGY  
 
Jane Pilkington, Deputy Director for Population Health, GMHSCP presented a report which 
introduced the new Integrated Health and Justice Strategy for the Greater Manchester with 
the aim to address the gap in health and social wellbeing for people seen in the criminal justice 
system.   
 
It was advised that the strategy had been in development for around twelve months which 
had allowed for an ongoing and iterative process of engagement with strategic and 
operational colleagues and people who have direct experience of the criminal justice system.  
 
Emma Dickenson, Service Manager, GMP Mental Health Tactical Advice Service provided an 
outline of the commissioned work being undertaken on health and justice in the context of 
the increased mental health and social crisis demand on Greater Manchester Police. 

An overview of the effective team working and what this subsequently meant for the public 
interacting with GMP along with next steps was provided.  

Deputy Mayor, Police and Crime, Baroness Bev Hughes thanked Emma for providing a 
helpful insight of health and justice integration in practice from an individual and 
organisational point of view. The broader vision and commitment of both Jon Rouse and 
Jane Pilkington was acknowledged in leading the development of the first integrated health 
and justice strategy in the country as part of the broader Public Service Reform agenda. 

 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the new Integrated Health and Justice Strategy for Greater Manchester be 
received and noted.  

2. That the strategy be shared with colleagues in their own organisations, helping to 
promote knowledge of its introduction, focus and priorities. 

 
HCB 10/20 DATES AND TIMES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Members were notified of the following date and time of future meetings: 
 

 Friday 27 March, 10am, Number One Riverside, Rochdale Council Offices  
 
HCB 11/20 AOB 
 
The Chair advised members that it was the final day for Jon Rouse in his role as Chief Officer 
for GMHSCP. Lord Peter Smith thanked Jon for the commitment, enthusiasm and expertise 
he had provided. His passion for improving health and wellbeing services, particularly around 
children’s health was acknowledged. The significant improvements made throughout his 
period as Chief Officer were recognised. 
 

Page 92



   

 
 

The Mayor of Greater Manchester, Andy Burnham echoed the views of the Chair and 
acknowledged the passion, rigour and innovative approach adopted by Jon in the first phase 
of health devolution in Greater Manchester. The role he had played in making progress with 
school readiness, the prioritisation of children and young people’s mental health along with 
GM being the first area in the country to publish waiting time data for access to children’s 
mental health services was acknowledged. Personal gratitude for the recognition made for 
the role of health services in preventing rough sleeping was extended by the Mayor. 
 
On behalf of Commissioners, Tom Tasker, Clinical Chair, Salford CCG thanked Jon for the 
pivotal role he had played with the development of the GM Joint Commissioning Board and 
the personal support provided to him in his role as Co- Chair of the JCB. On behalf of GM 
Commissioners, he wished Jon well in his new role. 
 
Jon thanked members their comments and reflected on the following quotes; 
 
“What is that feeling when you're driving away from people and they recede on the plain till 
you see their specks dispersing? - it's the too-huge world vaulting us, and it's good-bye. But 
we lean forward to the next crazy venture beneath the skies.” 
Jack Kerouac – On The Road 
 
“Anything can happen if you let it” 
Mary Poppins 
 
 
 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GM HEALTH AND CARE BOARD 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING HELD ON 26 MARCH 2021   
 

 
Bolton Council        Councillor Susan Baines 
          
Bury Council        Councillor Andrea Simpson  
        Geoff Little  
 
Manchester CC       Councillor Richard Leese (Chair) 
          
Oldham Council       Councillor Zahid Chauhan 
        Mike Barker 
 
Rochdale Council       Councillor Dalaat Ali 

Councillor Allen Brett 
        Steve Rumbelow 
 
Salford CC        Mayor Paul Dennett 
        Tom Stannard 
          
Stockport MBC      Councillor Jude Wells 
        Mark Fitton 
 
Tameside Council       Councillor Brenda Warrington 
        Councillor Eleanor Wills 

Stephanie Butterworth 
Steven Pleasant  

 
Trafford Council       Councillor Jane Slater 
        Sara Todd 
            
Wigan Council       Councillor Keith Cunliffe 
        Stuart Cowley 
 
Bolton CCG       Wirin Bhatiani 
        Su Long 
 
Manchester Health and Care Commissioning   Ruth Bromley   
 
Salford CCG         Tom Tasker  
 
Stockport CCG       Emma Ince 
 
Tameside & Glossop CCG      Asad Ali 
 

Page 95



   

 
 

Wigan CCG        Tim Dalton 
        Craig Harris  
 
GM Mental Health NHS Trust     Rupert Nichols 
MFT         Kathy Cowell 
 
Northern Care Alliance NHS     Michael Luger 
 
NWAS         Daren Mochrie 
 
Pennine Care NHS FT      Evelyn Asante-Mensah 
 
Salford NHS FT       Chris Brookes 
 
Tameside NHS FT      Karen James 
        Jane McCall 
 
The Christie        Roger Spencer 
 
Wrightington, Wigan & Leigh NHS FT    Tony Warne 
 
GM Mayor       Andy Burnham 
 
GMCA        Eamonn Boylan 

Julie Connor 
Lindsay Dunn 
Andrew Lightfoot 

        Liz Treacy 
        Steve Wilson 
 
GMCVO        Alex Whinnom 
 
GM Joint Health Scrutiny Members     Councillor Shoab Akhtar 
        Councillor Mark Cunningham 
        Councillor Keith Holloway 

Councillor Colin McLaren 
Councillor Margaret Morris 
Councillor John O’Brien (Chair) 

 
GM Health and Social Care Partnership Team  Warren Heppolette  

Claire Norman 
Sarah Price 
Janet Wilkinson 

 
Primary Care Board      Stuart Allan 

Janet Castrogiovanni  
Luvjit Kandula 

Page 96



   

 
 

Tracey Vell 
 

Provider Federation Board      Martyn Pritchard  
 
Public Health England      David Herne 
 
VCSE Representation       Stewart Lucas 
        Lynne Stafford 
            
 
HCB 01/21 WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

 
Apologies for absence were received from the following; Councillor Sean Fielding (Oldham 
Council) Christine Outram (The Christie), Dharmesh Patel (PCB), Jeff Schryer (Bury CCG) and 
Carolyn Wilkins (Oldham Council). 
 
HBC 02/21 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
Sir Richard Leese welcomed all to his inaugural meeting as Chair of the GM Health and Care 
Board. He placed on record his appreciation to the former Chair, Lord Peter Smith for his 
role in pioneering health and care devolution. Collective gratitude for his groundbreaking 
approach to delivering successful health and care integration across Greater Manchester 
was provided on behalf of the Board.  
 
The Chair provided an overview of why he had been keen to take on the role of Chair of the 
Health and Care portfolio, and in doing so explained he felt there was further work to be 
done over the forthcoming five-year period with a re-emphasis on population health, 
reducing health inequalities and becoming a Marmot City Region. In addition, the further 
development of a place-based approach and the alignment of health and care spend with 
partners and communities were a priority.  
 
Greater collaboration would be required to tackle unjustifiable variability across the system 
and improvements that would enable care closer to home. It was further recognised that 
there would be extensive learning from the experiences of the pandemic, a great deal of 
which could be embedded in everyday practice.   
 
It was proposed that the White Paper ‘Integration and innovation: working together to 
improve health and social care for all’ would assist in the delivery of objectives for Greater 
Manchester over the next five years.  
   
HCB 03/21 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 31 JANUARY 2020 
 
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2020. 

 

RESOLVED/- 

That the meeting minutes be approved as a correct record. 

Page 97



   

 
 

 

 

HCB 04/21 CHIEF OFFICER REPORT   

 

In presenting the Chief Officer report, Sarah Price, Interim Chief Officer, GM Health and 

Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) thanked Sir Richard Leese for the support provided over 

the last twelve-month period.  

 

The report provided the GM Health and Care Board with an update on issues relating to the 

Greater Manchester health and care system and the people who work in it. It featured 

system updates from the GM People Board, the Shining a Light on Suicide campaign, the 

‘Better Homes, Better Neighbourhoods, Better Health’ programme, the Greater Manchester 

Community Coordination Cell and Hospital Cell, and an update on finance.  

 

Key issues highlighted to the Board included:  

 

 Dr Wirin Bhatiani had announced his retirement from his role as Chair of Bolton CCG. 

On behalf of the Board, thanks were extended to Wirin for his contributions over 

many years to both Bolton and Greater Manchester, particularly regarding his 

support for driving the work to reduce health inequalities and population health. 

 Martyn Pritchard had been appointed as the new Interim Managing Director of the 

Greater Manchester Provider Federation Board. Martyn was acknowledged for his 

leadership at Trafford CCG and continuing work in an important role in GM. 

 The significant role and contribution of staff throughout the pandemic was 

recognised. The Greater Manchester People Board, chaired by Karen James, 

continued to meet during 2020/21 to monitor delivery of the GM People Plan and 

oversee the allocation of HEE (Health Education England) Workforce Development 

investment. 

 The GM Well-being toolkit created for all health and care staff was recommended as 

a resource to help the workforce navigate the current extensive wellbeing offers 

available in one handy guide.  

 An overview of the work in mental health, in particular the campaign ‘Shining a Light 

on Suicide’ was provided.  

 The Better Homes, Better Neighbourhoods, Better Health “Tripartite Agreement” 

between Greater Manchester Housing Providers, Greater Manchester Health and 

Social Care Partnership and Greater Manchester Combined Authority was outlined as 

an area of collaboration to prioritise good health in future decisions about planning, 

new homes, and the support offered to residents. 

 An update on the development work of both system response cells set up in GM as a 

result of NHS England’s emergency arrangements: the Community Coordination Cell 

and the Hospital Cell was provided. 

 Members were informed of the current progress and focus of the vaccination 

programme in GM. 

Page 98



   

 
 

 The significant challenges to recovery applicable to the entire GM system were 

outlined in the overview of planning for elective recovery which was being led by the 

GM Hospital Cell and supported by the Community Coordination Cell. 

 It was advised that the approach to financial management in the NHS in 2020/21 had 

been profoundly affected by the COVID 19 pandemic with the suspension of the 

normal NHS finance regime for the duration of the financial year. 

 

RESOLVED/- 

 

That the content of the report be noted.  

 
HCB 05/21 GM HEALTH AND CARE RESPONSE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

 

The report provided a summary of how the health and social care system in Greater 

Manchester had responded to the COVID-19 pandemic over the last year and illustrated 

how partners in Greater Manchester continued to work collaboratively to meet the 

challenge of COVID-19 since March 2020.  

 

The Health and Care Board were provided with an overview of the work done by the 

Greater Manchester Health and Social Care system in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, 

focusing on the significant work undertaken across all health and care organisations, the 

efforts of front-line staff and the coordination of the response at the Greater Manchester 

level enabling the provision of mutual aid and support, ensuring a collaborative GM 

response. 

 

RESOLVED/- 

 

That the update provided be noted. 

 

HCB 06/21 DELIVERING THE GM MODEL - VISION, OBJECTIVES, AND FUNCTIONS & 

BUILDING ON GM’S DEVOLUTION INTEGRATION EXPERIENCE – CREATING 
THE INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEM (ICS) 

 
Warren Heppolette, Executive Lead, Strategy and System Development, GMHSCP 
introduced a presentation which provided the foundations and principles of the approach to 
continue Greater Manchester’s devolution experience by creating the GM Integrated Care 
System (ICS). 

The key features of the GM and national processes and details of the GM journey were 
outlined. The Board were provided with a summary of significant achievements prior to 
Covid which were enabled by a strong foundation for system working.  
 
It was recognised that there had been challenges with the delivery and the achievement of 

some of the objectives set out in the five-year plan to improve health and social care, Taking 

Charge. Notably relating to NHS constitutional standards along with a recognition of 

Page 99



   

 
 

unwarranted variation across GM in relation to access and standards of care delivery. The 

opportunities and proposals to address areas requiring improvement were outlined to 

Members.  

 

An overview of the aims of the White Paper ‘Integration and innovation: working together 

to improve health and social care for all’ were provided alongside the objectives and 

priorities to improve the health and wellbeing of all the residents of Greater Manchester.  

 

It was advised that the original objectives set out in Taking Charge and the MoU had been 

reaffirmed and in doing so four main priorities had been identified. GM’s approach to 

implementation and the main features of the GM model were outlined. It was recognised 

that a programme of comprehensive engagement with all ten localities and system leaders 

leading to further refinements of the proposals outlined in the paper aligned to the 

Parliamentary process was required. Furthermore, it was proposed that the programme of 

engagement would focus on the key issues which had emerged from the work so far.   

 

The transition period to achieve the changes were outlined and it was noted that the 

legislative timeline anticipated that the new arrangements would be in place by April 2022. 

 

An update in relation to the work undertaken on Clinical, Care and Professional Leadership 

on behalf of the GM Medical Executive was provided along with assurance that the draft 

proposals would be shared across the system and extensive engagement would be 

undertaken. The value in the development of clinical, care and professional leadership in 

place to ensure accessibility was recognised. Lessons learned throughout the pandemic in 

relation to patient pathway transformation which were sensitive to patient need and 

working towards a value based health care system based on trust and collaboration at place 

across all sectors were considered. It was proposed that the revised ICS model would build 

on the maturity of relationships developed across GM over time. The collective system wide 

approach adopted throughout the pandemic was acknowledged and further collaboration 

was supported.   

 

The Board reflected on the opportunities of the health devolution journey over previous 

years and provided support for the potential benefits of White Paper recognising the 

capacity to build on the strong partnership approach developed in GM over the last five 

years.  

 

A focus on reducing health inequalities by engaging diverse citizens and communities in co-

production was supported to improve health and life outcomes. The primacy of place and 

ensuring financial flows and budgets were devolved at place and neighbourhood level were 

considered imperative to respond to the wider determinants of health inequalities. 

 

Additional strengthening of public service reform and partnership working across the whole 

public sector system was advocated. An asset-based approach to workforce and a 

Page 100



   

 
 

recognition of the skill base across organisations where staff faced a degree of uncertainty 

was recommended to reduce any staff movement away from GM. 

 
Further clarity on next steps, detail of the engagement process and potential resource 
allocation were requested. It was suggested that the process of engagement would enable 
the formulation of co-designed draft proposals which would further develop the detail in 
areas such as resource allocation in a fully participatory manner. It was advised that the GM 
ICS would not be an institution but would instead represent all partners across the system in 
each of the districts and neighbourhoods within GM. The opportunities to design and 
develop specific objectives and ambitions relative to GM to confirm and pursue were 
emphasised. 
 
In light of the pandemic, members considered the significant scale of the challenge faced by 
the health and care system in relation to elective care and it was proposed that financial 
clarity was important. It was suggested that the findings of the Marmot Review regarding 
the social and economic cost of health inequalities had exacerbated as a result of Covid and 
moving forward health and care reform should respond to the challenges faced.  
 
Greater streamlining of bureaucracy to enable delivery on the front line appropriately 
resourced to best serve the people of GM acknowledging challenging times ahead was 
considered imperative.  
 
In summary, the Chair acknowledged the comments made by the Board in relation to health 
inequalities and the route to tackle them by providing an enhanced focus on population 
health. The fundamental approach of public service reform was emphasised to be the 
design of services around people, of which place and communities were the route. The 
importance of stabilising the workforce during the change process was acknowledged to be 
of vast importance for which an approach was being developed. Consideration of how 
health and care expenditure was aligned to greater public service and private expenditure 
as part of the totality to maximise benefit for population health was emphasised. 
Furthermore, the purpose for financial flows needed to be clear. 
 
It was proposed that the process of engagement would include cross representation across 
sectors and localities and comments made by the Board were acknowledged and would be 
explored in greater detail throughout the engagement process.  
 
RESOLVED/- 
 

1. That the proposal in relation to the vision and objectives for the NHS ICS body and 
the Health & Care Partnership together be approved. 

2. That the process and proposed next steps to develop the GM collective approach to 
build upon all that has been achieved on the journey so far be approved. 

 
HCB 07/21 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
To be arranged and advised. 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 
HELD ON FRIDAY 11 DECEMBER 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 
PRESENT: 

Councillor Mark Aldred (in the Chair) Wigan Council 
Councillor Stuart Haslam Bolton Council 
Councillor Richard Gold Bury Council 
Councillor Sean Fielding GMCA 
Councillor John Leech Manchester City Council 
Councillor Angeliki Stogia Manchester City Council 
Councillor Dzidra Noor Manchester City Council 
Councillor Naeem Hassan Manchester City Council 
Councillor Howard Sykes Oldham Council 
Councillor Phil Burke Rochdale Council 
Councillor Shah Wazir Rochdale Council 
Councillor Roger Jones Salford Council 
Councillor Barry Warner Salford Council 
Councillor David Meller Stockport MBC 
Councillor Doreen Dickinson Tameside MBC 
Councillor Warren Bray 
Councillor Peter Robinson 

Tameside MBC 
Tameside MBC  

Councillor Nathan Evans Trafford Council 
Councillor Steve Adshead Trafford Council 
  
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 

Bob Morris Chief Operating Officer, TfGM 
Alison Chew Interim Head of Bus Services, TfGM 
Kate Brown Director of Corporate Affairs, TfGM 
Richard Nickson Programme Director for Cycling & Walking, 

TfGM 
David Sidebottom Transport Focus 
Qulzam Bhatti BAME Connect 
Stephen Rhodes Customer Director, TfGM 
Rachel Hutchins Senior Travel Information Manager, TfGM 
Chris Cordwell Delivery Officer, TfGM 
Gwynne Williams Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA 
Nicola Ward Governance Officer, GMCA 

 
 

GMTC 79/20 APOLOGIES 
 

1. That apologies be received and noted from Cllr Joanne Marshall (Wigan), Councillor Atteque 
UrRehman (Oldham) and Eamonn Boylan (Chief Executive Officer GMCA & TfGM). 
 

2. That it be noted that Councillor Roy Walker could not join the meeting due to technical 
difficulties. 

Page 103



2 

 

 
 

GMTC 80/20 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

Resolved /- 
 
1. That future dates of the GMTC and sub committees be shared again with all members. 

 
2. That thanks be expressed to the Transport Operators in attendance including Northern, 

Arriva, Go North West, Nexus Move, Diamond, One Bus and Stagecoach. 
 

3. That it be noted that the procedure for petitions has been shared with Members. 
 

 
GMTC 81/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Resolved /- 
 
That Councillor Phil Burke declared an interest in relation to item 7 (Transport Network 
Performance) as an employee of Metrolink. 
 

 
GMTC 82/20 MINUTES OF THE GM TRANSPORT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 9 OCTOBER 2020 

 
Resolved /- 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held 9 October 2020 be approved. 

 
 

GMTC 83/20 MINUTES OF THE GMTC SUB COMMITTEES HELD IN NOVEMBER 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That the minutes of the following sub committees be noted – 

 Bus Services – 13 November 2020 

 Metrolink and Rail – 20 November 2020 
 

 
GMTC 84/20 GMTC WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Resolved /- 

 
That the GM Transport Committee Work Programme be noted. 

 
 

GMTC 85/20 TRANSPORT NETWORK PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

Page 104



3 

 

 
Bob Morris, Chief Operating Officer TfGM, updated the Committee on the latest performance 
information for the public transport network in GM.  The general decline of passenger numbers 
had continued, however since the end of lockdown 2, there had been a slight increase in 
patronage, with the strongest recovery being experienced on the bus network. 
 
Trambassadors had recently been employed to work across the Metrolink network, providing 
advice and encouragement to passengers in relation to social distancing measures and general 
travel information.  Thanks were expressed to operators for their support in ensuring passengers 
had access to alternative transport when a road traffic collision affected the Metrolink Ashton line 
recently.  In relation to this incident, Members questioned as to why it took so long to re-instate 
the line.  Officers confirmed that this was a significantly serious incident in which the driver of a 
van was trapped and had to be freed from the vehicle.  There was damage caused to the 
Metrolink infrastructure above and below ground which had to be thoroughly checked and 
temporarily repaired before the line could re-open. 
 
Members of the Committee asked for further information regarding face covering compliance on 
Metrolink, as anecdotal reports had indicated that compliance remained low on some routes.  
There were concerns raised that through the distribution of face coverings that members of the 
public were not taking responsibility for following the rules and were therefore not being 
prosecuted for breaking them.  Officers reported that a higher presence of Travel Safe staff on the 
network had improved compliance, and that an inform, educate and advise approach was 
sufficient to deal with most cases, however enforcement would continue to be used where a 
person failed to comply. 
 
Traffic flows on the highways were reported as c. 86% and cycling levels remained significantly 
higher than pre-covid levels at c. 76%. 
 
Train operators reported that performance remained strong, but patronage levels were still low at 
c. 26% pre covid levels, equating to c. 45 persons per train.  11 additional Travelsafe officers had 
been appointed to the GM train network, which was hoped to further enhance customer insight.  
Northern informed the Committee that there had been a series of planned cancellations on the 
Manchester-Liverpool line due to driver shortages, however as resource levels had improved 
there were no further foreseen cancellations.  TransPennine Express reported that over the last 48 
hours they had been in discussions with Trade Unions regarding a potential industrial action.  It 
had been informally reported that negotiations had been successful and there would be no strike 
action, however this was yet to be formally advised.   
 
Members questioned the continued poor performance of the Liverpool – Trafford Park rail line 
which had experienced a number of issues, and whether there had been improvements recently.  
Northern confirmed that over the last three days there had been a number of planned 
cancellations, however alternative routes had been provided in every case.  These cancellations 
were necessary due to a spike in covid related absence in the Liverpool depot, with an 
unprecedented 35% of staff non-attendance. 
 
The progress on the Rose Hill line was welcomed by Members, however it had been noted that 
some of the units on this line did not have the facility to display detailed messages on screen.  
Northern were asked whether there were plans to improve this function.  It was confirmed that 
the legacy fleet were going through a refurbishment programme which was 90% complete, but 

Page 105



4 

 

comments and suggestions for further improvements would be welcomed.  Members added that 
this function would also be useful to enhance social distancing messaging. 
 
In relation to current works at Hyde Central and Hyde North rail stations, members questioned as 
to why the current platform was not being reinstated.  Northern agreed to take this query away 
and report back directly. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That it be noted that Northern would speak to Cllr Meller with regards to the display screens 

on its older fleet vehicles. 
 

3. That it be noted that Northern would bring an update on the work being undertaken to make 
vehicles fully accessible to a future meeting of the committee. 
 

4. That it be noted that Northern would speak directly to Cllr Robinson with regards to proposals 
for the platform extensions at Hyde North and Hyde Central. 
 
 

GMTC 86/20 TRAVEL AND JOURNEY SATISFACTION DURING COVID RESEARCH 
 

David Sidebottom, Transport Focus took the Committee through the latest research in relation to 
travel and journey satisfaction undertaken with 2000 people across England to provide a source of 
intelligence to transport providers. 
 
The research had highlighted that the number of journeys following lockdown 2 had increased 
more rapidly than following the initial lockdown, the use of cars had stabilised both in GM and 
across the UK and there were continued peaks for cycling and walking in good weather periods. 
 
With regards to public confidence in the public transport system, ¼ of respondents had reported 
that they were avoiding or had no reason to use public transport.  However, satisfaction amongst 
users was higher, with some regional variations.  This had indicated a clear perception gap 
between current users and non-users that needed to be addressed. 
 
Members expressed concern that there should be stronger enforcement in relation to face 
covering compliance but were aware of previous confrontation to operator staff in cases where 
they have approached passengers who were not complying.  The Committee recognised the 
importance of the right levels of enforcement when attempting to build back public confidence in 
the public transport network and welcomed the fact that there were now between 50-60 
Travelsafe officers working across Greater Manchester.  Officers reported that there had been 18 
fixed penalty notices issued as a result of non-compliance (in comparison there have been 154 
fixed penalty notices issued across the whole of the UK Rail network).  In addition, on Metrolink 
there had been over 4500 interventions including refused travel, asking people to wear a face 
covering, etc.  In comparison circa 70,000 interventions had been made for the reminder of the 
UK Rail Network.  
 
In relation to Spring 2021, Members questioned as to how the network would manage with an 

Page 106



5 

 

increase in passenger numbers as people began to be vaccinated, but social distancing measures 
remained.  Transport Focus had recently undertaken some additional research on the potential 
impact of the vaccine on passenger travel choices, which would be shared with the Committee. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That the slides shared at the meeting be circulated to Members. 

 
3. That further information on the enforcement of face coverings on the Metrolink and the 

wider network be brought to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 

4. That it be noted that Transport Focus would share the latest research on the impact of the 
imminent vaccine on passenger perceptions with the Committee once it was published. 
 
 

GMTC 87/20 WALKING PROGRAMME UPDATE 
 

Richard Nickson, Programme Director for Cycling & Walking TfGM introduced a report which 
explored the range of activities and measures being taken across GM to support the ambition of 
the 2040 Transport Strategy to increase walking trips by one third to over 2 million trips a day.  
Qulzam Bhatti from the BAME Connect Programme presented information to the Committee on 
her scheme that has connected people in Oldham through walking. 
 
Members welcomed the presentation and report and recognised the importance of walking for 
mental health and social interaction especially during this pandemic, however, were concerned 
that in some of the most deprived areas of GM walking was not easy due to a high number of cars 
parked on the pavement and concerns regarding traffic safety. 
 
It was suggested that the lessons learnt and the outcomes of the BAME Connect programme be 
shared across GM to encourage other areas to set up similar schemes and give equal 
opportunities to communities across the city region.  Members further suggested a short 
promotional video may be made that could be distributed to interested parties, with a specific 
focus on those communities who are often difficult to reach. 
 
The Committee were pleased to see a report that focussed on walking, and that there were 
champions like Qulzam taking the lead on such schemes across GM.  In relation to the Mayor’s 
Challenge Fund, Members asked whether this funding had been used within walking schemes, and 
if so, how many of such projects had been delivered and who were their target audience.  Officers 
reported a range of consultation exercises being undertaken with communities to establish their 
challenges when walking locally and identify projects that would improve connectivity or journey 
experience.  Members added that often there was no need for brand new routes, just small 
improvements to the routes already in place to improve access, safety and encourage more 
people to walk.  In relation to crossing schemes funded through the Mayor’s Challenge Fund, 
there had been 18 completed within phase 1, and further schemes being delivered within phase 2. 
 
Members urged for future schemes to look to prioritise walking routes for older people, ensuring 
their safety and feeling of being safe through provisions that protect pavement space and mitigate 

Page 107



6 

 

the risks of speeding vehicles etc.  Such schemes were envisaged to have minimal costs, but 
significant benefits, especially in relation to mental and physical health. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That information as to how the Mayors Challenge Fund had benefitted walking schemes be 

shared with the Committee. 
 

3. That further information on the Mode Shift Stars scheme be shared directly with Cllr Adshead. 
 

4. That it be noted that Qulzam Bhatti would be willing to share further information about the 
BAME Connect Walking Programme with any interested parties. 

 
 

GMTC 88/20 WINTER SERVICE PLAN 2020/21 
 

Stephen Rhodes, Customer Director TfGM introduced the Winter Service Plan and Rachel Hutchins 
Senior Travel Information Manager, TfGM gave further details on transport provision during the 
2020/21 winter period, including over Christmas and the New Year.  In particular, the use of data 
to indicate current behaviours, the anticipated hotspots on the network and planned 
interventions to mitigate any issues that may arise. 
 
There were no significant changes anticipated to public transport services over the Christmas and 
New Year period, and any alteration of tier allocation was also not expected to have any 
significant effect.   
 
Members expressed their concerns in relation to shopping hotspots and increased footfall in these 
areas.  Furthermore, if Greater Manchester were to move to tier 2 whether this would encourage 
further shopping and socialising and cause issues on the public transport network.  Officers 
confirmed that there were multi-disciplinary teams in place to review any changes to Government 
guidelines and ensure a prompt appropriate response.  It was anticipated that there would be a 
review of the tiering levels on the 16 December, and TfGM would continually update their 
communications to ensure that they were inline with the latest Government messaging. 
 
The Committee recognised that there would inevitably be a spike in cases following the Christmas 
period, and therefore stronger enforcement, increased communications and a greater visibility of 
Travelsafe officers would be particularly important during this time.  Officers confirmed that there 
would be a range of initiatives taking place in early 2021 to support Greater Manchester to build 
back, support people to live with Covid and encourage people to travel again at an appropriate 
time. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That specific data in relation to transport interventions around the Rock at Bury be shared 

with Councillor Gold. 

Page 108



7 

 

 
 

GMTC 89/20 DATE AND TIME OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That the date of future meetings be noted. 

 
 

 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT 
COMMITTEE 

HELD ON FRIDAY 12 FEBRUARY 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
PRESENT: 

Councillor Mark Aldred (in the Chair) Wigan Council 
Councillor Stuart Haslam Bolton Council 
Councillor Richard Gold Bury Council 
Councillor Sean Fielding GMCA 
Councillor John Leech Manchester City Council 
Councillor Angeliki Stogia Manchester City Council 
Councillor Dzidra Noor Manchester City Council 
Councillor Naeem Hassan Manchester City Council 
Councillor Howard Sykes Oldham Council 
Councillor Phil Burke Rochdale Council 
Councillor Shah Wazir Rochdale Council 
Councillor Roger Jones Salford Council 
Councillor Barry Warner Salford Council 
Councillor David Meller Stockport MBC 
Councillor Doreen Dickinson Tameside MBC 
Councillor Warren Bray 
Councillor Peter Robinson 

Tameside MBC 
Tameside MBC  

Councillor Nathan Evans Trafford Council 
Councillor Steve Adshead Trafford Council 
  
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 

Bob Morris Chief Operating Officer, TfGM 
Kate Brown Director of Corporate Affairs, TfGM 
Lucy Kennon Head of Resilience & Business 

Continuity, TfGM 
Gareth Firth GMP 
Wasim Chaudhry GMP 
Joshua Kay Public Affairs Officer, TfGM 
Kate Green Travelsafe Partnership Officer, TfGM 
Nicola Kane Head of Strategic Planning & Research, 

TfGM 
Daniel Vaughan Head of Metrolink, TfGM 
Gwynne Williams Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA 
Lee Teasdale Governance Officer, GMCA 

 
 
 

GMTC 01/21 APOLOGIES 
 

That apologies be received and noted from Eamonn Boylan (Chief Executive of the GMCA 
and TfGM). 

 
 
 

Page 111



2 

 

GMTC 02/21 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That there were no Chairs announcements or items of urgent business. 

 
GMTC 03/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Resolved /- 
 
That Cllr Phil Burke declared a personal interest in item 7 (Transport Network Performance) 
as an employee of Metrolink. 
 

 
GMTC 04/21 MINUTES OF THE GM TRANSPORT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 11 

DECEMBER 2020 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held 11 December 2020 be approved. 
 

 
GMTC 05/21 MINUTES OF THE GMTC SUB COMMITTEES HELD IN JANUARY 2021 

 
It was highlighted that paragraph 2 of GMTMRC 06/21 made a reference to bus operators 
that should state train operators. 
 
Resolved /- 
 
That, subject to the above amendment, the minutes of the following sub committees be 
noted – 

 Bus Services – 15 January 2021 

 Metrolink and Rail – 22 January 2021 
 

 
GMTC 06/21 GMTC WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Resolved /- 

 
That the GM Transport Committee Work Programme be noted. 
 

 
GMTC 07/21 TRANSPORT NETWORK PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

 
Bob Morris, Chief Operating Officer TfGM, updated the Committee on the latest 
performance information for the public transport network in GM. 
 
It was advised that patronage across the network had been significantly impacted by the 
third national lockdown. The biggest reductions had been seen in rail-based forms of 
transport – currently carrying around 18% of pre-pandemic numbers. The region’s roads 
had seen the least impact, with 74% of pre-pandemic traffic still seen. Overall, it was 
considered that whilst the impacts on numbers had not been as severe as the first 

Page 112



3 

 

lockdown, there had been more impact than that seen during the second lockdown. 
 
In terms of general performance, the network had faired well, with the only impacts 
requiring mitigation measures being those arising from Storm Christoph, particularly in the 
south of the region. Heavy rail performance remained strong, a change in timetables had 
been seen on 18th January, the main impact of this had been a reduction in some services 
and the reduction of carriages on some services. Bus services saw a reduction in 
timetables at the end of January to around 85% of pre-Covid-19 milage levels, this involved 
the suspension of around 40% of school services. 
 
Members noted from the report that walking and cycling figures had been impacted by 
recent inclement weather. It was asked whether the figures included a specific breakdown 
of the patronage on the cycling Bee Network, and if these numbers had held up more than 
the general cycling figures. It was not known if data at that level of granularity was available 
for the Network, but officers would investigate and report back accordingly. 
 
It was noted that on p43 of the report on network safety, figures only went up to August 
2019. It was confirmed that this should have stated April 2020 and would be amended. 
 
Members stated that they would be interested to see how the mode shifts between different 
types of transport held up as the region moved out of the current restrictions. It was advised 
that TfGM would continue to monitor data trends as restrictions alleviated and would report 
back on any notable shifts. 
 
Members queried whether any operators had made proposals to their front-line staff 
concerning Covid-19 vaccinations given their frequent close contact with the public. TfGM 
confirmed that it had discussed with Department for Transport the possibility of prioritisation 
of public transport front-line staff for Covid-19 vaccination jabs and were progressing within 
GM the use of ‘spare’ vaccine at the end of the day to reduce wastage.  A recent example 
was KAM Metrolink frontline workers who were able to obtain a vaccination in this way. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the report be noted. 

 
2. That any information available regarding patronage levels of Bee Network cycling routes 

in comparison to general cycling numbers be fed back to Cllr Leech. 
 

3. That it be noted that the reference to August 2019 on p43 of the report be amended to 
read April 2020. 
 

4. That thanks be noted to all service operators for their hard work over the past two 
months in light of the continued Covid-19 concerns and inclement weather. 
 

5. That TfGM had discussed with the Department for Transport the prioritisation of public 
transport front-line staff for Covid-19 vaccination jabs and are progressing within GM the 
use of ‘spare’ vaccine at the end of the day to reduce wastage. 

 
 

GMTC 08/21 TRAVELSAFE PARTNERSHIP ANNUAL REPORT 
 

Bob Morris, Chief Operating Officer TfGM, introduced the report, stating that it had not been 
due until March, but given previous comments it was felt appropriate to bring it forward to 

Page 113



4 

 

the February meeting of the Committee. 
 
Lucy Kennon (Head of Resilience & Business Continuity, TfGM), together with Chief 
Superintendent Wasim Chaudhry and Chief Inspector Gareth Firth (Greater Manchester 
Police Transport Unit) gave a presentation to the Committee breaking down the work of the 
TravelSafe Partnership over the previous year. 
 
The Partnership had grown in 2020, with Arriva, Diamond and Go Ahead becoming formal 
partners. This had now been further augmented with the recent joining of Northern at the 
start of 2021.  
 
The bus networks had seen positive results throughout the year, with a 47% reduction in 
reported incidents of crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB) during 2020 compared to 2019. 
Broken down further, this represented a 60% reduction on the buses and/or at bus stops, 
and a 26% reduction at bus stations and interchanges. 
 
Metrolink had seen a 20% reduction in incidents of crime and ASB during 2020 compared 
to 2019. A key headline in the positive partnership activity with Metrolink had been the 45% 
reduction seen on the Oldham and Rochdale line, which had previously been considered a 
problem hotspot on the network. However, 2020 had also seen a 27% increase in incidents 
within the ‘City Zone’ of central Manchester. 
 
Specific activity work undertaken during 2020 included the TravelSafe Partnerships ‘Days 
of Action’. The aim of these were to provide passenger reassurance and the 
encouragement of safe travel; increase passenger confidence in regard to the reduction of 
crime and ASB; and during the period of the pandemic, to engage with and encourage 
passengers to wear face masks and adhere to social distancing regulations. 
 
GMP representatives highlighted the importance of problem solving at the local level. The 
challenges faced were considerably broader than a simple approach of patrolling and 
reassurance and included a whole suite of areas such as focussed work at particular 
interchanges, weapons searches and a focus on supporting the most vulnerable users of 
the network, such as the homeless and younger children. Beyond the tram and bus 
networks, a lot of partnership work also took place on the road and cycle networks, 
including the vital addressing of the ‘Fatal Five’ with road users. 
 
Further key achievements throughout the year had included the production of signposting 
cards for engaging with homeless persons; the piloting of a live chat for discreet incident 
reporting; a ‘Streetwatch’ pilot with a community group in Newhey, Rochdale; and continued 
joint engagement work with the GM Violent Crime Reduction Unit. 
 
Members asked about the relation of crime figures dropping and the lockdown. Had there 
been a relative increase in crime on the bus network due to the lower overall numbers using 
buses. It was advised that the bus network had retained reasonably high patronage levels 
compared to other transport modes. However, there had been a relative increase in terms 
of crime and patronage levels as many passengers who were usually found to cause 
trouble had still used the network more consistently than other users. There was also the 
concern that emptier networks made ASB more likely. 

 
Concerns were expressed by members about problems at isolated stations, with specific 
reference made to Hollinwood Metrolink stop in Oldham. The general low-level nuisance 
and disruption made by congregating youths on the platforms caused perceptions that 
stations such as this one were unsafe places, causing residents to shy away from making 

Page 114



5 

 

use of the network. GMP officers noted the concerns and emphasised the importance of 
intelligence gathering from local residents and their representatives to ensure that these 
issues were directly targeted by the Partnership (and other specialist resources where 
deemed necessary). 
 
Members also expressed concern about the perception that increasing levels of law 
breaking, particularly speeding, had been seen on the region’s roads since the outbreak of 
Covid-19. Members stated that they had spoken with residents who now felt it was pointless 
to continue reporting incidents of speeding. These issues were emphasised by a recent day 
of action on Mauldeth Road West which had seen speeds recorded of up to 107mph on a 
30mph stretch of road. It was queried whether precepts were being put into addressing 
road safety issues, and whether funding could be committed to further installing of speed 
cameras. 
 
GMP officers stated that extra patrol work was taking place to address the increases seen 
in incidents of speeding. There had been 67 fatal road deaths in the region in 2020, and it 
was clear that further collective work was needed to resolve this issue. There were also 
dedicated analysts looking at hotspots and the best approaches to enforcement activity and 
the siting of cameras. TfGM officers advised that more information on the ongoing work of 
the Road Safety Partnership could be brought to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
Thanks were expressed to Inspector Andrew Fern, Matthew Iddles (Metrolink), Lucy 
Kennon (TfGM), Kate Green (TfGM) and PC Gareth Walker for their partnership work in 
addressing issues related to the Oldham and Rochdale Metrolink line. It was stated that 
they had pulled the actions to combat issues on the line together brilliantly at and short 
notice and that it had not gone unnoticed by residents. 
 
Thanks were also expressed to all partners involved in the resolution of incidents at Wigan 
& Leigh bus stations with the conviction of the responsible party. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the TravelSafe Partnership annual report be noted. 

 
2. That concerns highlighted about the isolated nature of the Hollinwood Metrolink stop on 

the Oldham/Rochdale line be noted by officers. 
 

3. That concerns highlighted about the perceived increases in incidents of speeding road 
vehicles seen in the region be noted by officers. 
 

4. That an item on the work of the Road Safety Partnership be brought to a future meeting 
of the Committee. 
 

5. That thanks be noted on the record to Inspector Andrew Fern, Matthew Iddles 
(Metrolink), Lucy Kennon (TfGM), Kate Green (TfGM) and PC Gareth Walker for their 
partnership work in addressing issues related to the Oldham and Rochdale Metrolink 
line. 
 

6. That thanks be noted on the record for work undertaken at Wigan & Leigh bus stations 
resulting in a conviction for offenses committed. 

 
 

GMTC 09/21 TRANSPORT STRATEGY DELIVERY PLAN 

Page 115



6 

 

 
Simon Warburton, Transport Strategy Director, TfGM introduced a report highlighting the 
revised strategy now approved by CA alongside a 5-year delivery plan. It was advised that 
this had been particularly timely in the context of new funding opportunities, and the 
Delivery Plan showed that GM was now very clear in terms of where its priorities lay. 
However, the task was not complete and there was a series of activities now taking place 
that would take this agenda forward. 
 
Nicola Kane, Head of Strategic Planning & Research, TfGM, provided some of the further 
detail. Programmes included the Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 which 
sought to ensure that 50% of all journeys taken in the region by 2040 were either on foot, by 
bicycle or on public transport; the updating of the GM Mayor’s ‘Our Network’ scheme; net 
carbon zero by 2038 ambitions; and the development overall of the Clean Air Plan. 
 
Members discussed concerns about appropriate levels of infrastructure being in place 
ahead of the expected significant rises in domestic EV purchases in the coming years. 
Officers explained that a programme was underway that included the upgrading of legacy 
charging sites to now include 4th generation equipment to replace the 1st generation that 
funding had been secured for some years ago. A rollout of additional charging points was 
being undertaken month by month in GM, with extra funding having been made available 
through the Transforming Cities Fund to support this work over the next 12 months. The 
Fund would also look to project further into the future beyond the initial rollout phases as the 
infrastructure became increasingly complex. It was known that 40% of homes in GM did not 
have access to a driveway and residential charging points would therefore become an 
increasing issue. There would also of course eventually be a decision to be made on when 
the private sector began to take the lead role in the EV market. 
 
A mapping exercise was taking place looking at current and forward provision and 
projections on charging points – it was agreed that bringing the results of this exercise to a 
future meeting of the Committee would provide value. 
 
Members expressed concern that plans around decarbonisation had not been drawn out 
clearly within the delivery plan. Officers advised that carbon reduction was at the heart of all 
strategy documents, and funding sources were being considered for the quickest possible 
delivery of this. Further detail could be brought to the Committee throughout the year on the 
detail. 
 
Members noted how critical freight and the movement of goods would be to the plans. 
Officers stated that a lot of changes to goods activity had taken place over the last 12 
months, particularly in terms of retail activity – and it was expected that a certain level of 
this would continue into the future. Building Back Better would look at freight consolidation 
and managing the miles of freight on the road. 
 
Members referred moving towards electric buses. It was known that some operators were 
already undertaking trials on this – and it was asked that a report on progress around this 
be brought to a future meeting of the Bus Services Sub-Committee. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the publication of the GM Transport Strategy 2040 Refresh, Delivery Plan and 

Local Implementation Plans be noted. 
 

2. That the plans for developing the 2040 sub-strategies be noted. 

Page 116



7 

 

 
3. That concerns highlighted about the need for a significant EV charging point rollout 

programme be noted by officers. 
 

4. That a report on the mapping exercise regarding current and future projections for EV 
charging points be brought to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 

5. That reports providing more detail on the programmes being undertaken to address 
decarbonisation plans be brought to future meetings of the Committee. 
 

6. That a report detailing the work being undertaken by bus operators to introduce Electric 
and hybrid fuel busses to their fleets be brought to a meeting of the Bus Services Sub-
Committee. 

 
 

GMTC 10/21 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

 
The Chair advised the Committee of the sad news that former Bolton Councillor and 
member of the Committee, Norman Critchley, had recently passed away. The Committee 
held a minute’s silence in his memory. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
That the Sub Committees would next meet on 12 March 2021 (GM Bus Services Sub-
Committee) and 19 March 2021 (GM Metrolink and Rail Sub-Committee). 

 
 
 

 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE  
GREATER MANCHESTER TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

HELD ON WEDNESDAY 24 MARCH 2021 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
PRESENT: 

Councillor Mark Aldred (in the Chair) Wigan Council 
Councillor Richard Gold Bury Council 
Councillor John Leech Manchester City Council 
Councillor Angeliki Stogia Manchester City Council 
Councillor Dzidra Noor Manchester City Council 
Councillor Naeem Hassan Manchester City Council 
Councillor Howard Sykes Oldham Council 
Councillor Phil Burke Rochdale Council 
Councillor Shah Wazir Rochdale Council 
Councillor Roger Jones Salford Council 
Councillor David Meller Stockport MBC 
Councillor Doreen Dickinson Tameside MBC 
Councillor Warren Bray Tameside MBC 
Councillor Nathan Evans Trafford Council 
Councillor Steve Adshead Trafford Council 
Councillor Joanne Marshall Wigan Council 
 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 

Bob Morris Chief Operating Officer, TfGM 
Eamonn Boylan Chief Executive, GMCA & TfGM 
Kate Brown Director of Corporate Affairs, TfGM 
Richard Nickson Programme Director for Cycling & 

Walking, TfGM 
Simon Warburton Transport Strategy Director, TfGM 
Caroline Whittam Head of Rail Franchising, TfGM 
Gwynne Williams Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA 
Nicola Ward 
 

Governance Officer, GMCA 
 
 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Nigel Featham Go North West 
Sinead Griffin Network Rail 
Chris Jackson Northern 
Alistair Nuttall 
Matthew Rawlinson 
Lesley Adshead 

Arriva 
Diamond 
Nexus Move 

Lucja Majewski Transpennine Express 
 
 
 

GMTC 11/21 APOLOGIES 
 

1. That apologies be received and noted from Cllr Stuart Haslam (Bolton), Cllr Roy Walker 
(Bury), Cllr Sean Fielding (GMCA) and Barry Warner (Salford). 

Page 119



2 

 

 
2. That it be noted that Councillor Peter Robinson (Tameside) and Gary Nolan (One Bus) 

were unable to attend due to technical difficulties. 
 
 

GMTC 12/21 CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That there were no Chairs announcements or items of urgent business. 

 
GMTC 13/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
Resolved /- 
 
Councillor Phil Burke declared a personal interest in relation to item 6 – Transport Network 
Performance as an employee of Metrolink. 
 

 
GMTC 14/21 MINUTES OF THE GM TRANSPORT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 19 

FEBRUARY 2021 
 

Resolved /- 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held 19 February 2021 be approved. 

 
 

GMTC 15/21 MINUTES OF THE GMTC SUB COMMITTEES HELD IN MARCH 2021 
 

Resolved /- 
 
1. That the minutes of the Bus Services sub-committee held on 12 March 2021 be noted. 

 
2. That the minutes of the Metrolink and Rail sub-committee held on 19 March 2021 would 

be sent to the Committee by email for noting. 
 

 
GMTC 16/21 TRANSPORT NETWORK PERFORMANCE UPDATE 

 
Bob Morris, Chief Operating Officer TfGM gave an update on performance across all the 
GM transport network, noting the significant increase in patronage of 11% on average in 
March 2021compared to figures from February 2021.  This had specifically been seen in the 
over 65+ age group which could potentially to be attributed to an increase in confidence 
post vaccination.  Broken down, passenger levels had increased by 25% for bus services, 
26% on Metrolink, 16% on rail, 8.6% on the highway, 18% for cycling and 11% for walking 
over the past month. 
 
Northern had begun to prepare for a timetable uplift on the 17 May 2021, however with staff 
absence at 11.5% (due to shielding and isolating predominately) there were concerns that 
unless this changed, there may be resourcing issues.  Patronage levels were currently c. 
26% and significant work was underway in relation to station improvements including the 
carpark at Mills Hill, the gate line at Oxford Road, the subway at Romiley and the continued 

Page 120



3 

 

roll out of the LED replacement and painting programme.  There had been some concerns 
raised by local stakeholders in relation to service changes in the Smithy Bridge area and 
there had been a meeting scheduled with Northern to address these. 
 
The Manchester Recovery Task Force consultation had concluded, and findings were now 
being reviewed before an update would be provided to the Transport Committee in due 
course. 
 
Trans Pennine Express had undertaken a service uplift on the 29 March, which had brought 
the timetable to 82% of pre-covid coverage.  Patronage continued to increase steadily, with 
current levels reported at c. 17%.  The “We’re ready when you are” campaign was due to 
be launched over the coming week, with aspirations to further build passenger confidence 
in returning to the train network through reassurance messaging about the measures put in 
place to reduce the risk of Covid. 
 
Network Rail reported current patronage levels of c. 25% which was a significant increase 
from the start of the year (17%) and was felt to be a positive indicator of passengers 
returning to the network.  There had been some impact to operational and control 
departments as a result of covid cases amongst staff and staff being required to isolate, 
however this had been managed successfully.  There would be a joint industry approach to 
encouraging passengers back onto the network, ensuring passenger safety was foremost 
but emphasising the benefits of re-connecting with other people and enjoying the 
opportunity for staycations.  In light of the restriction easing roadmap, there had been some 
changes to planned engineering works over the bank holiday period and an overarching 
review of the approach to planning such works. 
 
Arriva were now delivering 80% of their pre-covid network coverage and despite some staff 
shielding, isolating or suffering from long covid symptoms there had been no impact to 
service levels.  Patronage had dropped slightly this week, with current levels reported as c. 
50%.  Revenue had also fallen this Tuesday, potentially attributed to people choosing to 
buy weekly tickets as they had returned to work. 
 
Nexus Move also reported an increase in patronage, especially notable in relation to the 
elderly population. 
 
Go Ahead reported that the industrial action was ongoing, however as a result of sub-
contracting some services there had been no impact to network coverage.  Dialogue with 
the union was good and it was hoped that there would be a resolution shortly to allow for 
further uplifts in the timetable. 

 
Members were concerned that as lockdown restrictions were eased and more people begin 
to travel, that the network would not be prepared for such an increase in patronage.  
Officers confirmed that there was ongoing dialogue with Government and DfT in relation to 
how to manage capacity on the public transport network as restrictions ease, however 
current guidance was to work from home where possible which would mitigate peak travel 
issues for the next phase.  There was work underway across all sectors to further spread 
peak travel as we approach the milestones on the 12 April and 17 May and ensure that 
those who are required to travel feel safe.  However, it was recognised that under current 
guidelines, social distancing remained a challenge for the public transport sector. 
 
In relation to the Manchester Recovery Task Force consultation, Members reported that 
Local Authorities had also submitted their own response in addition to the GMCA response.  
However, it was unclear as to whether there would be any impact to the timetable from now 

Page 121



4 

 

until the chosen proposal was implemented.  There had also been questions raised by local 
MPs on the matter, and it was suggested that they be updated more regularly.  A report on 
the proposed response including TfGM’s alternative proposal had been considered by the 
GMCA at their meeting on the 12 February and DfT had attended a meeting of the GMTC 
Metrolink & Rail Sub Committee on the 19 February to explain the work further.  The Task 
Force would now consider TfGM’s alternative proposal and undertake modelling exercises 
to determine whether it could be delivered.  The options would be considered further at the 
Rail North Committee mid-April and then it was anticipated that DfT would make a final 
decision on the preferred option by the end of April, this would be further consulted on 
during May and finally reported to Network Rail by 6 August.  The GM Transport Committee 
would be updated as appropriately.   
 
Resolved /- 

 
1. That the performance update be noted. 

 
2. That the updates provided by operators be noted. 

 
3. That an update on the work of the Manchester Recovery Task Force would be brought 

back to the Committee at a timely opportunity,  
 

4. That a future report to the Committee would include an update on the effectiveness of 
funding for road safety schemes. 

 
 

GMTC 17/21 GOVERNMENT BUDGET 2021 AND NATIONAL TRANSPORT 
STRATEGY 
 

Simon Warburton, Transport Strategy Director TfGM, introduced a report which informed 
Members of the transport headlines from the Government’s Budget announced on the 3 
March and highlighted some of the national transport strategies, policies and reviews which 
were expected to be published in the near future. 
 
There were a number if funding streams that would enable the delivery of the Transport 
Development Plan, including the Intracity Transport Fund and the Levelling Up Fund.  Work 
was underway across Local Authorities to deploy guidance for the Levelling Up Fund; 
however, officers were awaiting further guidance in relation to the Intracity Transport Fund. 
 
Members questioned the criteria for the Levelling Up Fund, in that it placed GM within 
Category 1, but some GM Authorities in category 2.  Officers reported that the fund’s criteria 
did not include a metric on levels of deprivation, which was not in line with similar previous 
funds, and in fact, one of the dominant factors was the average journey time to access work 
which was not equitable across GM due to varying levels of urban density.  Members were 
confused by Government’s criteria assessment as it did not echo the ambition of the fund to 
‘level up’ and urged that representation needed to be made to local MPs as to the 
disproportionate impact to urban areas.  Officers further confirmed that this was the first in a 
series of rounds for the fund and that they were working to influence future rounds to 
ensure all GM Local Authorities were able to access the fund. 
 
In relation to the Intracity Transport Fund, Members asked whether there would just be one 
bid, who would sponsor this and how it would work.  Officers confirmed that a pipeline of 
investment from the Transport Delivery Plan was being looked at to be included in a 
package of measures to put forward on behalf of the GMCA.  Further conversations with 

Page 122



5 

 

DfT were also underway as to how use both funds in tandem as strategically as possible for 
the benefit of the whole of Greater Manchester. 

 
Resolved /- 
 
1. That the transport headlines from the Government’s Budget and the implications for 

Greater Manchester be noted. 
 

2. That the forthcoming national transport strategies be noted. 
 

3. That it be noted that TfGM were working with DfT to ensure the metrics used in future 
rounds of the Levelling Up Fund do not create barriers to access investment. 

 
 

GMTC 18/21 GM MOVING 
 

That it be agreed to defer this item to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Peak District National Park Authority 
Tel: 01629 816200 

E-mail: customer.service@peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Web: www.peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Aldern House, Baslow Road, Bakewell, Derbyshire. DE45 1AE 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Meeting: 
 

National Park Authority 
 

Date: 
 

Friday 4 December 2020 at 10.00 am 
 

Venue: 
 

Webex - Virtual Meeting 
 

Chair: 
 

Cllr A McCloy 
 

Present: 
 

Mr J W Berresford, Cllr J Atkin, Cllr W Armitage, Cllr M Chaplin, 
Cllr D Chapman, Cllr C Farrell, Cllr C Furness, Prof J Haddock-Fraser, 
Mr Z Hamid, Ms A Harling, Cllr A Hart, Cllr Mrs G Heath, Mr R Helliwell, 
Cllr I  Huddlestone, Cllr C McLaren, Cllr Mrs K Potter, Cllr V Priestley, 
Cllr K Richardson, Miss L Slack, Mr K Smith, Cllr P Tapping, 
Cllr R Walker, Mrs C Waller, Cllr G D Wharmby and Ms Y Witter 
 

   
Apologies for absence:  
 

Cllr P Brady, Cllr A Gregory, Cllr B Lewis and Cllr B Woods. 
 

 
92/20 ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS PRESENT, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 

MEMBERS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

93/20 URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There were no items of urgent business. 
 

94/20 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation as the only item on the agenda was a Part B, 
confidential item. 
 

95/20 AUTHORITY CHAIR'S UPDATE  
 
The Chair reported on two events he had recently attended: 
 
Chairs of UK National Park Authorities (NPAs) Annual Chairs’ Forum, virtual meeting, 2 
December – the Forum had considered lessons learnt during the Covid-19 Pandemic 
situation and looked ahead to big themes for 2021 which included climate change and 
the role of NPAs internationally particularly with regard to the climate and nature 
emergencies.  The Chair will either circulate a fuller report to Members or report it to the 
next Authority meeting the lessons learnt from other NPAs. 
 
Peak District Local Access Forum (LAF), 3 December – the Chair had been invited to 
attend this virtual meeting as it was the 20th anniversary of the LAF and he was a past 

Page 125



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 4 December 2020  
 

Page 2 

 

 

Chair of the Forum.  The Forum had been set up in December 2000 following the 
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 and was the first such Forum in England and 
Wales to be set up. Cllr McCloy had been the second Chair of the Forum for 6 years 
from 2004 and was still very supportive of the work the Forum did.  The Forum is made 
up mainly of volunteers and the Authority has an appointed representative on the Forum, 
who is currently Cllr Ian Huddlestone.  The Chair shared with the Forum that part of the 
plans to celebrate the 70th anniversary of the Peak District National Park in 2021 would 
recognise the role of volunteers and bodies such as the LAF. 
 

96/20 EXEMPT INFORMATION S100(A) LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of agenda item 
6 to avoid the disclosure of Exempt Information under S100 (A) (4) Local 
Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, paragraph 1 “ information relating to any 

individual” and paragraph 3 ‘information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that information).  
  
SUMMARY 
 
The Committee determined the following item, full details of which are contained in the 
exempt minutes: 
 
97/16 Management Restructure (SF) 
 
The meeting ended at 11:55. 

Page 126



 

 

Peak District National Park Authority 
Tel: 01629 816200 

E-mail: customer.service@peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Web: www.peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Aldern House, Baslow Road, Bakewell, Derbyshire. DE45 1AE 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Meeting: 
 

National Park Authority 
 

Date: 
 

Friday 19 February 2021 at 10.00 am 
 

Venue: 
 

Webex - Virtual Meeting 
 

Chair: 
 

Cllr A McCloy 
 

Present: 
 

Mr J W Berresford, Cllr W Armitage, Cllr J Atkin, Cllr P Brady, 
Cllr M Chaplin, Cllr D Chapman, Cllr C Farrell, Cllr C Furness, 
Cllr A Gregory, Prof J Haddock-Fraser, Mr Z Hamid, Ms A Harling, 
Cllr A Hart, Cllr Mrs G Heath, Mr R Helliwell, Cllr I  Huddlestone, 
Cllr B Lewis, Cllr C McLaren, Cllr Mrs K Potter, Cllr V Priestley, 
Cllr K Richardson, Miss L Slack, Mr K Smith, Cllr P Tapping, 
Cllr R Walker, Mrs C Waller, Ms Y Witter and Cllr B Woods 
 

   
Apologies for absence:  
 

Cllr G D Wharmby. 
 

 
1/21 ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS PRESENT, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 

MEMBERS DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Item 7 
 
The Chair declared a personal interest on behalf of all Members, as the National Park 
Authority was the site owner.   
 
It was noted that all Members had received an email from Mr John Youatt. 
 
Cllr Furness declared a personal interest as he had received several emails from 
residents of Foolow. 
 

2/21 MINUTES OF MEETINGS ON 13 NOVEMBER & 4 DECEMBER 2020  
 
The minutes of the last meetings of the National Park Authority held on the 13th 
November and the 4th December 2020 were approved as a correct record. 
 

3/21 URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

4/21 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Seven members of the public had given notice to make representations to the meeting. 
 

Page 127



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 February 2021  
 

Page 2 

 

 

5/21 CHAIR'S BRIEFING  
 
The Chair reported that he had been advised by the Government that its formal 
response to the “Landscapes Review Final Report ” was due shortly.  Once this had 
been received, the Chair suggested Members convene to discuss their reaction.  This 
would take place at a Member’s Forum following the date of the announcement from 
Government.  
 
The Chair had submitted two reports from outside bodies, which were included on the 
agenda.  
 
The Chair reported that he had had a successful meeting with the Leader, Deputy 
Leader and Chief Executive of Derbyshire Dales District Council and had covered 
several issues including Climate Change, investment in the Hope Valley Explorer bus 
service, the Authority’s consultation on the definition of Thriving and Sustainable 
Communities, a strategic approach to housing and working together on plans for the 
easing of lockdown. 
 

6/21 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT  
 
Members noted the Chief Executive’s Report that included updates to Members on key 
items since the previous Authority meeting, including: 
 

 National Parks England Delivery Plans 

 New public facing website for National Parks UK 

 New All Party Parliamentary Group for the Peak District National Park 

 The Authority’s Parishes Bulletin 38 

 Updated Corporate Strategy 

 New Management Team Structure 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report. 
 

7/21 BROSTERFIELD - INVESTIGATION INTO REMAINING OPTIONS FOR THE SITE  
 
The report was introduced by the Corporate Property Officer, who outlined the main 
points of the report and its recommendations. 
 
There was a correction, in the section of the report on Risk Management, it stated “The 
risk of the community being able to raise sufficient funds”, should read “being unable”. 
 
The following spoke under the public participation at meetings scheme: 
 

 Philip Haslam, Objector – telephone call 

 Katie Edwards, Objector – audio recording 

 Mr John Youatt, Objector– telephone call 

 Mrs Fallows, Objector – video recording 

 Mr and Mrs Palmer, Objector– statement read out by Democratic Services 

 Mr David Martin, Objector – statement read out by Democratic Services 

 Mr Simon Wills, Foolow Parish Meeting, Objector – telephone call 
 
Members discussed whether the two recommendations stated in the report were 
mutually exclusive or whether the two processes could run concurrently. 
 

Page 128



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 February 2021  
 

Page 3 

 

 

A motion was proposed and seconded, to agree to sell the site to the Foolow Community 
at an agreed price, on the understanding that the sale be completed by February 2022, if 
the deadline was not met, the site would be sold on the open market.  
 
Officers confirmed that the community had been asked to provide a detailed funding 
plan, but insufficient information had been provided by the community.  It was noted that 
more detailed information had now been offered by speakers. 
 
Officers also confirmed that a formal indication of support for any community funding 
bids required a mandate from this meeting. 
 
A further addition to the motion was suggested, that the Foolow Community be asked to 
provide a detailed business plan to be considered in advance of the May Authority 
meeting which would be required for the purchase to proceed.  
 
The motion as amended and as proposed below was approved by the mover and 
seconder . 
 

 Business plan to be completed by May 2021, and submitted in time to be 
presented at the Authority meeting on the 21 May 2021 

 Funding certainty to be in place by November 2021 

 Contracts to be exchanged by February 2022 
 

If any of these gateway milestones are not met then the Authority will revert to selling the 
site on the open market. 
 
The motion was voted on and carried.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To agree to sell the site to the Foolow Community at an agreed price with 
exchange of contracts by 28 February 2022.  The following gateway reviews will 
need to be passed by the Foolow Community proposals: 
 

 A robust business plan to be submitted by an agreed date. The Plan will be 
assessed by Officers and if not deemed sufficient a report will be brought 
to the Authority meeting on the 21 May 2021. 

 Evidence that funding is in place to purchase the site is submitted by 1 
November 2021.  The evidence to be evaluated by Officers and if not 
deemed sufficient a report will be brought to a future Authority meeting. 
 

If either of these gateway reviews are not passed then the Authority will revert to 
selling the site on the open market. 
 
The meeting adjourned for a short break at 11.55 and returned at 12.05. 

 
8/21 BUDGET 2021/22 (JW)  

 
The Head of Finance introduced the report firstly advising that the report contained the 
following errors: 
 

 The total amount in reserves at the 31st March 2020 was £6.409 Million. 

 The estimate for the end of the next financial year is £5.176 Million 

 This gives a usage figure of £1.234 million 

Page 129



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 February 2021  
 

Page 4 

 

 

 The Legal and Minerals reserve is estimated to be £500,000 at the end of 
2021/22  

 
A corrected copy of the report would be forwarded to Members after the meeting. 

 
The recommendations as set out in the report were moved, seconded voted on and 
carried. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. To approve Authority’s annual budget for the 2021/22 financial year as shown 

in Appendix 1 of the report. 
 

2. To note the savings in Appendix 2 of the report that have been made to 
balance the 2021/22 revenue budget.  

 
3. To note that the Authority’s revenue budget may need to be adjusted once the 

National Park Grant (NPG) for 2021/22 and details of the Farming in Protected 
Landscapes proposals are known, and authority to undertake any necessary 
modifications and acceptance of further funding is delegated to the Chief 
Executive in consultation with the Head of Finance and Head of Law. 

 
4. To note the medium term financial position of the Authority in the period up to 

March 2025. 
 

5. To note the position of the Capital Strategy and Reserves. 
 

9/21 EXTERNAL AUDIT – 2019/20 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER (A1362/ JW)  
 
The report was introduced by Mark Surridge of Mazars, who confirmed that the Authority 
had a “clean bill of health” and that there were no matters to raise. 
 
The Chair congratulated Officers for a positive report.  
 
A motion to support the recommendations was proposed and seconded, put to the vote 
and carried.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the 2019/20 Annual Audit Letter as considered be acknowledged. 
 

10/21 OUTSIDE BODY FEEDBACK REPORTS  
 
The Chair submitted feedback reports on meetings of the National Parks UK Chairs 
Forum on the 2 December 2020, and the National Parks England Board on 28 January 
2021. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the reports. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 130



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 February 2021  
 

Page 5 

 

 

11/21 EXEMPT INFORMATION S100 (A) LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of item Nos. 12 
and 13 to avoid the disclosure of Exempt information under S100 (A) (4) Local 
Government Act 1972, Schedule 12A, paragraph 3 “information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority 
holding that information). 
 

12/21 EXEMPT MINUTES FOR THE MEETINGS HELD ON 13 NOVEMBER AND 4 
DECEMBER 2020  
 
The confidential minutes of the meetings of the National Park Authority held on 13 
November and 4 December 2020 were approved as a correct record. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The following item was considered under Part B: 
 
13/21 National Parks Partnership Subscription (SLF) 
  
 
 
The meeting ended at 12.54 pm 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Peak District National Park Authority 
Tel: 01629 816200 

E-mail: customer.service@peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Web: www.peakdistrict.gov.uk 
Aldern House, Baslow Road, Bakewell, Derbyshire. DE45 1AE 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
Meeting: 
 

National Park Authority 
 

Date: 
 

Friday 19 March 2021 at 10.00 am 
 

Venue: 
 

Webex - Virtual Meeting 
 

Chair: 
 

Cllr A McCloy 
 

Present: 
 

Mr J W Berresford, Cllr J Atkin, Cllr W Armitage, Cllr P Brady, 
Cllr M Chaplin, Cllr D Chapman, Cllr C Farrell, Cllr C Furness, 
Cllr A Gregory, Prof J Haddock-Fraser, Mr Z Hamid, Ms A Harling, 
Cllr A Hart, Cllr Mrs G Heath, Mr R Helliwell, Cllr I  Huddlestone, 
Cllr C McLaren, Cllr Mrs K Potter, Cllr V Priestley, Cllr K Richardson, 
Mr K Smith, Cllr P Tapping, Cllr R Walker, Mrs C Waller, 
Cllr G D Wharmby, Ms Y Witter and Cllr B Woods 
 

   
Apologies for absence:  
 

Cllr B Lewis and Miss L Slack. 
 

 
13/21 ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS PRESENT, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair advised that Cllr Chapman would be late to the meeting. 
 
Item 8 
 
Mr Hamid declared that he was one of the Member appointees to the board of the Peak 
District National Park Foundation. 
 

14/21 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 19 FEBRUARY 2021  
 
The minutes of the National Park Authority meeting held on the 19 February 2021 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 

15/21 URGENT BUSINESS  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

16/21 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
No members of the public had given notice to make representations to the Committee. 
 
 
 
 

Page 133



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 March 2021  
 

Page 2 

 

 

17/21 AUTHORITY CHAIR'S REPORT  
 
The Chair reported the following :  
 

 The Peak District National Park Foundation had exceeded its fund raising target 
of £70,000 to mark the 70th anniversary of the National Park, and had raised 
£130,000.  The Foundation had paid out over £100,000 in grants to a variety of 
good causes. 
The Chair offered his thanks to all Officers involved, and in particular Sarah 
Slowther, Fundraising Development Manager. 
 

 The Moors for the Future Partnership had been announced as the runner up in 
the Peak Protector Awards, organised by the Campaign for Rural England.  The 
Chair offered his congratulations to the MFFP Team. 

 

 The government had announced that the Hope Valley railway line will receive an 
investment of £137 million,  to improve its services.   Work will begin in 2022 and 
be finished in 2023.   

 

 The government had not yet made an announcement with regards to its 
response to the Landscape Review 
 

 
18/21 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT  

 
Members noted the Chief Executive’s report that included updates to Members on key 
items since the previous Authority meeting, including: 
 

 Roadmap to cautiously ease lockdown restrictions 

 Meeting of the All Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) for National Parks  

 Parishes Bulletin 39 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the report. 
 

19/21 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT BLOCK 1 2020/21  
 
The report was introduced by Ian Morton (Internal Auditor), Veritau, who confirmed that 
the Authority had received the highest level of Substantial Assurance and that there 
were no formal findings or management actions required. The three areas audited were, 
Payroll, Information Governance and Creditors.  It was noted that the work had been 
carried out remotely and Mr Morton thanked the staff involved. 
 
The Chair congratulated Officers on a positive report. 
 
A motion to support the recommendations was proposed and seconded, put to the vote 
and carried. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Internal Audit reports for the three areas covered under Block 1 for 
2020/21 (in appendices 1 to 3 of the report – Payroll, Information 
Governance and Creditors be received and the Substantial Assurance 
opinion with the requirement of no management actions noted. 

Page 134



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 March 2021  
 

Page 3 

 

 

 
 
 

20/21 COMMERCIAL STRATEGY 2019-24 (AKB)  
 
The report was introduced by the former Director of Commercial Development and 
Engagement, who underlined that as well as being a strategy for the Authority it was also 
a strategy for the place, i.e. the National Park.  He thanked the Officers who had 
contributed to the Strategy. 
 
In response to Member’s queries, Officers advised: 
 

 The term “excluding charges” on page 45 of the report referred to internal visitor 
services back office charges. 

 

 Following the launch in July 2020, online sales had remained strong throughout 
the pandemic.  The Director did not have figures to hand but confirmed that they 
would be provided by the Visitor Experience Development Manager. 

 

 Regarding Pillar 3 and the target of diversification of the portfolio, the Authority 
will aim to generate income, to support for example net zero with nature projects 

 

 The list of skills gaps and challenges will be addressed through training and 
support for existing staff and consideration of future capacity/capability needed 
will form part of the medium term financial plan . 

 
An amendment to the Strategy, in “Core Principles” to include cultural heritage in the 
definition of ecosystem services was requested and agreed. 
 
A motion to approve the recommendation was moved and seconded. 
 
Members asked how the strategy will be monitored and were advised that it will be 
reported on via the KPIs in the Corporate Strategy. 
 
The motion was voted on and carried. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
To endorse and confirm the Commercial Strategy with responsibility for delivery 
delegated to the Heads of Engagement and Asset Management in consultation 
with the Head of Finance. 
 
 

21/21 CLIMATE CHANGE MEMBER TASK GROUP ANNUAL REPORT  
 
The report was introduced by the Head of Information and Performance Management 
and Professor Haddock-Fraser, the Chair of the Task Group. 
 
Members agreed that the Group had developed an in depth understanding of the issues, 
and thanks and congratulations were offered to members of the Group and the Officers 
supporting it. 
 
A motion to approve the recommendation was proposed. 
 
The motion was seconded, voted on and carried. 

Page 135



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 March 2021  
 

Page 4 

 

 

 
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. To note the achievements of the Climate Change Member Task Group to date 

and that the current members of the group are: Cllr Chapman, Cllr Farrell, Cllr 
Furness, Prof Haddock-Fraser, Ms Slack and Mr Smith. 

2. To approve the updated terms of reference for the Climate Change Member 
Steering Group at Appendix 1 of the report. 

3. To approve the Climate Change Member Steering Group’s priorities for 
2021/22. 

4. To confirm that attendance at meetings of the Steering Group is an approved 
duty for the purpose of claiming travel and subsistence allowances. 

 
The meeting adjourned for a short break at 11.30 and reconvened at 11.40.  It was noted 
that Cllr Hart would have to leave at 12 noon and Cllr Woods at 12.30. 

 
22/21 SOUTH WEST PEAK LANDSCAPE PARTNERSHIP (SWPLP) RESTORATION OF 

TWO FIELD BARNS  
 
The report was introduced by the South West Peak Landscape Partnership Programme 
Manager 
 
It was noted that the matter had come to Members due to the amount of the grant to be 
offered exceeding the delegation threshold. 
 
A motion to approve the recommendation was moved. 
 
Members requested clarification of the meaning of “provisional sums” and were advised 
that these are contingencies on quotes from contractors and have been scrutinised. 
 
The motion to approve the recommendation was seconded. 
 
Members asked what provisions had been made to ensure that the barns were used for 
agriculture and not converted for residential use.  Officers confirmed that it is a 
requirement of the grant that the barn is maintained in low key agricultural use for a 
minimum of 10 years.  The project is monitored by the SWPLP Cultural Heritage Officer 
and the build is managed by a Conservation Architect.  No grant payment will be made 
until each stage of the process is signed off by the Conservation Architect.  
 
The motion was voted on and carried. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
To approve the offer and payment of the SWPLP grants for the restoration of the 
two field barns Hobcroft Barn (£74,675) and Cundy Green Barn (£33,660). 
 
 

23/21 DERBYSHIRE STRATEGIC PLANNING FRAMEWORK MEMBER UPDATE  
 
The report was introduced by the Head of Planning 
 

Page 136



National Park Authority Meeting Minutes 
Friday 19 March 2021  
 

Page 5 

 

 

Members discussed where the decisions regarding strategic cooperation between 
authorities are taken, and were advised that this takes place at the D2N2 Board for 
Economic Prosperity.  The Chair of the Authority is not a part of this Board at present but 
will explore with the Head of Planning whether the Authority should have a 
representative on this Board. 
 
A motion to support the recommendation was proposed and seconded. 
  
Members requested clarification of how the National Park Authority engages with other 
local authorities outside Derbyshire on strategic planning cooperation, and were advised 
that there are formal mechanisms for this non statutory process at local plan level and 
via statements of common ground. 
 
The motion was voted on and carried. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1. To note the progress made in developing the Strategic  Planning 
Framework (SPF) to date as set out in Appendix 1 of the report 

 
2. To endorse the continued participation of Planning Officers in developing 

the Strategic Planning Framework. 
 

24/21 EXEMPT INFORMATION S100(A) LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972  
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of Item 13 to 
avoid the disclosure of exempt information under S100 (A) (4) Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 12A, paragraph 3 “Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that 
information)” 
 
SUMMARY 

 
The following item was considered in the exempt part of the meeting: 
 
25/21  Exempt Minutes of the Meeting held on 19 February 2021 
 
 
The meeting ended at 12.20 pm 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Oldham Leadership Board Minutes 
 

16 April 2021, 09:00am 
Microsoft Teams 
 
 

Present: 

Alun Francis Principal & Chief Executive, Oldham College 

Bill Lovat Regional Director, Regenda Homes 

Cllr Arooj Shah Deputy Leader of Oldham Council and Cabinet Member for Covid-19 Recovery 

Cllr Howard Sykes Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group, Oldham Council 

Cllr J Stretton Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board 

Cllr Sean Fielding (Chair) Leader, Oldham Council 

Donna Cezair CEO, First Choice Homes 

Dr Carolyn Wilkins, OBE CEO, Oldham Council and Accountable Officer, Oldham Cares 

Emma Barton Director of Economy 

Fran Lautman Customer Development Manager, Oldham Council 

Helen Lockwood Deputy Chief Executive, Oldham Council 

Jackie Marshall JCP Newton Heath 

Jonathan Moise Medical Director, Oldham Care Organisation 

Judith Crosby Northern Care (Community) 

Katrina Stephens Director of Public Health, Oldham Council 

Laura Windsor-Welsh Strategic Locality Lead, Action Together 

Matthew Drogan Head of Strategy and Performance, Oldham Council 

Mike Barker Lead Officer, CCG 

Molly Brown Partnership Manager, Department for Work and Pensions   

Rachael Harrison Chief Superintendent, Area Commander East (Oldham & Tameside) 

Rebekah Sutcliffe Strategic Director of Communities and Reform, Oldham Council 

Shelley Kipling Assistant Director, Communications and Strategy, Oldham Council  

Stuart Lockwood CEO, Oldham Community Leisure 

Val Hussain Commander, GMFRS 

Apologies: 

Andrew Hunt Programme Manager, Oldham Council 

Cllr Z Chauhan Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care 

David Jago Director of Finance / Chief Officer, Oldham Care Organisation 

Dominic Wheelan Chief Operating Officer, Unity Partnership 

Jayne Clarke Principal at OSFC 

Jenny Stanton Department for Work and Pensions   

John Patterson (NHS) Clinical Lead, Oldham CCG,  

Liz Windsor-Welsh Chief Executive, Action Together 

Nicola White Interim Transformational Programme Manager, Oldham Council 

Supt Colette Rose Supt, Greater Manchester Police and CSCP 

Minutes:  

Natalie Truswell   

 
 

 

Page 139



 

2 
 

Item 1: Minutes and key updates/progress since the meeting on 13th January 2021  

    
Cllr Sean Fielding, Leader of the Council (Chair) presented the Minutes. 

 
The Minutes of the 13th January meeting, were agreed as an accurate record 

 
Matters arising - verbal update on GM Strategy  

 

Following a request on 13th January, for an item on this at a future meeting, Matt 
Drogan, Head of Strategy and Performance, provided a verbal update.  

 

Following early engagement with Leaders and Chief Executives across GM the 
GMS refresh process is commencing, as it was paused last year due to the impact 

of Covid. The headline timeline is engagement, collation/ development thematic 
content (March- May), and then detailed shape, form and content work June - 
August, this allows for Mayoral and local elections to be undertaken and for the 

process to incorporate new Mayoral priorities and any shifts in emphasis post-
election. Working to a final strategy for September. Lead policy officers across GM 

have been invited to sessions from March. 
 
ACTION: further feedback to be presented at a future meeting of the OLB (MD) 

 
 Item 3: Recovery Strategy Brief Introduction – presentation on the day 
 

Presented by Cllr Arooj Shah (AS) – Deputy Leader of Oldham Council and Cabinet 
Member for Covid-19 Recovery and Rebekah Sutcliffe (RS), Strategic Director, 

Communities and Reform. 
 
Introduction from RS 

 
The Covid Recovery Plan will be in place for the next 12-18 months; Team Oldham 

Covid Recovery Pan: incorporating Team Oldham – CCG, Unity, Mio Care and the 
council - we aim to build on this recovery plan and ultimately develop a new 
corporate plan and a wider Oldham system plan that works from 2022. 

 
At each OLB meeting we will engage with the Board with regards to one of the 

recovery plans key themes – todays meeting will focus on the equality theme.  In 
the delivery we are keen to apply learning from the last 12 months; this plan is 
about delivering against priorities in a community focussed way and with a place-

based approach. 
 

We are also in the process of developing an improved performance management 
framework to measure performance against delivery of the plan.  
 
Slides presented by AS 
 

Work started on a new Team Oldham Plan in the summer of 2020; suspended due 
to the onset of Covid. The 12-month Covid Recovery Plan was developed due to 
the impact of Covid on our communities, businesses and services. We have 

Page 140



 

3 
 

increasing demand and financial challenges, so we need to prioritise what we 

deliver, focussing on the communities that need it most 
We have identified 6 themes:  

 

 Driving Equality 

 Investing in quality housing 

 Championing a Green Recovery 

 Creating and protecting jobs and supporting businesses 

 Education and skills 

 Promoting Health and wellbeing 

 
Everyone in Oldham has played their part in responding to the pandemic, from 

doctors, nurses, teachers, and everyone who has put on a mask and helped slow 
the transmission of the virus. We will continue to keep communities at the heart of 
our response. Our recovery plan will ultimately be signed off at Council following the 

local elections. 
 
Questions/comments 
 

AF: We have had fantastic support from the CCG and all Public Health partners 

during the pandemic – requested for this to be noted 
 

AF: We have lots of confidence in the equalities part of the plan, but not confident 
how we have commitment to how we are going to remedy some of the problems 
around poverty and job creation. With regards to the college, we are a technical and 

not academic college; we need a successful economy to work with; the education 
strategy, the challenge is huge – apprenticeships, graduates – needs businesses to 

support this. Economically not just Oldham but a global issues. Industrial towns 
need a clear economic future and we need a clear strategy for Oldham within GM 
and Nationally. 

 
AS: we should commit to meeting to discuss this with OLB in more detail 
 

KS: GM inequalities commission report – useful practical and strategic elements 
that we could seek to use to address some of the challenges – poverty, inequalities, 

wealth building 
 

RS: within the inequalities report – themes are reflected within our recovery plan. 
 
VH: supporting the most vulnerable; is our approach, we need to target the most 

vulnerable. Universal offer – including online resources, telephone visits 
 
ACTION: Covid Recovery Plan – commit to an item on the economic theme of 
the recovery plan at a future meeting (RS/MD) 

 
 Item 2: Vaccinations Update - attached 
   

Presented by Mike Barker - Strategic Director of Commissioning / Chief Operating, 
Oldham CCG 

Page 141



 

4 
 

 

This is the first time OLB has received a comprehensive view of the vaccination 
programme, there is more detail in the paper that has been shared. 
 

Range of different vaccines  
 

4 design principles: 

 Roll out at pace and in priority order to protect as many lives as possible in 

the shortest time 

 Provide easy and safe access to the vaccine 

 Consider impacts on inequalities and ensure access is equitable 

 Provide quality, value for money and sustainability to be fit for the future 
 

The National strategy has been world leading with 3 vaccines in circulation 
Ambition was by 15th Feb all people over 70, CEV and front-line H&C workers, care 

homes would be offered their 1st vaccination; this was achieved nationally and in 
Oldham. 
 

National programme – 3 time horizons 

 Jan to April focus on JCVI priority cohorts 1 – 9 (protecting and saving lives) 

 May to Dec focus on completion of first and second doses across the entire 
adult population  

 2022 – 2027 planning for a sustainable, long term future 
 

One of the biggest issues in Oldham is trying to address the inequalities around 

vaccine uptake, we have good practice that we have shared nationally  
 

GM Model: has its challenges – around inequalities and demographics 
Mass vaccination site – Etihad stadium, one of the highest performing areas across 
the country. We have maximised uptake and tailored approaches, moving at quick 

pace; unlike other areas in the country. Lots of positive learning. 
 

Oldham Model – hospital site and 6 primary care network sites. Increasingly used 
non-clinical sites, including the Millennium centre, Green Bank and Mosque’s 
Site Operating Model; working together bringing the whole of our system together.  

 
- We are at 119,000 vaccines in 4 months – 57% of our adult population 

- Last week we did 10,000 2nd doses and 3000 first doses 
- First site live on 14th December – Greenbank medical centre 
 

Biggest challenges we have faced is the sensitivity, SK and team have helped build 
a strategy to improve uptake around ethnicity and deprivation and issues around 

the perceived efficiency of the vaccine and safety – lots of messages went out to 
the communities and working with community leaders 
 

Pop up clinics have made a massive difference – double the amount compared to 
primary care (proof of concept) 

 

Page 142



 

5 
 

Bangladeshi/Pakistani community – clinics in place show significant uptakes by 

working in a tailored way  
Oldham was the first town in the UK to vaccinate the homeless community – JCVI 

criteria was questioned – attracted lots of publicity but eventually changed the 
national position with clear guidance for all to vaccinate their homeless people and 
many people started to follow 

 
What’s next? Planning phase – likely we will change our delivery model, likely from 

6 sites to 2 or 3 concentrated sites; support easing of lockdown, support with tailor 
made pop ups, completing first and second doses, third dose booster and flu 
vaccination later this year 

 
On Monday, JCVI opened up vaccinations to all adults. Evolved model – GM level – 

stronger mechanism for the hospital hubs 
 
Take away from today:  

 We haves rapidly responded and established delivery model that has safely 
administered vaccines at pace and scale. As a result, we have met the first 

national target of offering first dose vaccinations to JCVI Priority Groups 1 to 
4 by mid-February. 

 We have deployed a place-based community-led delivery model, comprising 

multiple delivery channels working synergistically, in order to meet the needs 
of the local population and address inequalities. The Mass Vaccination 

Centre and Hospital Hubs have provided us the flexibility to surge capacity 
where it is required. 

 Initial planning and modelling work has helped us establish a core 

infrastructure through a locality-based model alongside flexible wider 
capacity. This provided us with a maximum projected run rate capacity of c. 

25,000, enabling us to fully or even more rapidly deliver against existing 
National Delivery Plan targets and timelines. 

 Our model will evolve over 3 planning horizons. Work is underway to develop 
an approach which is sustainable and part of an integrated whole system 
model. This will provide a future focused and enhanced approach to a 

COVID Mass Vaccination Programme as part of Greater Manchester’s 
evolving wider vaccination function and health protection model. 

 
None of this could or would have been achieved without the excellent team that 
make us what we are #WeAreOldham 

 
The countless clinicians that have worked evenings, weekdays and weekends 

vaccinating people of Oldham and those who have chosen to be redeployed from 
other things 
 
Massive team effort: 

Page 143



 

6 
 

 
 
Questions/comments: 

SF: incredible work, witnessed at Failsworth hub and at drop-in centre at 

Featherstall Road; all people involved – committed 
 
Presentation shows a lot of information and the incredible work across the system 
 
ACTION: A thank you to all involved in the Vaccination programme be noted 

in the minutes. 
 

Item 4: Role of Community Champions 

 
Presented by Laura Windsor Welsh - Strategic Locality Lead, Action Together 

 
   

LWW provided an update of activity since January, when MHCLG announced grant 

funding would be available to LA areas to build a network of Community Champions 
- MHCLG identified people from minority communities 

 
In Oldham, during the pandemic, we reviewed the take up of testing, local 
restrictions, we have built our CCP based on our experiences from last year and 

what worked well 
 

Building on the trusted relationships that we have in communities and working with 
community leaders that have the trust and relationship within the communities has 
been critical. We’ve looked at all of the data; transmission rates, communities with 

the most severe impact of Covid 
 

Identified 5 communities of focus: 
 

 South Asian communities 

 African communities 

 Roma communities 

 People with learning disabilities and autism 

 People with sensory disabilities 

Page 144



 

7 
 

How we mitigate the inequalities that Covid has brought to our communities, access 

to good information, beyond the right languages, but also faith and culturally 
appropriate, challenges around health literacy – all building a different way of 

working around engagement and communication. 
 
Approach: How do we invest the grant fund available and build a different way of 

working? 
 

Identify gaps in communities; any information or process we develop needs to be 
culturally appropriate and accessible. Capture insight and understand it across the 
system to continue to evolve. 

  
Progress update: 

Set up a full Team Oldham steering group – public sector, equalities advisory group 
and representatives from the voluntary sector; Identified capacity to deliver 
Programme; Established action groups – weekly meeting with the communities of 

focus; Already invested £94K to community anchor organisations; Launching a 
grants Programme; Set up an insight network and insight tracker 

Understanding equalities impacts 
 
Oldham mosque council (OMC): OMC conducted a survey to understand 

perceptions and barriers to vaccination take-up which was followed up with some 
focus groups. Subsequently a full plan has been developed and key activity 
includes setting up training and information for local mosque leaders and committee 

members, so far 186 received training. Videos developed and shared through Asian 
TV networks. Pop up clinics in mosques and community centres; engagement and 

reassurance; the uptake has increased significantly. 
 
African communities: training to pastors and church leaders 

 
Weekly action group with 3 key charities – OPAL, KeyRing and Pennine Mencap 

Research and insight network across the system – Community Champions network 
The impact in such a short space of time has been significant – community 
engagement started in mid Feb – first pop up vaccination site – take up has 

increased dramatically, as our data shows 
 

Current priorities:  

 Small grant programme launch (Mid April) to build grass-roots capacity in the 

Community Champions Network  

 Community Champions Network sessions established (end of April)  

 Insight tracker launch (early May) 

 Bite-sized Covid awareness training resources rolled out across the 
Community Champions Network (early May) 

 Further work with Roma community and sensory disability communities 
(ongoing) 

 
Questions/comments: 

DC: Fantastic to hear about all of the collaborative work in Oldham. The Community 

impact work that FCHO teams are doing could be worked better within the system; 

Page 145



 

8 
 

could reduce duplication or potential gaps that we are not addressing. How do we 

make sure the 2 systems are integrated and connected? 
 
ACTION: LWW to liaise with DC about working more collaboratively with 
FCHO. 
 

AS: brilliant presentation; response and the support has demonstrated such a 
strong partnership working, greater role in our recovery too 

 
CW: incredible work across the system. The learning we have now got in the way 
we approach things in parallel the work to transition out of test and trace, strong 

commitment to link in – what’s the national/regional role?  
 

RS: we’ve started a process of capturing the learning, early on we reviewed lessons 
learnt, in a focused way – applicable to the wider H&C and broader public service 
response 

 
ACTION: LWW to look for opportunity to influence nationally and share with 

the national team 

 
 Item 5: Digital Inclusion  

 

Presented by Fran Lautman, Customer Development Manager, Oldham Council 
 

FL presented the paper’s key points, as follows: 
- Link to equalities as part of the Covid recovery plan 

- Digital exclusion: as part of a system we have the best chance of tackling; 
opportunity to work together 

- Activity: Nationally, Regionally and Oldham Visibility and ownership of digital 

exclusion as system and have sight  
- Next few weeks:  

 Tablet lending and gifting programme 

 Embedding digital skills into the emerging work and skills strategy  

 Robust evidence base of the digital exclusion risk 
 

GM also have a digital strategy: 1.2M people in GM are digitally excluded (SF role 
in GM – portfolio lead for digital) In the next few weeks: 
- Library service – tablets lending and gifting programme (funding from GMCA) 

- Evidence base – GMCA developed the DERRI – digital exclusion risk indicator 
dashboard – evaluating to see if this would be helpful for Oldham 

 
Questions: 
Are there any gaps from a system perspective for tacking digital exclusion? 

What do we need to put in place that we may not already have that means we can 
effectively come together to make this a reality? 
 
Questions/comments: 

AF asked why the college is not included in the paper, as 70% of Oldham College 

students come from disadvantaged post codes – probably the most excluded in the 
borough. College has spent over £200K on kit, programmed, safeguarding, 

Page 146



 

9 
 

delivering to people’s homes – 1200 laptops and chrome books delivered to 

students, cameras in classrooms/homes to be able to teach. AF therefore keen for 
College to be a part of the strategy. Also, should sit at the heart of our economic 

plan – cheap/free broadband access 
 
AS: you should have been involved, lifeline to our residents and students – big 

thank you, FL to feedback to DW 
 

FL: we are in discussion with GM for free universal access to broadband; GM are 
pulling together proposals for Government 
 

JM: any cultural barriers to digital inclusion 
 

FL: usually an age barrier, generalising, challenge on over 65’s – in terms of 
demographics 
 

AF: the future is digital, not just about digital exclusion – includes everybody – not 
just those who don’t have access. Digital technology – Health, Education, live and 

work in new ways post pandemic 
 
BL: key connections – GM economy function. Strategy has to be across everything. 

How we pull together the lessons and experience and how we connect communities 
to make sure they’re not excluded as well as the key economic drivers 
SF: the future is digital – we need to support our residents 

 
ACTION: Presentation and comments raised be noted. 

   
 
 Meeting closed at 10.35am 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 14th July 2021 

 
 

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



 

COMMISSIONING PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
25/02/2021 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Majid Hussain (Chair)      

Councillors Chadderton, Jabbar and Roberts 
Dr. Ian Milnes, Deputy Chief Clinical Officer; and Dr. John Patterson, 

Chief Clinical Officer and Deputy Accountable Officer, Oldham CCG 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Mike Barker Strategic Director of Commissioning/Chief 

Operating Officer 
 Graham Foulkes Lay Member for Patient and Public 

involvement 
 Dr. Mudiyur Gopi Hospital Consultant Representative 
 Dr. Shelley Grumbridge GP Governing Body Member - East Cluster 
 Anne Ryans Director of Finance 
 Dr. Andrew Vance GP Governing Body Member - North Cluster 
 Mark Warren Managing Director Community Health and 

Adult Social Care 
 Gioia Morrison Finance Manager 
 Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services 
 Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services 
 Kimberley Riley Business Support Officer 

 

 

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR   

RESOLVED – that Majid Hussain be elected Chair for the 

duration of this meeting. 

 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Moores, 
Councillor Fielding, Councillor Shah, Councillor Chauhan, Ben 

Galbraith, Rebekah Sutcliffe, Nicola Hepburn, Claire Smith and 
Gerard Jones. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the 

Commissioning Partnership Board held on 28th January 2021 be 
approved as a correct record. 

 

6   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 
 

7   S 75 AGREEMENT   

Page 149



 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Finance, 
Oldham Council and the Chief Finance Officer, Oldham CCG, 

which highlighted the issues raised and sought delegated 
authority for decisions on how the year-end position for the 
Oldham Cares Section 75 pooled fund would be managed.  

 
The Board noted that the commercially sensitive information 

would be considered at Item 9 of the agenda. 
 
Options/alternatives  

Considered at Item 9 of the agenda. 
 
RESOLVED that the Board would consider the commercially 

sensitive information contained at Item 9 of the agenda before 
making a decision. 

 

8   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded 

from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraph 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on 

balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports. 
 

9   S75 AGREEMENT   

The Board gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 

information in relation to Item 7 – S75 Agreement. 
 
RESOLVED that the recommendations as detailed within the 

report be agreed. 
 

The meeting started at 1.00 pm and ended at 1.20 pm 
 

Page 150



 

COMMISSIONING PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
25/03/2021 at 1.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Chauhan (in the Chair) 

Councillors Fielding and Moores 

Ben Galbraith (Chief Finance Officer), Majid Hussain (Lay Chair)  

and Dr. Ian Milnes (Deputy Chief Clinical Officer) Oldham CCG 

 

Also in Attendance: 

Mike Barker  Strategic Director of 

Commissioning/Chief Operating 

Officer   

Graham Foulkes Lay Member for Patient and Public 

Involvement   

Dr Shelley Grumbridge GP Governing Body Member - East 

Cluster 

Dr Andrew Vance GP Governing Body Member - 

North Cluster 

Nicola Hepburn Director of Commissioning   

Claire Smith Director of Nursing and Quality 

Gerard Jones Managing Director Children 

Services  

Mark Warren  Managing Director of Community 

Health and Social Care 

Rebekah Sutcliffe Strategic Director of Communities 

and Reform 

Anne Ryans Director of Finance 

Gioia Morrison Finance Manager – Community 

Health and Adult Social Care 

Rachel Dyson Thriving Communities Hub Lead 

Mark Hardman Constitutional Services   

Kaidy McCann Constitutional Services 
  

  
 

1   ELECTION OF CHAIR   

RESOLVED – that Councillor Chauhan be elected Chair for the 

duration of this meeting. 
 
Variation in Order – The Chair, with the consent of the Board, 

advised that consideration of agenda item 8, Approval of 
2020/21 Revised Section 75 Agreement, would be given in 

advance of agenda item 7. 
 

2   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Shah, Dr. 
John Patterson, Carolyn Wilkins, Helen Lockwood, Dr Mudiyur 

Gopi and Nicola Hepburn. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

 

Page 151



 

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25th 

February 2021 be approved as a correct record. 

 

6   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 
 

7   APPROVAL OF 2020/21 REVISED SECTION 75 

AGREEMENT  

 

The approval of the Board was sought to the final version of the 

2020/21 Oldham Section 75 legal document, the schemes included 

and the financial contributions of the Oldham CCG and Oldham 
Council.  Included within the submitted papers were proposals for a 

new pooled fund for Hospital Discharge Funding and a one-off 
variation in the contributions of the CCG and the Council to the 

Section 75 Pooled Funds for 2020/21. 

 
The Board considered the development of Section 75 agreements 

that exist to facilitate closer working between local authorities and 

NHS organisations, with specific reference to the history of joint 
working in Oldham and of organisations providing support where 

flexibility allowed.  The budget positions of both the CCG and the 

Council in 2020/21 was considered, the Board being advised 
that both Directors of Finance had worked together to set out the 
system wide challenges being faced.   

 
The Board was asked to consider a new pooled fund for 

Hospital discharges comprising funding made available from 
NHS England between 19th March 2020 and 31st March 2021 to 
support the costs of discharging patients as quickly as possible 

from hospital during the COVID pandemic.  Care packages had 
been directly commissioned by both the CCG and the Council 

accordingly and formal confirmation of the creation of a new 
Pooled Fund at Scheme D in the Section 75 Agreement was 
sought. 

 
With regard to the identified budgetary issues relating to the 

pooled fund, the Board was advised that for a number of 
reasons the CCG had significant scope to contribute additional 
funds to the pooled budget to the sum of approximately 

£16.823m.  The CCG’s eternal auditors had specified a number 
of tests that must be met to confirm these additional funds, and 

the Board gave a detailed consideration as to whether these 
monies were allowable spend for the CCG, whether the CCG’s 
proposed actions were permissible under the Section 75 legal 

document, whether the spend related to 2020/21, and that the 
authority was given during 2020/21.  Board Members were 

advised that they should be satisfied these criteria were met 
before giving their approval to the additional CCG contribution.  
Relevant considerations were set out in the submitted report and 

Page 152



 

were subject to further report by the CCG Director of Finance.  
The Board also considered submitted advice from the CCG’s 

legal advisors that the increased contributions to the Pooled 
Funds represented a legitimate use of CCG funds and was 
consistent with the Section 75 legal framework.   

 
It was noted that Adult Social Care played a key role in the 

delivery of health care and alleviated some of the burden from 
Royal Oldham Hospital through pro-active and integrated 
support at home.  Notwithstanding COVID-19, the Council had 

been making increasing contributions into adult social care over 
recent years.  The accounting treatment and implications of the 

additional contributions were noted, including likely 
considerations by the Council’s external auditor and the impact 
on the Council’s final outturn position. 

 
RESOLVED that 

1. the strong history of joint working and funding 
arrangements in Health and Social Care in Oldham be 
noted; 

2. the creation of a new Scheme for Hospital Discharge 
Programme funding as described in the submitted report 

and included as “Scheme D” in the Section 75 
documentation, be approved; 

3. the significant challenges in Oldham Council’s long-term 

financial position, and specifically the increases in funding 
it has provided to Adult Social Care over the past several 

years, be noted; 
4. the variation in contributions to the Section 75 Pooled 

Budget by the Oldham CCG and Oldham Council for 

2020/21 be approved; 
5. the Section 75 Agreement, attached at Appendix 2 to the 

submitted report, and specifically the intention to adopt a 
flexible approach to contributions to support delivery of 
the best services for Oldham residents, be approved; 

6. the Director of Legal Services be authorised to sign the 
Section 75 Agreement on behalf of Oldham Council; 

7. delegated authority be approved jointly to the Oldham 
Council Director of Finance and the Oldham CCG Chief 
Finance Officer to finalise the financial expenditure and 

contribution figures included at Schedule 8 as part of year 
end processes, with the final version to be reported back 

to this Board in May 2021. 
 

8   SECTION 75 MONTH 8 AND 9 BUDGET POSITION 2020/21   

The Board gave consideration to a report presenting the Oldham 
Cares Section 75 (s75) pooled fund forecast position at the end 

of Months 8 and 9 in 2020/21. The report advised of forecast 
expenditure at Month 9 of £183.038m (£182.069 at month 8) 

compared to a budget of £180.673m, an adverse variance of 
£2.365m at month 9 (£1.397m at month 8). It was noted that 
most of this variance related to Oldham Council services and 

included a significant amount for Covid-19 related costs. 
 

Page 153



 

The Board was informed that the report had been produced on 
the basis that the 2020/21 s.75 Agreement, presented at agenda 

item 8 on the meeting agenda, had been approved.  Oldham 
Council was reporting an adverse variance of £2.743m at month 
9 (£4.920m at month 8) which would be offset by favourable 

variances from income generation and reduced salaries costs. 
The CCG was showing a pooled budget underspend of £0.378m 

at month 9 (£3.524m at month 8). 
 
The additional cost of dealing with the Covid-19 pandemic for 

Community Health and Adult Social Care was also being pooled 
within this s75 Agreement. The total cost forecast for 2020/21 at 

month 9 for Oldham Council was £16.793m (£17.815m at month 
8). Of this sum, £10.833m (£9.527m at month 8) was expected 
to be recouped from the NHS via Oldham CCG. The Council 

was therefore showing a month 9 Covid related spend of 
£5.910m (£8.288m at month 8).  

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

 

9   TRANSFORMATION FUND 2020/21 BUDGET UPDATE   

The Board was updated on work undertaken to evaluate the 

impact of schemes funded from the Greater Manchester (GM) 
Transformation Funds and was asked to agree the next steps on 

evaluation work.  
  
The Board was reminded that Oldham had received an 

allocation of £21.3m of GM Transformation Funds in 2017 to 
support Health and Social Care Transformation that built on the 

work undertaken in Oldham to progress the vision around 
integrated care.  Through an investment framework agreement 
with the GM Health and Social Care Partnership the 

Transformation Fund had supported a range of schemes to 
deliver that vision.  Prior to the pandemic there had been 

pressure to ensure that funds were spent as allocated, meaning 
that a full set of metrics to measure performance had not been 
available and scheme sponsors advised that information to 

monitor the impact of investment decisions would be sought 
retrospectively.  

 
This process was paused in March 2020 due to the Covid-19 
pandemic and the placing of the Transformation Fund into 

national NHS command and control funding arrangements.  
Block contract arrangements were put in place with providers for 

2020/21 meaning that programmes of work continued to be 
funded but with no scope to introduce new schemes.  
Transformation Funds were now available to cover existing 

commitments for 2021/22.  However, these were non-recurrent 
funds and alternative recurrent sources of funding would need to 

be identified should schemes be permanently required.  Funding 
arrangements for 2021/22 were still to be confirmed with NHS 
England and it was proposed that all on-going schemes be 

asked to submit impact statements and sustainability plans, 
including metric data if recurrent funding was being requested, 

Page 154



 

which would be considered as part of the system wide budgeting 
and financial prioritisation process. 

 
The approach proposed sought to ensure that those schemes 
viable for taking forward would be considered for funding in 

2021/22 once funding arrangements were confirmed.  To 
continue with no assessment of the schemes for 2021/22 would 

result in ether all schemes ending, or funding needing to be 
found from existing budgets for commissioned services, or 
increasing the financial deficit of the Oldham system.  

 
RESOLVED that 

1. the report be noted; 
2. a review be undertaken for those schemes which require 

continued funding to be done as part of the system wide 

budgeting and financial prioritisation process, the 
outcome of this process being reported to this Board in 

due course.  
 

10   THRIVING COMMUNITIES PROGRAMME FUNDING   

The Board was further updated on the Thriving Communities 
Transformation Programme and was asked to confirm approval 

to continue with expenditure for 2021/22. 
 

While Thriving Communities was a three-year project funded 
from the Greater Manchester (GM) Transformation Fund to run 
from April 2018 to March 2021, there remained some grant 

funded and contracted activity still to be delivered in the financial 
year 2021/22.  In addition, an evaluation of Thriving 

Communities had also been commissioned to take place 
alongside the final year of funded activity.  The Board was also 
advised that the Thriving Communities programme team had 

also been supporting Covid-19 response, including the 
implementation and management of doorstep engagement 

teams and the development and implementation of the 
Community Champions Programme, the costs of which had 
been covered by government funding.  It had been agreed that 

Thriving Communities work would pause during this time with a 
view to programme budget funds being used to reactivate work 

which was paused or not undertaken once possible in 2021/22. 
 
A detailed consideration of each element and the respective 

funding requirement was given, the requirement totalling £410k, 
meaning the overall programme would still be delivered within 

the originally approved financial envelope.  As had been noted 
in a previous item on the Board agenda, funding from the GM 
Transformation Fund was non-recurrent and considerations 

were being given as to the sustainability and/or development of 
schemes within the Programme, matters which would be the 

subject of further report to the Board in due course. 
 
The Board considered options to either continue with the 

committed expenditure as approved previously by 
Commissioning Partnership Board and as described in the 

submitted report, or to cease funding Thriving Communities 

Page 155



 

activity, giving notice on contracts and grant agreements with 
immediate effect to minimise payment of funds.  The Council 

had entered into contractual arrangements with providers; the 
Council would have to terminate the contracts on notice to 
comply with its legal obligations with consequential financial 

implications for the Council.  Not to secure funding for schemes 
had the potential to impact disproportionately on some of the 

most disadvantaged communities who were accessing funded 
activities. 
 
RESOLVED that the committed expenditure on the Thriving 

Communities programme be continued. 

 
 

The meeting started at 1.00 pm and ended at 1.33 pm 

 

Page 156



 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD 
26/01/2021 at 2.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Stretton (Chair)  

Councillors Ball, M Bashforth, Chauhan, Moores and Sykes 
 

 Dr John Patterson Oldham CCG 
 Majid Hussain Oldham CCG 
 Mike Barker Executive Director Commissioning 

and Chief Operating Officer 

(Oldham Council/Oldham CCG) 

 Mark Warren Managing Director of Health and 

Adult Care Services 

 Gerard Jones Managing Director of Children and 

Young People 

 Katrina Stephens Director of Public Health 
 Tamoor Tariq Oldham Healthwatch 

 Stuart Lockwood Oldham Community Leisure 
 Donna Cezair First Choice Homes 

   
 Also in Attendance:  

 Rebecca Fletcher Consultant in Public Health and 

Chair of the Bury, Rochdale and 

Oldham Child Death Overview 

Panel  
 Annie Lowe Public Health Registrar 

 Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services 
 Mark Hardman Constitutional Services 

   
 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Chief Supt Chris 
Allsop, Val Hussain, David Jago, Dr Keith Jeffrey, Joanne Sloan, 

Claire Smith, Rebekah Sutcliffe, Carolyn Wilkins, Liz Windsor-
Welsh and Karen Worthington.     

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Tamoor Tariq declared a personal interest in agenda items 6 – 8 
(Child Death Overview Panels and the National Child Mortality 
Database Annual Reports 2019/20) by virtue of being an elected 

member of Bury Council and a member of the Bury Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 

 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

No public questions had been received. 

 

Page 157



 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board held on 10th November 2020 be approved as a 
correct record. 

 

6   BURY, ROCHDALE AND OLDHAM CHILD DEATH 
OVERVIEW PANEL 2019/2020 ANNUAL REPORT  

 

The Board received the 2019/20 Annual Report of the Bury, 

Rochdale and Oldham (BRO) Child Death Overview Panel 
(CDOP) presenting the annual review of CDOP data for BRO. 
The CDOP reviews all child deaths under 18 years, but not 

including still births, late foetal loss or termination of pregnancy. 
The Panel do not determine the cause of death but instead 

explores all the factors surrounding the death of the child. This 
learning enables required actions to be taken to protect the 
welfare of children and prevent future deaths.  

 
Each CDOP collates information on the cases that have been 

closed in the last 12 months in order to review for themes. This 
enables each area to identify any lessons learnt and recognise 
where population level interventions are required to reduce 

future child deaths. The BRO CDOP report is supported by a 
Greater Manchester (GM) report which gives an overview of 

patterns across all four CDOPs in GM.  In view of the relatively 
small numbers, and consequent difficulties with data analysis, 
this can be helpful when analysing for themes.  The Annual 

Report presented an analysis of data gathered and presented 
recommendations and actions arising from considerations in the 

previous year. 
 
The annual report was supported at the meeting by a 

presentation introduced by Rebecca Fletcher, Consultant in 
Public Health and Chair of the BRO CDOP 2019/20 and Annie 

Lowe, Public Health Registrar.  The Report contained a review 
of the 29 closed cases in Oldham, Rochdale and Bury and Data 
collected between 1st April 2019 -31st March 2020.  Highlighted 

report findings were that 

 66% of closed cases were expected deaths;  

 69% of closed cases occurred in a hospital setting;  

 34% of closed cases occurred in the neonatal period; and 

 58% of closed cases occurred in the first year of life, 
with identified themes of prematurity, gender, deprivation and 
ethnicity being further considered.  Modifiable risk factors 

associated with child deaths, such as maternal obesity and 
smoking were considered, along with interventions seeking to 

modify such behaviours and risk. 
 
The Annual Report recommendations were summarised to the 

Board as 

  giving consideration to other factors such as maternal 

age and breastfeeding; 

  ensuring that data is recorded for unbooked pregnancy 

and concealed pregnancy;  

Page 158



 

  recognising that maternal obesity is a growing concern, 
and ensuring that is recorded in child deaths under 1 

year;  

  acknowledging and addressing that children living in 
deprived neighbourhoods or of BME ethnicity are over-

represented in child deaths; and  

  disseminating the report to the relevant departments 

within the health and wellbeing partnership to ensure 
shared learning. 

 
 In response to a query regarding actions that had been and 
were being undertaken to address key factors of ethnicity and 

deprivation, it was reported that advice was given through health 
visitors and midwifery services and that work was being 

undertaken to ensure services are appropriate and accessible, 
the aim being to make the wider sector aware of these issues.  
Further comment was made as to the impact of domestic 

violence which may lead to severe accidents and life threatening 
injuries and to the difficulties families are facing at this time.  The 

Board was advised that work was currently going ahead to 
improve offers to families, with parenting advice and advice 
being given for people struggling with domestic violence.  

 
Further matters raised regarding promotion of Healthy Start 

Vouchers in support of healthy diets and work with the 
Communications Team to develop the CDOP Annual Report in a 
more ‘user friendly’ format to aid dissemination would be 

pursued. 
 
RESOLVED that the Oldham Rochdale and Bury Child Death 

Overview Panel Annual Report 2019/20 be received and noted, 
and the recommendations contained therein be supported. 

 

7   GREATER MANCHESTER CHILD DEATH OVERVIEW 
PANELS 2019/2020 ANNUAL REPORT  

 

The Board received the 2019/20 Annual Report of the Greater 

Manchester (GM) Child Death Overview Panels (CDOP) 
reviewing all infant and child deaths reported to the four GM 
CDOPs and including data from cases closed between 1st April 

2019 and 31st March 2020.  All deaths of children between 0-17 
years of age are reported to a CDOP which analyses the social 

and medical circumstances surrounding these deaths, including 
risk factors which could potentially be avoided to prevent future 
child deaths. The aim of the Annual Report was to inform and 

guide local organisations on preventing further child deaths. 
 

The Annual Report presented an analysis of data gathered and 
presented recommendations and actions arising from 
considerations in the previous year.  The Report was supported 

at the meeting by a presentation introduced by Rebecca 
Fletcher, Consultant in Public Health and Chair of the ORB 

CDOP 2019/20 and Annie Lowe, Public Health Registrar.  The 
Report contained a review of the 129 closed cases in GM and 
data collected between 1st April 2019 -31st March 2020.   

 

Page 159



 

Highlighted report findings were that a reduction in the number 
of cases reviewed across all CDOPs were mainly due to 

changes in the child death review process; and potentially 
modifiable factors were identified in 40% of all closed cases, 
with identified themes of age, causes, deprivation and ethnicity 

being further considered.  Modifiable factors highlighted in the 
GM report included unsafe sleeping, maternal obesity in 

pregnancy, consanguinity, and smoking 
 

The Annual Report recommendations were summarised to the 

Board as  

 local areas should use the information on BAME 

communities being disproportionately represented, along 
with other local information, to inform work to address 
health inequalities; 

 a continuing focus be given to smoking cessation in 
pregnant women; 

 GM local authorities needing to reduce levels of obesity 
throughout the population, including women; 

 GM CDOP Chairs to commission a 5-year GM CDOP 
analysis of cases; 

 local areas to consider real time data on suicides to 

inform more timely responses; and 

 implementation of an electronic CDOP reporting system 

to improve the process.  
 

Further to a query as to whether future reports might include a 
trend analysis, it was suggested that as numbers were small 
these might be difficult to demonstrate.  However, local figures 

were reviewed to see if trends were emerging and the proposed 
five year report may enable trends, particularly at the GM level, 

to be identified. 
 
RESOLVED that the Greater Manchester Child Death Overview 

Panels Annual Report 2019/20 be received and noted, and the 
recommendations contained therein be supported. 

 

8   NATIONAL CHILD MORTALITY DATABASE ANNUAL 
REPORT 2019-2020  

 

The Board received the 2019/20 Annual Report of the National 
Child Mortality Database (NCMD).  The NCMD collates data 

collected by all the Child Death Overview Panels (CDOPs) in 
England from their reviews of all children who die at any time 

after birth and before their 18th birthday. The Annual Report, the 
first prepared by the NCMD, covered the deaths of those 
children whose death was reviewed by a CDOP between 1st 

April 2019 and 31st March 2020, the purpose of the Report being 
to understand why children die and to put in place interventions 

to protect other children and reduce the risk of future deaths.  A 
second NCMD annual report was to follow in Spring 2021 to 
include detailed analysis along with key messages and 

recommendations informed by the data and in consultation with 
the NCMD stakeholder professional and public representation 

groups. 

Page 160



 

 
The Annual Report was supported at the meeting by a 

presentation introduced by Rebecca Fletcher, Consultant in 
Public Health and Chair of the Bury, Rochdale and Oldham 
CDOP 2019/20 and Annie Lowe, Public Health Registrar.  The 

presentation highlighted the following key points from the Annual 
Report -  

   the NCMD received 3,347 child death notifications 1 
April 2019 and 31 March 2020; 

   there had been a decrease in the numbers of cases 

reviewed and closed nationally; 

   “Perinatal/neonatal event”, and “Chromosomal, genetic 

and congenital anomalies” combined represented over 
half (56%) of reviews completed. For 63% of deaths 

reviewed the child was aged under 1; 

   31% of the reviews identified one or more modifiable 
factors; and 

   sudden, unexpected and unexplained deaths, deliberate 
injuries and trauma had the most modifiable factors 

identified 
 
RESOLVED that the National Child Mortality Database Annual 

Report 2019/20 be received and noted. 
 

9   THE OLDHAM SIX-MONTH PLAN FOR COVID   

The Board received a presentation introduced by Katrina 

Stephens, Director of Public Health which set out what Oldham 
planned to do to contain Covid-19 over the next six months. 

 
The presentation reflected on the efforts across Team Oldham 
and local communities to respond to the unprecedented 

challenge to life posed by Covid-19, with Oldham suffering some 
of the highest rates of infections and deaths in the country.  A 

number of successes had been achieved by working together 
across Oldham and Greater Manchester, such as localised 
containment measures, improving Covid-safe practices across 

various settings and sectors, and supporting the most 
vulnerable.  The impact of Covid and the measures to contain it 

in Oldham had already had far reaching impacts, and had 
exacerbated health, social and economic inequalities both within 
Oldham and between Oldham and the rest of the UK.  

 
Looking ahead to the next six months, there were a number of 

challenges to overcome but through collective action and 
scientific developments it was hoped that a position could be 
reached where the virus no longer posed a significant risk.  

However, while Covid-19 continued to pose a very serious threat 
the Plan set out what Team Oldham will do to contain Covid-19 

over the next six months. The Oldham Plan was based on the 
Greater Manchester Covid-19 Six-Month Plan, but contained 
specific detail about Oldham’s response, setting out how an 

evidence-based approach would be taken through the 
assessment framework which had been developed, and how 

work would be undertaken within the Government’s tiered 

Page 161



 

approach to contain Covid.  Recognising the impacts that the 
containment measures have, the mitigations which will put in 

place over the next six months to support health, reduce social 
harms and protect the economy were also considered.  The 
Plan also set out what will be done in terms of the rollout of a 

vaccine and testing to enable us to live with Covid in the longer 
term. 

 
The presentation gave detailed consideration to the impact of 
Covid-19 in Oldham; the containing of Covid-19; communicating, 

engaging and activating our communities; mitigating harms; and 
living with Covid-19, setting out priorities and planned actions for 

the coming six months in each case. 
 
It was noted that action would be required from national 

Government over the coming months to support the Oldham and 
GM response to control the spread of the virus and to provide 

the support our individuals, communities and businesses need 
to survive the next six months. It was also recognised that the 
socioeconomic implications of Covid-19 may only just be starting 

to be seen and packages of further support would be required to 
ensure that GM is able to recover from the virus and we can 
continue to tackle the inequalities within Oldham, and between 

Oldham and the rest of the UK.  
 
RESOLVED that the Oldham Six Month Plan for Covid be 

noted. 
 

10   UPDATE ON NHS DEVELOPMENTS AND IMPACTS ON 
AND IN GREATER MANCHESTER  

 

Mike Barker, Chief Operating Officer introduced a presentation 
advising the Board of NHS developments over the coming 

months. 
 

Considering the final quarter of 2020/21, given the Covid second 
wave and the new, more transmissible, variant of the virus, it 
was clear that the winter period would be another challenging 

time for the NHS and presented five key tasks of responding to 
Covid-19 demand; implementing the Covid-19 vaccination 

programme; maximising capacity in all settings to treat non-
Covid-19 patients; responding to other emergency demand and 
managing winter pressures; and supporting the health and 

wellbeing of the workforce.  Activities and programmes 
supporting each of these key tasks were advised.   

 
Looking to 2021/22, national priorities would be on recovering 
non-Covid services; primary and community care; health 

inequalities; people and workforce; mental health; and 
integrating care.  While the Government had announced further 

funding for the NHS for 2021/22 within the Spending Review, 
the Government would consider what additional funding would 
be required to reflect Covid-19 cost pressures once impacts 

were clearer.  Locally, Oldham’s health and care phase 3 
recovery assessment had been established and a six month 

plan with eight priorities of cancer; elective; workforce; mental 

Page 162



 

health and learning disabilities; health inequalities; primary care; 
winter; and integrated care determined. Actions underway and 

planned to further address these priorities were outlined in the 
presentation. 
 

A process for the transition to an integrated system model for 
health and social care during 2021/22 was advised, with a view 

to shadow running from September 2021.  The presentation 
considered the vision and principles behind this development 
and the issues being considered in the development of new 

systems and arrangements. Key areas for focus in the period to 
March 2021 relating to governance options, the financial 

framework, the clinical and professional leadership model and 
framework, the determination of appropriate geographies for 
specific services and commissioning responsibilities, a detailed 

CCG functional analysis and People/HR implications, were 
noted. 

 
The opportunity that the proposals presented to have a system 
wide approach to issues such as deprivation and health 

inequalities was noted, it being further observed that while 
Oldham had recently faced a number of challenges, these had 
been responded to by Oldham organisations speaking with one 

voice and working together.  
 
RESOLVED that the update on NHS developments be noted. 

 

11   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

It was noted that the next meeting of the Board was scheduled 

to be held on Tuesday, 23rd March 2020 at 2.00pm.  
 
 

 
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 3.30 pm 

 

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD 
23/03/2021 at 2.00 pm 

 
 

 Councillor Stretton (Chair)  

Councillors Ball, M Bashforth, Chauhan, Moores and Sykes 
 

Mike Barker Executive Director Commissioning 

and Chief Operating Officer 

(Oldham Council/Oldham CCG) 

Mark Warren Managing Director of Health and 

Adult Care Services 

Gerard Jones Managing Director of Children and 

Young People 

Rebekah Sutcliffe Strategic Director for Communities 

and Reform 

Katrina Stephens Director of Public Health 

Tamoor Tariq Oldham Healthwatch 

Stuart Lockwood Oldham Community Leisure 

Emma Davison First Choice Homes 

Liz Windsor-Welch Action Together 

Claire Smith Director of Nursing and Quality, 

Oldham CCG 

Joanne Sloan Dr Kershaws 

Janette Olsen Bridgewater NHS Foundation Trust 

  

Also in Attendance:  

Sian Walter-Browne Constitutional Services 

Mark Hardman Constitutional Services 
 

 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from David Jago, Dr John 
Patterson, Dr Keith Jeffrey, Majid Hussain, Carolyn Wilkins, 

Donna Cezair and Karen Worthington.     
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Tamoor Tariq declared a personal interest in the business of the 

Board generally by virtue of being an elected member of Bury 
Council and a member of the Bury Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

No public questions had been received. 

 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board held on 26th January 2021 be approved as a 
correct record. 

Page 165



 

 

6   HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD TERMS OF 
REFERENCE  

 

The Board was advised that a review of the Council’s 

Constitution was now largely complete and that final matters, 
including a refresh of the terms of reference of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, were to be submitted to the Council meeting 

on 24th March 2021. 
 

The terms of reference of the Health and Wellbeing Board are 
contained at Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) in the Council 
Constitution and had been considered within a refresh exercise, 

focused on updating and refining content as opposed to 
presenting revised arrangements.  The existing terms of 

reference of the Board were those as determined on formal 
establishment in 2012 meaning that subsequent organisational 
and governance developments impacting on the Board were not 

acknowledged and the terms of reference are silent on certain 
reporting arrangements that had been determined over time.  

The proposed revised terms of reference were submitted for 
consideration. 
 

It had been proposed that the Board review the terms of 
reference in 12 months time but, in light of the recently 

published NHS White Paper, the anticipated legislative 
programme and changes in governance arrangements in the 
health and care sectors, it was suggested that a consideration in 

the autumn might be more appropriate. 
 
RESOLVED that 

1. the draft revised terms of reference of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board be noted and supported; 

2. the Board terms of reference be further reviewed in 
autumn 2021 as legislative and governance proposals 

develop.  
 

7   REFRESH OF THE LOCAL OUTBREAK PLAN   

The Board was updated on Oldham’s Local Outbreak 

Management Plan (LOMP) for Covid-19 and considered the 
refreshed version of the Plan.  While local authorities have an 
ongoing statutory responsibility to have LOMPs in place for 

responding to emergencies in their areas, they had been tasked 
by Government to produce specific plans by, in the first 

instance, the end of June 2020 in response to the ongoing 
COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

All local authorities had been asked to review and update their 

LOMP in March 2021 to incorporate the learning of the past nine 
months, to plan for the next phase of the response, to account 
for the associated funding, and to reflect potential changes in 

local roles, responsibilities and resources. The refresh also 
presented an opportunity to identify and share good practice and 

to reflect developments since the original plans were produced.  
Oldham’s LOMP had been reviewed and an updated version 

Page 166



 

produced accordingly, in line with guidance provided by NHS 
Test and Trace for the refresh of plans.  
 

The updated Plan was shared with the Contain Regional 

Partnership Team on 12th March 2021. NHS Test and Trace had 
acknowledged that the timeframe given for the refresh might not 

have allowed local systems to seek the necessary sign-off for 
their plans through the appropriate governance structures and, 
as such, there was an opportunity to amend and further develop 

the Plan in response to any feedback provided by the Board.  
The Regional Partnership Team would next review the Oldham 

Plan in order to gather information about good practice, issues, 
risks and opportunities to inform discussions with central 
Government.  

 
Members of the Board expressed thanks to the Director of 

Public Health and to all the staff and partners who had 
contributed to the refresh exercise over the short timescale 
provided.  It was noted that the Plan needed to be a dynamic 

document that could be adjusted to reflect both new 
circumstances and new learning.  Greater awareness of working 

across Oldham had been gained through the pandemic, while 
there had been much learning and increased understanding of 
the impact of inequalities on health outcomes.  An Inequalities 

Advisory Group had been established which was developing an 
Equalities Strategy and a Multi-Agency Poverty Action Plan 

which, alongside the LOMP, would enhance the recognition of 
and response to inequalities. 
 

The work that had been developed to assist those with no digital 
access in being able to access support, including to Covid 

testing and vaccination, was supported.  Noting reference to the 
development of communications with regard to financial support 
for those required to isolate, it was asked if this could include 

clear pathways for those applying for support.  This issue was 
acknowledged, it being noted that it was also important people 

were aware of the availability of support before it was needed.  
People were concerned about job security which financial 
support alone would not resolve and work around this issue was 

needed with employers. 
 

The Board was advised that Healthwatch had circulated the 
draft report arising from their Covid Survey for comment to those 
organisations identified within the recommendations and those 

in receipt of the draft were urged to respond.  The final report 
would be published following receipt and consideration of 

responses received.  Earlier comments made regarding 
inequalities were referenced, with the importance of having the 
patient experience and engagement considered and reflected in 

the addressing of inequalities being advised, along with the 
support this could provide in getting community support for a 

range of activities such as social prescribing and developments 
in primary care. 
 

While recognising what had been done well to date, it was 
commented that the Board needed to consider what would be 

Page 167



 

done differently in response any future pandemic, reflecting on 
those lives lost and those who were still suffering and ensuring 

that learning would produce different, better results.  The 
experience of the first lockdown, where people were more likely 
to seek and get support from family, friends and their local 

community, was noted and it was suggested that this support 
approach had been lost over time.  There was a need to look to 

opportunities to re-invigorate such activity and support. 
 
RESOLVED that the refreshed Oldham Local Outbreak 

Management Plan be endorsed. 
 

8   NHS WHITE PAPER - INTEGRATION AND INNOVATION: 

WORKING TOGETHER TO IMPROVE HEALTH AND 
SOCIAL CARE FOR ALL  

 

The Board received a paper providing a briefing on the recently 
published NHS White Paper “Integration and Innovation: 

Working Together to Improve Health & Social Care for All”.  The 
Secretary of State for Health and Social Care had asked NHS 

England in 2019 to identify and consult on what legislative 
changes were needed to fulfil the ambitions of the ten-year NHS 
long term plan, the White Paper being the result.  The White 

Paper did not cover broader social care reform, giving instead a 
commitment to publish proposals for reform in the current year, 

but it did give some direction of travel for adult social care and 
for changes in public health. 

 

The proposals in the White Paper were considered in the 
following themes –  

 working together to integrate care – proposing statutory 
Integrated Care Systems (ICSs) with “dual structure” 
governance arrangements; 

 reducing bureaucracy, including the removal of 
requirements on competition and procurement in the 

NHS; and 

 improving accountability and enhancing public confidence 

– proposing the formal merger of NHS England and NHS 
Improvement and new powers for the Secretary of State. 

Additional proposals, many related to public health and adult 

social care, would be set out in a Health and Care Bill, with 
legislation in place for implementation in 2022. 

 
The principal focus of the briefing related to the working together 
to integrate care theme, it being noted that the forthcoming 

Health and Care Bill will support two forms of integration.  
Firstly, through the removal of barriers within the NHS and 

making “working together an organising principle”, NHS bodies 
were to have a “triple-aim” duty of better health and wellbeing for 
everyone, better quality of health services for individuals, and 

sustainable use of NHS resources, the intention being to help 
align NHS bodies around a common set of objectives with 

strong engagement with local communities; and secondly  
through greater collaboration between the NHS, local 
government and wider delivery partners to improve health and 

wellbeing outcomes for local people.   

Page 168



 

 
Local authorities and NHS bodies would be expected to work 

together in the ICS under one system umbrella. ICSs would be 
put on a statutory footing to allow stronger and streamlined 
decision making and accountability and have “dual structure” 

arrangements reflecting the two forms of integration – an ICS 
NHS body (or Board) and an ICS Health and Care Partnership, 

the composition and roles of each being considered in the 
briefing.  The briefing further outlined proposals in respect of 
each theme and noted the government’s recognition of the 

significant pressures faced by the social care sector and the 
intention to bring forward proposals for reform aimed at ensuring 

everyone can access affordable, high quality, joined-up and 
sustainable adult social care. 
 

Comment was made as to the need to fight to ensure that 
appropriate structures were introduced for Oldham, ensuring 

that local decision making that maintained the One Oldham 
approach was delivered, and ensuring that the voluntary sector 
was included in commissioning arrangements and thrived. 

 
With regard to Social Care, it was noted that the Chancellor had 
been silent on the adult social care funding challenge in his 

recent financial statement, and reference was made to 
confusion around charging and the failure to enact provisions in 

Part 2 of the Care Act.  The new assurance framework and the 
role of the Care Quality Commission in assessing delivery of 
local authority services was noted, though discussion was 

ongoing as to the form this might take.  Arrangements regarding 
discharge assessments were similarly in need of further detail 

and consideration. 
 
The frequent reference to Public Health in the White Paper was 

noted, though the need for further detail was suggested.  
References to obesity and fluoridation appeared as very specific 

issues, but it was suggested that this might relate to the 
requirement for primary legislation to introduce powers for the 
Secretary of State. 

 
Possible future arrangements for Oldham were further 

considered, including the process by which Oldham could 
control what happens in Oldham, and the need to ensure that 
health inequalities, not explicitly written into the White Paper, 

were addressed and written into local modelling.  The work 
ongoing at the various Boards across Greater Manchester to 

consider future arrangements was outlined.  The White Paper 
strengthened the role of localities, and there was discussion 
around what would happen in Greater Manchester moving 

forward, what activities would take place where, and the 
implications of the disappearance of the CCGs. 

 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 

 

9   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

Page 169



 

It was noted that the next meeting of the Board was scheduled 
to be held on Tuesday, 22nd June 2021 at 2pm, with further 

meetings of the Board scheduled to be held on Tuesdays 27th 
July (Development Session), 14th September, 16th November, 
14th December (Development Session) 2021, 25th January and 

22nd March 2022 at 2.00pm. 
 

 
The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 3.00 pm 

 

Page 170



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 

 

The decision is for Elected Members to note the updates to the actions from previous 
Council meetings. 
 
Executive Summary 

 
1. This report provides feedback to the Council on actions taken at the Council 

meeting on 24th March 2021. 

 
2. This report also provides feedback on other issues raised at that meeting. 

 
Recommendations 
 

Council are asked to agree the action taken, reports considered and correspondence 
received regarding motions and actions agreed at the previous Council meeting. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

COUNCIL  

 
Update on Actions from Council 
 

Portfolio Holder:   Various 
 
 
Officer Contact:  Director of Legal Services 
 
Report Author:  Elizabeth Drogan, Head of Democratic Services 
Ext. 4705 
 
14th July 2021 

Page 171

Agenda Item 11



 

  2 

Council 14th July 2021 
 
Update on Actions from Council 

 
1 Background 

 
1.1 The report sets out the actions officers have taken on motions of outstanding business and 

notice of motions approved at the Council meeting held on 24th March 2021. 
 

2 Current Position 

 
2.1 The current position from actions as a result of motions is set out in the table at Appendix 

1. A letter is attached at Appendix 2 in response to the spending review motion 
considered on 15th July 2020. Appendix 3 and 4 are Scrutiny reports to note in relation to 
motions. 

 
3 Options/Alternatives 

 
3.1 N/A 
 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 N/A 
 
5 Consultation 

 
5.1 N/A 
 
6 Financial Implications  

 
6.1 N/A 
 
7 Legal Services Comments 

 
7.1 N/A 
 
8. Co-operative Agenda 

 
8.1 N/A 
 
9 Human Resources Comments 

 
9.1 N/A 
 
10 Risk Assessments 

 
10.1 N/A 
 
11 IT Implications 

 
11.1 N/A 
 
12 Property Implications 

 
12.1 N/A 
 

Page 172



 

  3 

13 Procurement Implications 

 
13.1 N/A 
 
14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

 
14.1 N/A 
 
15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 

 
15.1 None 
 
16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 

 
16.1  No 
 
17 Key Decision 

 
17.1 No  
 
18 Key Decision Reference 
 
18.1 N/A 
 
19 Background Papers 

 
19.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not include 
documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by the Act: 
 

 Agenda and minutes of the Council meeting held 24th March 2021 are available 
online at:  http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails 
 

 
20 Appendices  

 
20.1 Appendix 1 – actions taken following the Council meeting held on 24th March 2021. 
 
 Appendix 2 – Health Scrutiny – Fast Food Motion 
 
 Appendix 3 – Health Scrutiny –  Not Every Disability is visable 
 

Page 173

http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Page 1 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

Actions from Council 24th March 2021 

 

ACTION ISSUE/RESPONSE WHO RESPONSIBLE DATE COMPLETED 

Youth Council Motion; Make 
Your Mark 

 

Letter to be sent to the Prime 
Minister. 

 
Letter to be sent to the Minister of 
State for Universities.  

 

Chief Executive 12th April 2021 
 

 
12th April 2021 
 

Administration Motion 1: 
Islamophobia 

Letter to be sent to Government 
Ministers 

 

Leader and Chief 
Executive 

 

12th April 2021 
 

 

Administration Motion 2: Fully 
funded and proper pay rise for 
council and school workers 

Letter to be sent Chancellor of 
Exchequer 
 

Letter to be sent to Secretary of 
State 

Chief Executive 
 
Chief Executive 

 

12th April 2021 
 
12th April 2021 

 
 

Opposition Motion 1: A Tax on 

Excess Online Profits  

Letter to be sent to Chancellor of 

Exchequer 
 

Letter to be sent to Oldham’s Three 
MPs 
 

Letter to be sent to Leaders of all 
Greater Manchester authorities 
 

Chief Executive 

 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 

12th April 2021 

 
12th April 2021 

 
 
 

12th April 2021 

Opposition Motion 2: 
Consultation on the UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund 

Letter to be sent to Secretary of 
State for Housing, Communities 
and Local Government  

 
Letter to be sent to Oldham’s Three 

MPs 
 
Letter to be sent to Mayor of 

Greater Manchester 

Chief Executive 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 

12th April 2021 
 
 

 
12th April 2021 

 
 
 

12th April 2021 

P
age 175



Appendix 1 

Page 2 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

 

Opposition Motion 3: Thanking 
our Schools and Education Staff 

Letter to be sent to the local 
representatives of the professional 

bodies and trades unions for the 
teaching, ancillary professions and 

to all schools, colleges and Early 
Years settings. 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

 

12th April 2021 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Oldham’s Covid-19 Response RESOLVED that the report be 

noted  

Council Council noted the report on 24th 

March 2021 
 

Update on the Actions from 

Council 
 

RESOLVED that the actions taken 

regarding motions and actions from 
previous Council meetings be 
agreed and correspondence and 

updates received be noted. 
 

Council 

 
 
 

 
 

Council noted the report on 24th 

March 2021 
 
 

Warding Arrangements RESOLVED that: 

1. The model of warding 
arrangements attached at 
Appendix 1 to the report be 

approved.  
2. The model of warding 

arrangements be submitted to 
the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England 

(LGBCE). 
 

Council Council approved the report on 

24th March 2021 

Constitutional Amendments RESOLVED that: 

1. The suggested amendments to 
Part 3 (Responsibility for 
Functions) as part of the refresh 

of the Council’s Constitution 
arising from the review of 

employment related decision 
making and the refresh of the 

Council Council approved the report on 

24th March 2021 

P
age 176



Appendix 1 

Page 3 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

Health and Wellbeing Board 
terms of reference be agreed; 

2. The Employment Committee be 
requested to further consider the 
procedures and arrangements for 

the operation of the established 
Sub-Committees of the 

Committee; 
3. The review of the revised 

employment related decision 

making arrangements in 12 
months time be agreed; 

4. It be agreed that the Council’s 
revised employment related 
decision making arrangements 

and Overview and Scrutiny 
arrangements be implemented 

with effect from the date of 
Annual Council, 19th May 2021; 

5. The dates for meetings of the 

Council’s revised Overview and 
Scrutiny arrangements as 

proposed in paragraph 4.2 be 
agreed; 

6. Any consequential amendments 

to the Council’s Constitution 
arising from the amendments as 

presented in the report be 
delegated to the Director of 
Legal. 

 

Consequential Amendments RESOLVED that the report be 

noted. 

 

Council Council noted the report on 24th 
March 2021 

Member Annual Reports 2020 RESOLVED that the Member 

Annual Reports be noted. 
Council Council noted the report on 24th 

March 2021 

P
age 177



Appendix 1 

Page 4 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

 

Adoption of Revised Licensing 
Act 2003 Policy 

RESOLVED that: 

1. The report be noted;  

2. The new Statement of Licensing 
Policy be approved with 

immediate effect. 
 

Council Council approved the report on 
24th March 2021 

Arrangements for the 
Preparation of 'Places For 

Everyone': A Proposed Joint 
Development Plan Document on 

Behalf of Nine Greater 
Manchester Districts 
 

 

RESOLVED that: 

1. The making of an agreement with 

the other 8 Greater Manchester 
councils (Bolton, Bury, 

Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, 
Tameside, Trafford, Wigan) to 
prepare a joint development plan 

document to cover strategic 
policies including housing and 

employment land requirements 
and, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt 

boundary amendments and 
associated infrastructure across 

the nine districts be approved. 
2. It be agreed that Oldham 

Council’s lead Member for the 

joint committee be Leader of the 
Council and that the Cabinet 

Member for Housing be 
nominated as deputy, to attend 
and vote as necessary. 

3. It be noted that the Cabinet 
would be asked to delegate the 

formulation and preparation of 
the draft joint development plan 
document to a joint committee of 

the nine GM authorities. 

Council Council approved the report on 
24th March 2021 

P
age 178



Appendix 1 

Page 5 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

4. It be noted that a further report 
would be brought to full Council 

seeking approval to submit the 
joint development plan document 
to the Secretary of State for 

independent examination. 
5. It be recommended that the 

Cabinet 
i. Note that full Council has 

approved the making of an 

agreement with the other 8 
Greater Manchester councils 

(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, 
Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, 
Trafford, Wigan) to prepare a 

joint development plan 
document to cover strategic 

policies including housing and 
employment land 
requirements and, as 

appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt 

boundary amendments and 
associated infrastructure 
across the nine districts. 

ii. Delegate to a Joint 
Committee of the nine 

Greater Manchester councils 
the formulation and 
preparation of the joint 

development plan document 
to cover housing and 

employment land 
requirements including, as 
appropriate, strategic site 

allocations and Green Belt 

P
age 179



Appendix 1 

Page 6 of 6 Update on Actions from Council  

boundary amendments and 
associated infrastructure 

across the nine Greater 
Manchester districts insofar 
as such matters are executive 

functions. 
iii. Note that the following are the 

sole responsibility of full 
Council: 

a.  Responsibility for giving 

of instructions to the 
Cabinet to reconsider 

the draft plan submitted 
by the Cabinet for the 
Council’s consideration. 

b.  The amendment of the 
draft joint development 

plan document 
submitted by the Cabinet 
for the full Council’s 

consideration. 
c.  The approval of the joint 

development plan 
document for the 
purposes of submission 

to the Secretary of State 
for independent 

examination. 
d.  The adoption of the joint 

development plan 

document. 
 

 
 

P
age 180



 

 

 

Appendix 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason for Decision 

A Council Motion ‘Ban on Fast Food and Energy Drink Advertising’ was referred to the 

Health Scrutiny Committee for consideration.  The Committee has considered its 
consideration to be substantially concluded and, at a meeting held on 16th March 2021, 
referred the attached report to the Council for information. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

1. The Council is recommended to note the attached report of the Health Scrutiny 

Committee. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to COUNCIL 

Council Motion – Ban on Fast Food and 

Energy Drink Advertising 

Chair:  
Councillor Yasmin Toor 
 
Lead Officer: Elizabeth Drogan, Statutory Scrutiny Officer 
 
Report Author: Mark Hardman, Constitutional Services 
 
14th July 2021 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason for Decision 

A Council Motion ‘Ban on Fast Food and Energy Drink Advertising’ was referred to the 

Health Scrutiny Committee for consideration.  The Committee referred recommendations 
for consideration to the Cabinet and this report advises of the Cabinet consideration. 
 
 
Recommendations 

 

1. The Health Scrutiny Committee note the report and agree to its submission to 
Council. 

2. The Health Scrutiny Committee receive an update report on the progress of actions 
linked to the Council Motion, and the Committee work programme be updated 

accordingly.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Council Motion – Ban on Fast Food and 

Energy Drink Advertising 

Chair:  

Councillor Shoab Akhtar 

 

Report Author: Mark Hardman, Constitutional Services 

 

16th March 2021 

Page 183



 

  2 

Health Scrutiny Committee 16th March 2021 
 
Council Motion – Ban on Fast Food and Energy Drink Advertising 

 
1 Background 

 
1.1 At a meeting held on 11th September 2019 the Council referred the following Motion to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Board –  
 
“Council notes that: 

 Fast food contains high level of fats, salt and sugar and energy drinks often 
contain high levels of caffeine and sugar. 

 Excessive consumption of these products contributes to obesity, tooth decay, 
diabetes, gastro-intestinal problems, sleep deprivation and hyperactivity. 

 The Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health predicts half of all children in 
the UK will be overweight or obese by 2020. 

 The Mayor of London banned all fast food advertising on publicly-controlled 
advertising spaces across London’s entire transport network. 

 Sustain and Foodwatch recently published a report ‘Taking Down Junk Food 
Adverts’ which recommends that local authorities regulate adverts on public 
telephone boxes and that the Advertising Standards Authority should be able to 
regulate advertising outside nurseries, children’s centres, parks, family 
attractions and leisure centres. 

 
As a local authority with a statutory responsibility for public health, Council believes 
that it should do all that is possible to discourage the consumption of fast food and 
energy drinks. 
 
Council therefore resolves to: 

 Ask the Chief Executive to write to the Chief Executive of Transport for Greater 
Manchester asking TFGM to impose a ban on the advertising of fast food and 
energy drinks on publicly owned poster sites etc across the Greater Manchester 
transport network. 

 Ensure that fast food or energy are not advertised on any hoarding or within any 
building owned by this Council including large advertisements on bus stops.   

 Ensure that such products are not sold to children or young people on any of our 
premises. 

 Ask our NHS, social housing, voluntary and private sector partners, including the 
Mayor of Greater Manchester, to make a similar undertaking. 

 Ask the Chief Executive to write to the relevant minister requesting the 
recommendations of the ‘Taking Down Junk Food Adverts’ report be adopted as 
government policy as soon as possible; copying in our local members of 
Parliament to seek their support.” 

 
1.2 Following a further referral to the Health Scrutiny Committee, at the meeting held on 7 th 

January 2020 the Committee resolved that a report on the Motion be submitted to the next 
meeting.  Following a delay caused by the cancellation of the March 2020 meeting due to 
Covid-19, the Motion was considered by the Health Scrutiny Committee on 7th July 2020. 
 

1.3 At the meeting held on 7th July 2020 the Committee received a detailed report on the 
matters raised in the Motion.  This report also noted that the Public Health team had 
planned to put forward a proposed Healthy Weight and Physical Activity Strategy to the 
March 2020 Committee meeting and that this development had been placed on hold due 
to the need to concentrate on mandated services in response to Covid-19.  This 

Page 184



 

  3 

requirement and its implications were further considered in the Health Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme report on the July 2020 agenda.  The proposed Strategy had contained 
an action relating to the restriction of unhealthy food adverts and the planned multi-
agency delivery of the Strategy would support some of the intentions of the Council 
Motion. 

 
1.4 In discussion at the meeting held on 7th July 2020, Members considered whether certain 

matters might benefit from a Greater Manchester-wide consideration.  Members further 
noted that the proposed Healthy Weight and Physical Activity Strategy would link to 
certain aspects of the Motion and asked the Director of Public Health to consider 
submission of the draft Strategy to allow a fuller consideration of the Motion.   

 

1.5 At the meeting of the Committee held on 1st September 2020 the Committee received the 
draft Strategy “Healthy Weight and Physical Activity Strategy” as prepared for submission 
for consultative purposes to the meeting of the Committee scheduled for March 2020, 
alongside the detailed report that had been submitted to the July 2020 meeting.  The 
Committee resolved that 

1. the Motion be referred to the Cabinet with a recommendation that the issues 
raised within the Motion relating to a Ban on Fast Food and Energy Drinks 
Advertising be progressed on a Greater Manchester-wide basis, that the matter 
be raised with the Leaders of the other Greater Manchester authorities, and that 
the Mayor of Greater Manchester be requested to run a campaign on these 
issues in conjunction with the Greater Manchester local authorities; 

2. the Cabinet be requested to submit a progress report on actions taken to this 
Committee. 

 
1.6 The Health Scrutiny Committee recommendations, including the detailed report 

considered by the Committee in September 2020, was considered at a meeting of the 
Cabinet held on 25th January at which it was resolved that  

1. The issues raised within the Motion relating to a Ban on Fast Food and Energy 
Drinks Advertising be progressed on a Greater Manchester-wide basis, that the 
matter be raised with the Leaders of the other Greater Manchester authorities, 
and that the Mayor of Greater Manchester be requested to run a campaign on 
these issues in conjunction with the Greater Manchester local authorities. 

2. A progress report on actions taken in relation to the issues raised within the 
motion to a Ban on Fast Food and Energy Drinks Advertising be submitted to 
the Health Scrutiny Committee.  

 
2 Conclusion 

 
3.1 The Committee consideration of the Council Motion can, with the response of the Cabinet, 

be considered as substantially concluded and the Council advised accordingly.  The 
commitment to submit a progress report should be noted, and the item will remain lis ted 
on the Committee Work Programme for future consideration. 

 
3 Background Papers 

 
3.1 There are no background papers as defined by Section 100(1) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to this report. 
 
3.2 However, reports and minutes related to this issue can be accessed as follows 

 Health Scrutiny Committee, 7th July 2020 - 
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7989&V
er=4  

Page 185

https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7989&Ver=4
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7989&Ver=4


 

  4 

 Health Scrutiny Committee, 1st September 2020 - 
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7990&V
er=4  

 Cabinet, 225th January 2021 - 
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=7963&V
er=4  

 
4 Appendices  

 
4.1 There are no appendices to this report. 
 
 
 

Page 186

https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7990&Ver=4
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7990&Ver=4
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=7963&Ver=4
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=7963&Ver=4


 

 

 

Appendix 4  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason for Decision 

A Council Motion ‘Not every Disability is Visible’ was referred to the Health Scrutiny 

Committee for consideration.  The Committee has considered its consideration to be 
substantially complete and, at a meeting held on 16th March 2021, referred the attached 
report to the Council for information. 

 
 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. The Council is recommended to note the attached report of the Health Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Council Motion – Not Every Disability is 

Visible 

Chair:  
Councillor Yasmin Toor 
 
Lead Officer: Elizabeth Drogan, Statutory Scrutiny Officer 
 
Report Author: Mark Hardman, Constitutional Services 
 
14th July 2021 

Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason for Decision 

A Council Motion ‘Not every Disability is Visible’ was referred to the Health Scrutiny 

Committee for consideration.  The Committee referred recommendations for consideration 
to the relevant Portfolio Holder and Officer, and this report advises of their considerations. 
 
 
Recommendations 

 

1. The Health Scrutiny Committee note the report and agree to its submission to 
Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Council Motion – Not Every Disability is 

Visible 

Chair:  

Councillor Shoab Akhtar 

 

Report Author: Mark Hardman, Constitutional Services 

 

16th March 2021 

Page 189



 

  2 

Health Scrutiny Committee 16th March 2021 
 
Council Motion – Not Every Disability is Visible  

 
1 Background 

 
1.1 At a meeting held on 9th September 2020 the Council referred the following Motion to 

‘Overview and Scrutiny’ –  
 

“This Council notes that: 

 The charity Crohn’s and Colitis UK is encouraging venues providing accessible 
public toilets to install new signage.  This is to help stop stigma and discrimination 
towards people with ‘invisible illnesses’ such as Crohn’s Disease or ulcerative colitis.  

 There have been instances nationally where such individual using an accessible 
toilet have been accused by staff members of being ineligible to use them.   

 These signs have two standing figures and a wheelchair user with the words 
Accessible Toilet and the logo ‘Not every disability is visible’.   

 The Government has decided recently that large accessible toilets for severely 
disabled people – known as Changing Places – will be made compulsory for large 
new buildings, such as shopping centres, supermarkets, sports and arts venues, in 
England from 2021.   

  
Council resolves to:   

 Ensure that accessible toilets on Council premises bear these signs.   

 Ask town and district centre retailers and leisure outlets to do likewise with their 
accessible public toilets.   

 Seek advice from the charity Crohn’s and Colitis UK on the information and training 
we should provide to Council staff members.  This is so they understand these 
illnesses and to prevent potential embarrassment for those who suffer with them  

 Ensure that any Changing Places toilets in our buildings are property signposted for 
visitors.   

 Ensure that the requirement to provide new Changing Place toilets is included within 
the Council’s future plans for new public buildings in the borough.” 

 
1.2 The Motion was referred to the Health Scrutiny Committee and considered at the meeting 

held on 8th December 2020.  At that meeting the Committee received a detailed report on 
the matters raised in the Motion that considered the Crohn’s and Colitis UK ‘Not every 
Disability is Visible’ campaign and the accessible toilet signage recommended, and also 
the features of ‘Changing Places’ toilets and a Government announcement that such toilets 
would be made compulsory both in new public buildings and in those undergoing major 
refurbishment from 2021.  The Committee also received a briefing paper and was 
addressed by Sarah Hollobone, Campaigns Manager, Crohn’s and Colitis UK. 
 

1.3 The Committee resolved that 
1. the issue of signage of accessible toilets as suggested by the Crohn’s and Colitis 

‘Not every disability is visible’ campaign be forwarded to the relevant Cabinet 
Member and Officers to look at and cost up the necessary changes and to report 
further to this Committee to enable the Committee to prepare a report on this 
matter; 

2. the provision of a Changing Places toilet facility at the Spindles Shopping Centre be 
referred to the relevant Portfolio Holder and Officers to look at and cost up to 
consider whether this could be provided, to apply for relevant grants and progress if 
the funding is forthcoming, and to report back to this Committee.   

 

Page 190



 

  3 

1.4 The recommendations were referred to the Leader of Council (with regard to Portfolio 
responsibility for “Corporate property and assets”) and the Deputy Chief Executive in the 
first instance as the ‘relevant Officer’ in respect of matters relating to the Council estate, 
regeneration and building control. 

 
1.5 The Leader of the Council gave his support to the costing of the proposals.  The Director of 

Economy has provided the following update for report to the Committee –  
  

“The Town Centre and Estates teams have confirmed the following actions in support of 
the resolutions from Health Scrutiny Committee.  

 New corporate signage confirmed in alignment with the “Not every disability is 
visible” documentation (example attached).   

 The new signs were costed and installed across corporate estate for all accessible 
toilets.  

 Information has also been shared with TEAM OLDHAM estates colleagues for wider 
application in all public estate toilet facilities in buildings.  

 The list of public toilets and information about accessible toilet facilities has been 
update on the council website for consistency and public awareness.  

 Estates team are aware that any / all refurbishments to buildings need to ensure / 
include accessible changing facilities.  This is embedded into the redevelopment 
plans for the spindles shopping centre and will be included as a baseline 
requirement for all corporate projects.” 

 
2 Conclusion 
 
2.1 The Committee may consider that, with the update provided by the Director of Economy, 

the Committee’s consideration of the Motion may be regarded as substantially concluded 
and the Council should be advised accordingly.  The actions undertaken should likewise 
be advised to Crohn’s and Colitis UK also.  

 
3 Appendices 
 
3.1 The example of the new corporate signage confirmed in alignment with the “Not every 

disability is visible” documentation, as referenced in paragraph 1.5 above, is appended.  
 
4 Background Papers 

 
4.1 There are no background papers as defined by Section 100(1) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 to this report. 
 
4.2 However, the Committee reports and minutes related to this issue can be accessed as 

follows 

 Health Scrutiny Committee, 8th December 2020 - 
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7992&V
er=4 

 
 
 
 

Page 191

https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7992&Ver=4
https://committees.oldham.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=457&MId=7992&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Not every disability is visible

P
age 193



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
As a Co-operative Council, Oldham is committed to tackling the impact of COVID-19, protecting 
our most vulnerable residents and communities. Building on the learning so far and the anticipated 
events to come, we have developed a comprehensive Recovery Strategy, which will help shape 
our approach and vision for Oldham over the next 18 months. 

 
Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy is adopted by Full Council. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Report to Full Council  

 
Covid-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 – 2022 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Shah, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economic and Social Reform  
 
Officer Contact:   
Carolyn Wilkins, Chief Executive and Accountable Officer Oldham 
CCG 
 
Report Author: Jonathan Downs, Corporate Policy Lead  
 
14th July 2021 
 
 

Page 195

Agenda Item 12



 

  2 

Council July 2021 

 
COVID-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 – 2022  
 
1 Background 

 
1.1 As a Co-operative Council, Oldham is committed to tackling the impact of COVID-19, 

protecting our most vulnerable residents and communities. The steps we are taking to 
tackle the pandemic and the subsequent recovery planning aim to support people across 
the borough, especially those groups who have been most impacted. 

 
1.2 Building on the learning so far and the anticipated events to come, we have developed a 

comprehensive Recovery Strategy, which will help shape our approach and vision for 
Oldham over the next 18 months. We do this whilst we continue to respond to an ongoing 
critical incident. 

 
1.3 Our objectives and approach to the Recovery Strategy are rooted in our vision, the 

Oldham Model, ensuring as we adapt to a changing world that we remain focused on 
building thriving communities, an inclusive economy and to deliver co-operatively.  

 
2 Current Position 

 
2.1 To develop the new COVID-19 Recovery Strategy priorities, consultation has taken place 

at Directorate Management Team Meetings (DMT), with Cabinet, and through engagement 
with overview and scrutiny. 

 
2.2 The Recovery Strategy is attached at Appendix 1 for approval. Key priority areas in the 

strategy are: 
 

1. Driving equality: Oldham is rich in diversity with a wealth of people from different 

backgrounds and cultures living and working together. However, we know that there are 
groups who are more likely to face inequality and discrimination than others. As we 
recover from the impact of COVID-19 it is critical that we tackle inequality and 
discrimination head on. We will continue to identify and mitigate the equality impacts 
caused by the pandemic, informing our recovery planning through lived experience. 

 
2. Investing in quality housing: Poor-quality housing has a profound impact on health. 

The condition of homes, insecure tenure, and wider neighbourhood characteristics all 
have a considerable effect on health and wellbeing. Groups in the population who are 
more likely to live in poor housing are often the same groups who are vulnerable to 
COVID-19 and other health conditions. To tackle this, we will improve housing quality, 
while bringing forward significant investment in new and affordable homes. 

 
3. Championing a green recovery: In Oldham, we want to respond to the impacts of 

Coronavirus in a bold and ambitious way.  We want to use this as an opportunity to 
stimulate a green recovery that accelerates our ambitions around reducing the 
borough’s carbon footprint and protecting our parks and greenspace for residents to 
enjoy. 

 
4. Creating and protecting jobs and supporting businesses: Many businesses, 

especially across hospitality and retail, have been impacted by the COVID-19 
pandemic, with repeated forced closures due to national and local lockdowns.  We will 
continue to create good jobs for our residents, while supporting local businesses to 
restart and recover from the effects of the pandemic. 

 

Page 196



 

  3 

5. Prioritising education and skills: The COVID-19 pandemic has had a huge impact 

on education and skills, with many young people needing support to ‘catch up’ in 
learning after several months of lockdown. We will work with schools and colleges to 
support children and young people to catch up and succeed in learning. We will also 
prioritise training for adults who have been made redundant, helping them retrain and 
secure employment. 

 
6. Promoting health and wellbeing and supporting the most vulnerable: We will 

continue to promote and improve the health and wellbeing of our communities, contain 
the spread of COVID-19 locally and target action to protect our most vulnerable 
residents and communities. 

 
2.3 Each of these focus areas forms a key strand of the COVID-19 Recovery Strategy, with 

individual actions attached to each priority area. The Strategy reflects the difficult and 
challenging times ahead and the opportunities that are arising as we recover from the 
pandemic as Team Oldham. The Strategy also sets out how we can embrace the ‘new 
normal’ to build a stronger local economy, increase community resilience and public 
participation, support our local health system, and support our most vulnerable residents. 

 
3.0 Monitoring the Recovery Plan 
 
3.1 The Council’s annual business planning process is the mechanism through which we will 

assure delivery against the Recovery Plan actions. Quarterly reporting via the Corporate 
Performance Framework will be provided against identified actions. In addition, our 
Corporate Performance Framework will be redeveloped to ensure oversight of the key 
performance metrics relating to our agreed priorities as well as to ensure effective service 
delivery of business as usual activity.  An annual performance report detailing progress 
against the Recovery plan priorities will be produced. 

 
3.2 Following Full Council approval, we will launch the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy, ensuring 

the priorities are embedded across Team Oldham. This will include creating a full 
communications and engagement programme, both within Team Oldham, with 
stakeholders and residents. We will also create an online tool to regularly update on 
progress.  

 
4 Options/Alternatives 
 
4.1 Option one – to adopt the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy. 
 
4.2 Option two – to not adopt the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy. 
 
5 Preferred Option 

 
5.1 Option one is the preferred and recommended option. 
 
6 Consultation 

 
6.1 Consultation has taken place at DMTs, Cabinet, and through engagement with overview 

and scrutiny. 
 
 
 
 
7 Financial Implications  

 

Page 197



 

  4 

7.1 The Council approved its 2021/22 revenue budget and capital programme on 4 March 2021. 
This sets out the financial framework for the year and the total funding envelope (subject to 
any further 2021/22 funding notifications).    

 
7.2 There are within the approved budget, some resources to support the Councils response to 

COVID.  In addition, some specific grant funding received in 2020/21 will be carried forward.  
These resources can be used, within eligibility criteria to support the COVID recovery plan  
However, it is important to note that the Council must deliver £8.8m of savings in 2021/22 
and has a significant financial challenge to be addressed in 2022/23 and 2023/24.  
Therefore, the COVID Recovery Plan must be guided by the financial context in which the 
Council is operating. (Anne Ryans, Director of Finance) 

 
8 Legal Services Comments 

 
8.1 N/A (Colin Brittain) 
 
9. Co-operative Agenda 

 
9.1 The Corporate Plan is the strategy which will help us to achieve our co-operative ambition 

over the next eighteen months. (Jonathan Downs) 
 
10 Human Resources Comments 

 
10.1 N/A 
 
11 Risk Assessments 

 
11.1 N/A 
 
12 IT Implications 

 
12.1 N/A 
 
13 Property Implications 

 
13.1 N/A 
 
14 Procurement Implications 

 
14.1 N/A 
 
15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

 
15.1 N/A 
 
16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 

 
16.1 N/A 
 
17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 

 
17.1  N/A 
 
18 Key Decision 

 
18.1 No 

Page 198



 

  5 

 
19 Key Decision Reference 

 
19.1 N/A 
 
20 Background Papers 
 
20.1   N/A 
 
21 Appendices  

 
21.1 Appendix 1: COVID-19 Recovery Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199



This page is intentionally left blank



Oldham Council 
Covid Recovery Strategy 
June 2021

P
age 201



Foreword 
Councillor Arooj Shah, 
Leader, Oldham Council 

This last year has been a tough one for our borough and its people. COVID-19 has hit 
Oldham hard. Many of us have lost loved ones, and seen others seriously ill or with long-term 
complications from Coronavirus. We also know that it has hit some of our areas and some of  
our communities much harder than others due to the existing inequalities in health, in income 
and in opportunities. 

Oldham was the first Council in the country to appoint a Cabinet Member for Covid Recovery 
back in May 2020. At the time of accepting the role I had no idea that a full year later we would 
still be in the midst of the pandemic, but also facing the need to deal with the very real long-term 
impacts that COVID-19 has had on local people’s physical and mental health, their finances, 
local jobs and businesses and the education of our children. 

This strategy is about acting quickly to do exactly that. While we are still responding to the very 
real challenges of managing a pandemic we have also established and will deliver against the 
key things needed to give Oldham the best change to recover as quickly as possible. And we’ll 
do this while always acknowledging that the situation isn’t the same for everyone. Some will 
need more help than others. 

It would be easy to reflect simply on the challenges but we have so much to be hopeful about 
and thankful for. Not least the amazing response of our communities over the last year. As a 
borough we have pulled together – helping our friends, family and neighbours, building stronger 
relationships in our communities and creating a legacy of care and understanding that will last 
way beyond this pandemic. 

Oldham has come together – local people, businesses, the voluntary and community sector and 
public services to support and care for each other like never before. 

Thank you so much for playing your part. 

P
age 202



Foreword
Dr Carolyn Wilkins OBE 
Chief Executive Oldham Council and 
Accountable Officer Oldham Clinical Commissioning Group

I’m delighted to be sharing our Covid Recovery Strategy – our clear plan for delivery over the  
next period. 

While the last year has been incredibly challenging it has shown what the public sector, working  
closely with its communities, can achieve. Together Oldham has shown the strength of its  
commitment, its resolve and its undeniable sense of teamwork. 

Team Oldham has been at the heart of our response – delivering care and support to those 
who need it, as well as delivering local testing, tracing and, most recently, the roll out of the 
Coronavirus vaccination programme. We have built new teams and services and reshaped 
others. Our helpline and door-to-door engagement teams have offered a lifeline to many 
thousands of residents and we have administered financial grants and advice to thousands of 
local businesses. 

Alongside this we’ve continued to deliver other vital services – from health visiting to social care 
and from youth services to bin collections, our teams have continued to do what needed to be 
done. Throughout the last year we have been all too aware of the impact the pandemic was 
having on local people’s health, their jobs, education, and finances. Alongside our response we 
have been planning for recovery; thinking about what more we can do to make things better for 
local people and businesses. 

This plan allows us to look beyond the current pandemic, to restate our ambition, establish our 
priorities and drive forward with a relentless focus on delivery for Oldham and its people. 

P
age 203



What you told us 
To help us build this plan we asked Oldham residents to tell us their 
experiences of the pandemic, their thoughts, fears and hopes for the 
future and to help us set priorities for Team Oldham for the next  
12-18 months. 
In February 2021 we carried out an online survey of more than 600 
Oldham residents and throughout March held focus groups with 
parents of school aged children, black and minority ethnic residents 
(who were underrepresented in the survey), and business owners. 
We asked residents to talk to us about the ways that COVID-19 had 
impacted their lives and the level of concern they continued to have 
about the pandemic. 

The real-life impacts were stark. 

83% of residents told us they continued to be worried about 
COVID-19. 

84% had been affected by social isolation and 77% felt their mental 
health had been affected. This rose to 81% among informal carers 
and 89% among parents of school-aged children. 88% of parents we 
spoke to were concerned about the impact the pandemic was having 
on children’s mental health. 

95% of parents were worried about the impact COVID-19 had on their 
children’s education.

56% felt their ability to meet their caring responsibilities had been 
affected. This rose to 95% of informal carers.

65% felt their physical health had been affected, 66% had medical 
appointments cancelled or rescheduled and 50% say they had 
ignored other health concerns because of COVID-19.

54% told us their work or employment situation had been directly 
affected, rising to 90% among business owners.

44% said their overall finances were affected. In 30% of families we 
spoke to someone had lost their job, 56% said they or someone in 
their family had been furloughed.

32% said they needed financial support throughout the pandemic and 
30% needed to borrow money at some point. 45% of residents we 
spoke to didn’t feel or were uncertain they would financially recover 
from the pandemic.

63% of people had been forced to isolate, rising to 77% among 
parents of school-aged children.

We asked local people what we should focus on to make sure we 
boosted the recovery of the borough. We offered them a list of 
suggestions to prioritise and also offered the opportunity to identify 
any additional priorities they felt we had missed.
Overwhelmingly they told us that the number one priority should be 
to prioritise those most in need. They felt creating safe and decent 
homes and providing easy access to parks and green spaces were 
also important.
In addition, 24% felt we should support communities and/or tackle 
deprivation, 30% wanted us to prioritise them being able to safely 
spend time with family and friends or to access leisure and travel  
and 19% felt we should support local businesses.

P
age 204



The Impact of COVID-19 in Oldham
At the time of writing, the COVID-19 crisis is still ongoing.

Many of Team Oldham’s services have been affected due to 
Government restrictions, increases in service demand, or staff being 
redeployed to help combat the impact of the pandemic. However,  
one is clear from the emergency response work - many of the 
challenges we have responded to during the pandemic existed  
before COVID-19, though in many cases these challenges have  
been exacerbated by the virus.

Oldham is home to a diverse range of people. This diversity is a 
strength, to be valued and promoted. However, as the pandemic 
has progressed, research has shown that some people across our 
communities are more at risk should they come into contact with the 
virus. Specifically those residents who are over the age of 70 years, 
clinically vulnerable due to a pre-existing medical condition, are from 
a Black, Asian or minority ethnic background, living in a care home or 
working in a job where they have greater contact with members of the 
public such as a nurse, taxi driver or security guard. In Oldham 17,589 
residents were identified as being clinically extremely vulnerable 
and advised to shield. We continue to work across Team Oldham to 
mitigate and reduce the inequalities that exist in all areas including: 
health and wellbeing, economic prosperity, education, and service 
access and delivery.

According to our COVID-19 Resident Survey, the pandemic has 
also had a major impact on social and community life. The virus 
has brought loneliness, anxiety, financial insecurity, isolation and 
exclusion. Some residents will, for the first time, need to navigate the 
benefits system. Families have been bereaved and some individuals 
are dealing with the long-term medical implications of having had the 
virus. Many have lost their jobs or face future financial hardship, while 
key sectors of our economy have been severely impacted.

 

Going into the pandemic, one in three households had at least one 
major housing problem relating to overcrowding, affordability or poor-
quality housing. The pandemic has highlighted the health implications 
of housing. Poor housing conditions such as overcrowding and high 
density are associated with greater spread of the virus, and people 
have had to spend more time in homes that are overcrowded, damp 
or unsafe. The economic fallout from the pandemic is likely to lead 
to an increase in evictions across the private rented sector, further 
exacerbating the challenges already faced across Oldham.

As Team Oldham continues to help and support our communities 
and businesses, Oldham Council is also working towards a cleaner 
and greener borough. One thing Coronavirus has shown us is there 
are solutions to the climate change emergency. Carbon emissions 
fell dramatically in spring 2020 as people moved to working from 
home, with a huge improvement in air quality. Lockdowns and 
social distancing restrictions have also meant more residents have 
explored our green spaces as they’ve had to stay local to get fresh 
air and exercise. Cleaner air quality, healthier water, effective waste 
management, and enhanced biodiversity protection not only reduce 
the vulnerability of communities to pandemics and improve resilience, 
but have the potential to boost economic activity, generate income, 
create jobs and reduce inequalities.

Businesses have reported significant stress as a result of the 
pandemic and contain measures, including decreased sales,  
cashflow issues and less than six months sustainability. Many 
are increasingly reliant on Government support. Even before 
additional COVID-19 restrictions were in place, in Oldham we saw 
unemployment claimants almost double from 6,545 in March 2020 to 
a total of 14,015 at peak in September 2021. The end of Government 
support schemes including furlough in September 2021 and the 
start of interest payments on business loans is likely to cause further 
economic challenges across Oldham.

P
age 205



For young people, the COVID-19 crisis has caused considerable 
disruption to education and employment, impacted upon mental 
health and reduced disposable income. But the main challenges for 
children’s services are yet to come. As children return to school, and 
as the full, long-term impact of the pandemic becomes apparent, we 
anticipate a sharp increase in demand for everything from universal 
support services through to urgent child protection responses. We 
will also be working closely with schools to support children as they 
return, putting children’s needs at the heart of our recovery.

Over the next six months COVID-19 continues to pose a very serious 
threat, compounded by the additional challenges faced as restrictions 
start to be relaxed. We need to learn from the lessons of this last 
year in how to safely reopen our society and economy and continue 
to suppress the virus. The contain measures we put in place will be 
crucial to doing this.

 

P
age 206



The Oldham Model – our vision for the borough
As we recover from the pandemic, the Oldham Model continues to 
provide our vision for the borough – a vision that Team Oldham shares 
with our wider partners across the borough. 

It outlines the shared goals of:

•	 an inclusive economy, where everyone has a fair chance  
to improve their living standards, wages and skills.

•	 co-operative services, underpinned by collaboration,  
integration and innovation, that improve outcomes for  
residents and create effective and seamless services; and

•	 thriving communities, where people have the power to  
be healthy and happy and can make positive choices  
about their lives.

 

P
age 207



Our Priority Areas
This strategy builds on the work already happening across Team 
Oldham to recover from the impact of the pandemic and will form 
the basis of our work as we start to transition from crisis support to 
recovery.
Our Recovery Strategy shows how Team Oldham will prioritise 
services and initiatives to build a stronger borough, helping our 
communities and economy recover.
The strategy therefore sets out how we will help residents and 
businesses to get though these tough times, either directly, or by 
signposting to where support is available across Team Oldham.
It covers the next 12 months to 18 months and, based on feedback 
from our residents and supported by data and evidence, includes six 
key themes:
• Driving Equality
• Investing in Quality Housing
• Championing a Green Recovery
• Creating and protecting jobs and supporting businesses
• Prioritising education, skills and early years
• Promoting health and wellbeing and protecting the  

most vulnerable

P
age 208



We will continue to promote and 
improve the health and wellbeing of 
our communities, contain the spread of 
COVID-19 locally and target action to 
protect our most vulnerable residents  
and communities

Covid recovery plan 
2021–2022

We will continue to create good jobs 
for our residents, while supporting local 
businesses to restart and recover from 
the effects of the pandemic.

We will work with schools and colleges 
to support children and young people to 
catch up and succeed in learning. We 
will also prioritise training for adults who 
have been made redundant, helping 
them retrain and secure employment.

Team  
Oldham

Driving  
Equality

Prioritising 
education,  
skills and  

Early Years

Championing  
a green  
recovery

Investing  
in quality  
housing

Creating and 
protecting jobs 
and supporting 

businesses

Promoting  
heath and 
wellbeing.
Supporting  
the most  

vulnerable

We want to use this as an opportunity 
to stimulate a green recovery that 
accelerates our ambitions around 
reducing the borough’s carbon footprint 
and protecting our greenspace for 
residents to enjoy.

We will improve housing quality both 
inside and outside of the home, while 
bringing forward significant investment  
in new and affordable homes.

We will continue to identify and mitigate 
the equality impacts caused by the 
pandemic, informing our recovery 
planning through lived experience.

P
age 209



Driving Equality – The Context
 As we recover from the impact of COVID-19 it is critical that we tackle inequality and discrimination head on. The pandemic 

has exacerbated many pre-existing inequalities, including health and financial inequalities..

 The Marmot review ‘Fair Society, Healthy lives’ demonstrated how health inequalities are affected by a wide range of social and 
economic factors including where we live, our housing, our income, the environment, our relationship with the local community 
and the lifestyle choices we make.

 People living in deprived areas and in the lowest income group are much more likely to have a reduced life expectancy and a 
poorer health outcome than more affluent people.

 Public Health England (PHE) have found older people, males, those living in deprived areas, and those from Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnicities (BAME) are at increased risk of poor outcomes.

 Oldham has a significant proportion of wards within the most deprived 10% or 20% in England on almost all of the measures 
within IMD.

 The Northern Health Science Alliance has found that 12.4 more people per 100,000 population have died with COVID-19 in the 
North from March to July than elsewhere in the country, with 57.7 more people per 100,000 dying of all causes.

 COVID-19 has also resulted in a further deepening and widening of poverty in the borough. Unemployment rates have doubled 
since March and rates are highest in our most disadvantaged communities. We are especially concerned about the rise in 
youth unemployment; now approaching 16% borough wide in some hotspots, within our poorer wards, as high as 37%.

 Child poverty has increased over the past five years with 38% of children in Oldham live in poverty, the worst in Great Britain 
(18.4% average).

 Inequalities are also experienced in how people are treated – in the assumptions that are made; the language that is used; the 
way we communicate; and how services are designed and accessed.

P
age 210



Driving Equality – over the next twelve months we will:

1.  Enable those adversely impacted by COVID-19 to access the help they need
• Continue to identify, monitor and co-develop solutions to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on our communities through the work 

of the Equality Advisory Group and our partners. 
• Increase the number and quality of the services available online, making them easy to access for everyone. 
• Target support to our most vulnerable residents, supporting residents based on need through our place-based approach. 
• Support sustainability across the VCSFE sector, working as a system to explore how we do this. 
• Target prevention, earlier intervention and support services to those most at risk of homelessness, working towards ending 

rough sleeping in Oldham.
• Provide additional support to help children from disadvantaged backgrounds catch-up on their education and development.

2.  Reduce inequality and build resilience across Oldham’s communities
• Deliver our Equality Strategy, working with partners and communities to make Oldham a fairer place for everyone. 
• Increase the uptake of, and reduce inequalities in access to vaccination and screening programmes, including the Oldham 

Health Check and Covid vaccination programme.
• Improve mental health and wellbeing services, strengthening support for people at risk of emotional or mental health issues, 

including embedding mental health support for children and young people across children’s services and educational settings. 

3.  Reduce poverty and help people get back on their feet –
• Continue to tackle the symptoms and causes of poverty across the borough, including funding a Poverty Truth Commission, to 

develop new ways to help people who are struggling.
• Refresh and update the Business Growth & Investment and Work & Skills strategies to provide an economic recovery roadmap 

that aligns with COVID-19 Recovery Plan and Poverty Strategy. 
• Bring together financial support and debt advice services to make it easier for people to access the support they need.
• Improve people’s access to good quality, affordable food by improving provision across the borough.
• Fund Citizens Advice, to help people access the support they’re entitled to, and campaign to protect the £20 per week  

rise in Universal Credit.

P
age 211



Invest in Quality Housing – The Context
 Around one million owner-occupied homes in the North now fail to meet the Decent Homes Standard, in addition to 354,000 

private rented homes.

 There is a positive correlation between rates of Covid infection and both overcrowding and population density.

 Public Health England (2020) found that issues of overcrowding and poor housing conditions contributed to an increase in 
cases amongst members of BAME communities.

 The National Housing Federation (2020) indicated in June that 31% of adults in the UK had experienced mental or physical 
health problems during lockdown linked to limited housing space.

 230,000 private renters – who were not in arrears prior to the pandemic – having fallen behind on rent (Shelter, 2020). As of May 
2020, 39% of private renters now claim housing benefits (ibid.), with new research revealing that Universal Credit claimants are 
now more likely to be owner-occupiers and from the PRS than from social housing (Edmiston et al., 2020).

 There is an increase in energy use, due to more people spending more time at home. These costs are causing increased 
anxiety to a wider range of households.

 Households feel financially insecure and renters feel insecure in their tenancies.

 

P
age 212



Invest in Quality Housing – over the next twelve months we will:
1.		 Build	more	affordable	homes
• Speed up Council homebuilding, starting to deliver new homes in the town centre.
• Work with Registered Providers (RPs) across the borough to help deliver a minimum of 25% affordable homes.
• Work with RPs to accelerate and encourage Pathways to Ownership and Affordable Rent homes.
• Work with Children’s Social Care to improve housing/semi-independent living provision for young people aged 16+ and  

care leavers.  
• Make available a range of supported accommodation for people with learning disabilities, reflecting different levels of need.

2. Improve the quality and condition of existing homes
• Use the learning from our recent ‘Empty Homes pilot’ to put in place an improved scheme to tackle empty homes.
• Commission a private sector stock condition survey for Oldham which will highlight areas for improvement.
• Expand the award-winning Warm Homes Oldham service to keep people warm, safe and independent in their own homes and 

reduce demand for health and social care services. 
• Review and agree selective licensing area scope following consultation.
• Focus on improving private sector housing/empty properties and enforce to habitable standards.
• Implement a new ‘Private Tenants Charter’, outlining what tenants can expect from us as their landlord and what we expect  

from our tenants.

3. Support rough sleepers into permanent accommodation
• Ensure the increasing numbers of people needing help because of actual or threatened homelessness receive a good standard 

of service and help into a long term home.
• Publish a Temporary Accommodation (TA) Strategy for Oldham – this includes bringing online the Council’s own TA provision as 

well as leased accommodation (moving away from hotels, B&Bs and other nightly paid provision).
• Under our Corporate Parenting obligations deliver on our commitment to ensure Children Looked After 16+ and Care Leavers 

under the age of 25 remain in ‘Priority Need’, never  letting them become ‘Intentionally Homeless’.
• Deliver A Bed for Every Night to reduce Rough Sleeping and provide the support people need to move into secure homes.

   
 

P
age 213



Championing a Green Recovery – The Context
 Championing a green recovery is not only to ensure that we meet our climate change commitments, but also to ensure we 

realise the opportunity to make Oldham a green, healthy, fair, inclusive and socially just borough where everybody can thrive.

 Communities have suffered during this period of economic hibernation caused by local and national lockdowns and we need to 
ensure that we secure a recovery that delivers sustainable growth for all our residents.

 The only way to deliver sustainable long-term growth is to ensure that that growth is part of a transition to a decarbonised 
economy. Only growth that sustains industries that have a future will deliver the long-term jobs and investment that our 
communities need.

 Nearly 700,000 direct jobs could be created in England’s low-carbon and renewable energy economy by 2030, rising to more 
than 1.18 million by 2050. We need to think about how we support Oldham residents into those jobs and secure investment in 
the critical infrastructure to make the transition.

 Across Greater Manchester, empowering and resourcing communities to tackle issues such as poor air quality and congestion 
is also vital to achieving our climate goals.

 Net zero represents a once-in-a generation opportunity to upgrade England’s poorly performing housing stock. Net zero’s 
potential to improve the lives of people will only be maximised if policy makers view the programme as a wider opportunity to 
undertake holistic improvements to our housing stock.

P
age 214



Championing a Green Recovery – over the next twelve months we will:
1. Providing well maintained, accessible outdoor space for people to enjoy
• Progress our Local Plan to identify, protect and enhance the borough’s green spaces, especially Sites of Biological Importance. 
• Implement a Clean Air Zone as part of the GM Clean Air Plan, tackling air pollution across the borough.
• Support the development of Active Environments, reducing inactivity and increasing engagement in physical activity and sport.
• Identify land where remembrance and reflection trees could be planted to commemorate the people who have died during the 

pandemic. These will be established in six parks, with one in each district.
• Create cleaner environments for people to enjoy, reducing fly-tipping and improving rates of recycling. 

2. Build a greener economy that reduces Oldham’s carbon footprint
• Champion the Northern Roots project, helping local communities get involved in the green economy through growing  

and enterprise.
• Develop plans for a new District Heat Network which will use renewable heat from disused mines underneath the town centre. 
• Start to deliver the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme in private sector and social housing to improve energy 

efficiency, reduce fuel poverty and create new green jobs.
• Develop sustainable / green energy plans for corporate assets, and encourage growth in Oldham’s low-carbon and 

environmental goods and services sector, encouraging local investment in infrastructure that supports the green economy.
• Reduce emissions by improving our ICT technology, supporting the ability to work from different places.
• Engage young people with planning for the borough’s carbon neutral future, in line with the UN Conference on Climate Change.

3. Reduce carbon emissions from transport and increase cycling, walking and public transport use
• Improve walking and cycling routes in Oldham and continue to deliver the Bee Network.
• Implement a campaign to promote active travel including to schools, residents and workplaces.   
• Work with partners to improve the public transport offer in Oldham.
• Facilitate and accelerate the shift to electric vehicles by expanding the public Electric Vehicle charging network.

P
age 215



 
Creating and Protecting Jobs and Supporting Businesses – The Context

 Unemployment in Oldham has doubled (+98%) over the last 12 months, to a current total of 13,655 claimants, to levels 
significantly above those seen at the peak of the last recession in 2009. This is broadly in line with GM (+105%), but lower than 
England rate (125%).

 Over the same period Oldham’s monthly youth Claimant Count has increased by 117%, similar to GM (113%) but lower than 
England (133%).

 Increases to unemployment have hit more traditional deprived areas to a greater extent, rather than being spread proportionally 
across the borough. Social housing estates seem to have impacted the most, especially the isolated social housing estates 
such as Holts and Sholver.

 The Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) are projecting that unemployment will continue to rise nationally until June 2021, 
and won’t start to show a decrease until around September 2021. As Oldham’s economy is less resilient (as shown during the 
previous recession) the recovery is likely to start and finish later.

 Since March 2020, Oldham has provided more than £52M in grants to local businesses.

 Data from the GMCA suggests footfall in town centres across GM has decreased by between 45-71% compared to last year. 
The consequences of hotel, pub and restaurant closures have been widespread and severe. The breadth of impact on the 
industry has made initial attempts to quantify the economic impact on the sector infeasible.

P
age 216



Creating and Protecting Jobs and Supporting Businesses – over the next twelve months we will:
1. Support businesses to get back on their feet
• Support the safe reopening of local businesses, building consumer confidence and encouraging residents back to the high street.
• Continue to promote Oldham as a place to live, to do business and to visit through our Creating a Better Place strategic framework,  

Town Centre Vision and Town Deal Investment Plan.
• Work with local businesses to capitalise on opportunities to sell more goods and services locally, and encourage commitment from  

the public and private sector to procure more locally and to support local innovation.
• Support businesses to survive and thrive through refocused business events and training in digital skills.
• Provide free business start-up support to kick-start new businesses in to life at pace.
• Provide targeted support to markets and market traders, helping them to access new markets.

2. Help people back into work or retrain for new careers
• Ensure responsive employment support for newly-unemployed, under-employed and those facing redundancy including disadvantaged 

groups and communities, especially young people have been disproportionately affected by the pandemic economically.
• Target provision at identified groups disproportionately impacted by COVID-19 e.g. young people, BAME, and those already  

disadvantaged in the Labour Market, in particular residents with disabilities.
• Ensure everyone has access to opportunities to upskill and reskill, adapting the skills provision so that it  meets the changing  

needs of businesses and the aspirations of individuals, reflecting our Education and Skills offer. 
• Prioritise entry level jobs across Team Oldham as a step to enable young people enter public service.
• Provide access to the Oldham Pledge to all Oldham’s children and young people, helping them develop skills so they are life  

ready, school ready and work ready.

3. Creating the conditions for inclusive growth and a thriving town centre
• Encourage businesses to develop and use green processes and actively encourage green industries to establish in the borough.
• Create the conditions that will deliver a more inclusive, zero-carbon economy by investing in transport infrastructure, digital  

infrastructure and the environment. 
• Develop and begin to implement the new Cultural Strategy and develop plans for a new performance space for the borough.
• Increase council spending with local businesses, and those who create local jobs.

P
age 217



Prioritising Education and Skills – The Context
 Compared to the UK as a whole, the North East and the North West of England both have a higher proportion of employment  

in ‘shutdown sectors’, such as retail and manufacturing.

 Research by the Institute for Student Employers (ISE) suggested that all types of entry-level roles have been reduced by  
23% in 2020.

 Employers are also seeking 32% fewer entrants on apprentice or school leaver programmes than originally planned for  
this year (2021).

 Youth Unemployment in Oldham stands at 14.4% This is the highest rate across Greater Manchester and higher than the 
national rate of 9.0%.

 The effects of school closures and the lockdown in response to the COVID-19 pandemic has been particularly detrimental for 
the most disadvantaged groups in society, including vulnerable children and young people.

 To end of term December 2020, around 33,200 pupils have been affected by bubble closures. Over 855 bubbles have closed in 
total. Only 3 schools have not had a bubble closure.

 Recent figures from an online survey of 4,000 parents in England by the Institute of Fiscal Studies carried out between April and 
May shows that children from better-off households are spending 30% more time each day on educational activities than are 
children from the poorest fifth of households.

 Without the right support the economic and educational inequality for young people will be wider than ever. Many will struggle 
to find work, those in work will struggle to climb the income ladder and it will be even more difficult for young people to fulfil 
their aspirations regardless of their background.

 The First 1001 Days is the time between conception and age two. It is the period when brain development is at its peak growth 
period. It is a crucial period for young children’s learning, especially making relationships and language learning.

 

P
age 218



Prioritising Education and Skills – over the next twelve months we will:
1. Ensure school and college leavers move on to education, employment and training
• Work across Team Oldham to promote opportunities and careers to all young people leaving full-time education, ensuring  

every young person in Oldham will have the support they need to get into high quality education, employment, training,  
or an apprenticeship.

• Increase SEND transport provision and other work to support the most vulnerable children to attend school.
• Work with partners, children, young people and their families to identify the extent of hidden harm, for example, mental health 

impacts that will have been experienced by some our most vulnerable children and young people during the pandemic. 
• 
2. Work with local schools, colleges and early years settings to ensure children and young people achieve their full potential
• Ensure all children and young people in Oldham have an equal opportunity to thrive within their families and communities; and 

those at risk of marginalisation, exclusion and underachievement are protected and supported.
• Support schools to develop their digital and remote learning strategies so that high quality provision is available everywhere. 
• Support schools to maintain resilience and capacity to meet the changing demands through the waves of the pandemic and 

lockdowns, including forward planning on talent management and progression management.
• Support all children and young people and their parents to successfully return to education following the Covid pandemic,  

and feel confident and secure in doing so.
• Develop the early support and provision across Oldham schools to  promote inclusion and meet SEND need in  

mainstream provision.
• Revise the placement sufficiency strategy in Oldham to reduce the number of children educated out of borough.
• 
3. Enable the best start in life for our youngest children who have missed out as a result of COVID-19   
• Increase take up of the 2 year old early education offer with a specific focus on targeted communities.
• Increase support to parents and families to help parents provide positive home learning experiences. 
• Accelerate progress in achieving Good Level of Development (GLD) of pre-school children, reducing the gap between  

children in disadvantaged families and others and between boys and girls - gaps exacerbated by the impact of COVID-19.
• Launch our early years strategy to enable every child in Oldham to have the best possible start in life.

P
age 219



Promoting Health and Wellbeing and Supporting the Most Vulnerable – The Context
 Oldham residents overall experience poorer health than other parts of the country. Life expectancy is lower than the national 

average, and the proportion of the population who experience long term conditions such as high blood pressure and lung 
disease is significantly higher than the national average. This poorer underlying health has made Oldham particularly vulnerable 
to high rates of serious illness and deaths from COVID.

 The impact on the mental health on our residents is significant - with consequences of lockdown such as food insecurity, 
income loss, isolation and anxiety all worsening mental health outcomes.

 We have seen increases in mental health referrals from A&E and the community, and increases in mental health admissions for 
34 hours and 3-5 days which are indicators of crisis.

 The physical health of our residents has also been impacted both by high COVID-19 mortality and morbidity and by the 
disruption to the wider health and social care system caused by the pandemic. The NHS has worked at times to capacity 
to manage increasing COVID-19 hospital and ICU admissions. This has had knock on impacts on the health and social care 
system including the disruption to non-Covid acute care across Oldham and a backlog of care across acute and primary care.

 Significant drops in A&E use, admissions for urgent conditions, and attendance rates for primary care also indicate that many 
residents have not been seeking the help they need. This is particularly the case for our most vulnerable residents and risks 
increasing the health inequalities that already exist within Oldham and causing more non-Covid deaths.

 Additionally there are also longer-term impacts on NHS and social care capacity and resilience, including the impact on a 
workforce that has tirelessly worked through many months of a pandemic.

 In November 2020 there was a 92% increase in IDVA referrals for high risk domestic violence. The average increase since 
March is 35%.

 Increase in injuries to under 2’s - majority of cases were accidental injuries where wider impact of COVID-19 was a potential 
contributing factor, primarily linked to increased family pressure due to lockdown which lead to reduced supervision.

 

P
age 220



Promoting Health and Wellbeing and Supporting the Most Vulnerable –  
over the next twelve months we will:
1. Continue to contain the spread of COVID-19 in Oldham –
• Scale up testing in Oldham using new and existing technologies and increasing capacity.
• Deliver the vaccination program across Oldham, in line with JCVI Priorities, starting with the most vulnerable segments of our population.
• Proactively manage clusters of cases and outbreaks to prevent onwards transmission.

2. Work with residents and communities to improve health and wellbeing, preventing illness and premature death –  
• Implement the GM Living Well at Home Strategy, supporting people to live at home as independently as possible.
• Provide mental health support that targets the whole population (including children and young people), populations at higher risk and 

people who need additional support, including Oldham’s 23,000 unpaid carers. 
• Work across the Oldham Cares system to agree a co-operative approach and response to the NHS People Plan, ensuring we have the 

staff and skills to support our services.
• Support recovery of leisure facilities, helping ensure residents are physically active and are able to make positive life choices. 
• Increase capacity in substance misuse treatment , helping vulnerable people improve their health, rebuild relationships, find work and 

drive down crime and violence.
• Increase healthier behaviours, including healthy eating and physical activity, helping residents improve the quality of their lives.

3. Safeguard and supporting our most vulnerable residents –
• Continue identifying children at risk of harm and working to protect them through high quality assessment, planning and interventions.
• Ensure all young people know where and how to find support now and that there are smooth pathways between services.
• Develop the complex safeguarding offer across services to address need earlier.
• Ensure we have the right capacity and effective partnership working to improve the effectiveness of the response to domestic abuse, 

including through the provision of safe accommodation. 
• Launch a new residential provision offer to reduce out of borough placements.
• Enabling our most vulnerable residents to be supported to retain their independence as close to home as possible by  

managing risk, and working with stakeholders to ensure a strength based approach where people have choice and control.
• Develop our whole system response to early intervention and prevention , which will include the role of communities  

and the VCSFE in promoting well-being. 

P
age 221



Oldham Council  
Covid Recovery Strategy  
June 2021

AM
G

11
/6

/2
1

P
age 222



 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Reason for Decision 

This paper sets out proposed constitutional amendment to realign the Council’s Districts, 

and to update the role of the District Lead Member. 
 
Recommendations 

It is recommended that Council approves the changes to the Constitution proposed, 
comprising of: 

 
1) Part 2, Article 10.1 – in order to recognise realignment of District geographies 
2) Part 2, Article 10.2 / 10.3 – relating to the role of the District Lead Member  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Report to COUNCIL    

 
Districts and Lead Members – Changes to the 
Constitution 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Cllr Chadderton, Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 
 
Officer Contact:  Strategic Director of Communities and Reform 
 
Report Author: Simon Shuttleworth – Service Manager, Districts 
Ext. 4720 
 
14.07.2021 

Page 223

Agenda Item 13



 

  2 

 

 
Council 14.07.2021 
 
 
Districts and Lead Members – Changes to the Constitution 

 
1 Background and Current Position 

 

1.1 As part of the development of the new Place-Based Working model, Council and 

partner services are moving towards alignment of provision around a new set of five 
geographies.  In order to facilitate this, some changes to the Council Constitution 
are needed. 

 
1.2 The operating footprints of Council and many partner services within Oldham have 

been shifting over the last twelve months to align around five new geographies, in 
order to better join up services, and ensure residents are able to access the right 
support, at the right time, in the right place. 

 
1.3 To best achieve this, the previous six District operational model is being replaced 

with a set of five geographies, which allow a coterminous approach with Health, 
Social Care, GMP and other partners. These geographies are: 
 
District  Wards Covered 

 

Central Alexandra 
Coldhurst  

St Mary’s  
 

North Crompton 
Royton North 
Royton South 

Shaw 
 

East Saddleworth North  
Saddleworth South 

Saddleworth West and Lees 
St James’ 
Waterhead 
 

South Failsworth East 

Failsworth West 
Hollinwood 
Medlock Vale 
 

West Chadderton Central 

Chadderton North 
Chadderton South 

Werneth 

 

1.4 A crucial part of the new operating model will be to create a model whereby Elected 
Members are able to influence local service provision, to effectively prioritise those 

Page 224



 

  3 

issues that most impact on local residents. To properly enable this, the Council’s 

Constitution needs to be updated, in order to reflect the new operating boundaries. 
A proposed amendment is shown at Appendix 1. 

 
1.5 Particularly critical in achieving this ambition will be the role of the Lead Elected 

Member within each District. This role will provide a key leadership function, liaising 

with, and representing the views of, all Elected Members within the District, and 
chairing the new governance body within the District, once established. Some 

amendments are therefore suggested to the Constitution in relation to the Lead 
Member role, and a proposed updated version is also shown at Appendix 1.  For 
some areas it may be appropriate to have deputies albeit additional funding would 

not be assigned to this and a local arrangement will be put in place. 
 
 
2 Options/Alternatives 

 
2.1 Option 1 – Amend the Constitution as suggested 

 
2.2  Option 2 – Do not amend the Constitution 
 
3 Preferred Option 
 
3.1 The preferred option is Option 1 – Amend the Constitution as suggested. This will ensure 

that our local democratic arrangements are fully aligned with the Place Based Working 
agenda, and that Members are most effectively able to work with services to achieve 
better outcomes for our communities. 

 
4 Consultation 
 
4.1 Consultation took place with Group Leaders on 28th June 2021.  
 
5 Financial Implications  

 
5.1 The preferred option outlined in 3.1 is a proposed Constitutional amendment to realign the 

Council’s Districts from six to five and update the role of the District Lead Member. 
 
 There are currently seven District Leads with a combined allowance of £43,100; 
 

  
 
5.2 Moving to five leads may reduce the total allowances paid however this cannot be 

quantified at this stage as the revised roles would be subject to evaluation at the 
Independent Remuneration Panel. 

  
 (Nicola Harrop – Finance Manager) 
 

Oldham East District £7,182

Oldham West District £6,286

Chadderton £6,286

Saddleworth £6,286

Failsworth & Hollinwood £6,286

Royton £5,387

Shaw & Crompton £5,387

£43,100

Page 225



 

  4 

 
6 Legal Services Comments 

 
6.1 The proposals will require an amendment to the Constitution. 
 
7. Co-operative Agenda 
 
7.1 This change will support the co-operative agenda by more closely aligning Council and 

partner services to both each other and local communities. By creating a strengthened 
Lead Member role, Elected Members will be further supported in their role as local 
leaders, increasing their ability to achieve positive change for the communities they 
represent. 

 
8 Human Resources Comments 
 
8.1 None 
 
9 Risk Assessments 

 
9.1 N/A 
 
10 IT Implications 

 
10.1 None 
 
11 Property Implications 

 
11.1 None 
 
12 Procurement Implications 

 
12.1 None 
 
13 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

 
13.1 None 
 
14 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 

 
14.1 None 
 
15  Implications for Children and Young People 
 
15.1 None 
 
16 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 

 
16.1  No  
 
17 Key Decision 

 
17.1 No  
 
18 Key Decision Reference 

 
18.1 N/A 

Page 226



 

  5 

 
19 Background Papers 

 
19.1    None 

 
 

20 Appendices  

 
20.1 Appendix 1 – proposed amended sections of Article 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 227



 

  6 

Appendix 1 - proposed revised version of Article 10 
 

PART 2: ARTICLE 10 – DISTRICT WORKING 
 

 
10.1 Districts 

 
There are five Districts representing the different parts of the Borough as follows:- 

District  Wards Covered 

Central Alexandra 

Coldhurst  
St Mary’s  
 

North  Crompton 

Royton North 
Royton South 

Shaw 

East Saddleworth North  
Saddleworth South 

Saddleworth West and Lees 
St James’ 
Waterhead 

South Failsworth East 

Failsworth West 
Hollinwood 

Medlock Vale  

West Chadderton Central 
Chadderton North 
Chadderton South 

Werneth 

 
10.2 District Leads  

  

10.2.1 The role of the District Lead is to work closely with all elected members in their 

district to support them in their role as strong local leaders.  
 
  

10.2.2 The District Lead also plays a vital role in championing the needs of the district. 
They provide leadership across the district and ensure parallels exist between 
corporate and local priorities, and also cross-partnership priorities 

 
10.2.3 The role is a strategic position that requires vision and the ability to look beyond 

ward issues to those that affect the district as a whole. It is important that the 
District Lead is able to make decisions based on district priorities which may not 
always align fully with ward priorities. 

 
10.2.4 The District Lead will also need to be able to apply a systems-thinking approach, 

in order to recognise and influence factors that impact on the capacity to deliver 
positive outcomes for the communities of Oldham. 

 

Page 228



 

  7 

 

 
10.3 Requirements of the District Lead  

  
 The District Lead is a Councillor who will -  

a) provide leadership within and beyond the district;  

b) support elected members in the district in their role as local leaders;  
c) engage with elected members across the district and encourage active 

contribution to district initiatives that take place;  
d) supported by the District Team, work with the Place Leadership Board to develop 
the District Plan, ensuring it reflects both local and corporate priorities, and builds 

towards a set of shared outcomes agreements with partners 
e) champion the district as a place and represent the district in any discussions 

and/or negotiations at a borough level; 
f) lead on any applications to the Local Improvement Fund.  
g) Chair the Place Leadership Board at a local level, and relevant working groups 

as appropriate;  
h) lead on the development of a district Community Engagement Strategy, ensuring 

all residents have an opportunity to contribute their ideas or concerns to the district;  
i) work as appropriate with the Place Leadership Board, Executive Management 
Team, District Coordinator and District Team to plan and deliver against locally 

agreed priorities;  
j) liaise and work with other District Leads as and when required to deliver against 

priorities that cross district boundaries;  
k) liaise with and respond to the Chairs and Vice Chairs of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees as and when required;  

l) ensure that all actions and activities of the district are carried out in a socially 
inclusive way, in full acknowledgement and discharge of the equality legislation 

pertaining to all protected characteristics, and also legislation pertaining to the 
environment;  
m) work with appropriate Cabinet Member identify further opportunities for district 

working as appropriate;  
n) be the lead member in a district for corporate campaigns and ensure the 

involvement of Ward Members in supporting this activity.  
o) work, as appropriate, through formal and informal partnership with voluntary, 
private sector and other public sector interests to enhance the economic, social and 

environmental wellbeing of the local community;  
p) support the development of a strong Voluntary, Community and Faith sector 

which can work with the District Team in improving the quality of life of local people 
and encouraging the active involvement of residents in this;  
q) promote the Voluntary, Community and Faith sector as a key driver of local 

productivity, recognising the contribution of this sector in improving the economy 
and enterprise of the district;  

r) champion events, festivals and celebrations across the district.  
s) provide leadership in building strong cohesive communities within and beyond 
the district; and  

t) promote equality of opportunity and eliminate discrimination. 
 

Page 229



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 

The report highlights, on grounds of good governance, consequential and other amendments to 
the Council Constitution required following the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 19 th May 
2021. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 

1. That the report and the consequential amendments to Part 3 “Responsibility for Functions” 
to the Constitution be noted. 

2. The revisions to Part 2 “Articles” and Part 3 “Responsibility for Functions” referenced in this 
report be approved.  

3. Any further consequential amendments arising from this report be delegated to the Director 
of Legal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to COUNCIL  

 
Constitution - Consequential Amendments 
 

 
Officer Contact:  Liz Drogan, Head of Democratic Services, Mark 
Hardman, Constitutional Officer  
 
 
14th July 2021 

Page 231

Agenda Item 14



 

  2 

 
Council 14th July 2021 
 
Constitution Consequential Amendments  

 
1 Background 
 
3.1 A number of decisions were taken at either the Annual Meeting of the Council held on 19th 

May 2021 or at subsequent meetings that have impacted on the Council Constitution.  
This report highlights those issues and the amendments required or made to the 
Constitution under delegated powers. 

 
3.2 Executive arrangements 

(a) The Leader of the Council announced Cabinet Portfolios and Cabinet Members at 
the Annual Meeting.  These details are to be incorporated at Part 3, Section 6.7 
“Cabinet Membership and Portfolios” of the Council Constitution. 

(b) The Cabinet, at a meeting held on 21st June 2021, appointed members to various 
Cabinet Committees/Boards.  These details are to be incorporated at Part 3 Section 
7.1 “Cabinet and other bodies and Memberships” of the Council Constitution. 

The above amendments to the Constitution can be effected by the Director of Legal under 
delegated powers. 

 
3.3 Committee arrangements 

(a) The Annual Meeting of the Council agreed revised decision making arrangements 
related to employment matters which included the establishment of an Investigation 
and Disciplinary Committee.  Council is now asked to confirm the establishment of 
the Committee as a Sub-Committee of the Employment Committee and for the 
status of the body to further considered no later than the Annual Meeting of the 
Council in 2022.  This revision will require amendment to Part 2 Article 8 – 
“Regulatory and other Committees” and to Part 3 Section 4 “Responsibility for 

Council Functions – Council Committees and Terms of Reference” accordingly to 
reflect the change. 

 
2  Consultation 

 
2.1 Issues raised with regard to Contract Procedure Rules were considered by the Council’s 

Procurement Group which includes the Directors of Legal and Finance Services. 
 
3 Background Papers 

 
3.1 None.  
 
4 Appendices  
 
4.1 None. 

Page 232


	Agenda
	2 To order that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 19th May 2021 be signed as a correct record
	Minutes

	8c Questions on Cabinet Minutes
	Minutes
	$$MDocPackPublic.version0001
	Minutes


	8d Questions on Joint Arrangements
	Minutes of the GMCA meetings held 12 February  23 March 2021
	4b DRAFT minutes GMCA 23 March 2021 002
	GM Police, Fire and Crime Panel 29 Jan 2021
	GM Waste and Recycling Committee Minutes - 13 January 2021
	Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership Board 31 January 2020
	Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership Board 26 March 2021
	Minutes of the GMTC meeting 11 December 2020
	Minutes of the GM Transport Committee meeting held 19 February 2021
	Minutes of the GM Transport Committee - 24 March 2021
	National Park Authority 4 December 2020
	National Park Authority 19 February 2021
	National Park Authority 19th March 2021
	OLB Minutes 16 04 21_MD
	CPB Minutes 25.02.21
	CPB Minutes 250321
	HWBB 26 January 2021
	HWBB 23 March 2021

	11 Update on Actions from Council
	App 1 - Actions from Council 24 March 2021
	Council, July 2021 - Health Scrutiny Fast Food Motion report1
	Council, July 2021 - Health Scrutiny Fast Food Motion report - committee report
	Council, July 2021 Health Scrutiny Not Every Disability is Visible Motion report
	Council, July 2021 Health Scrutiny Not Every Disability is Visible Motion report - committee report
	Council, July 2021 Health Scrutiny Not Every Disability is Visible Motion report - committee report appendix

	12 Covid-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 - 2022
	Covid Recovery Strategy

	13 Districts and Lead Members - Changes to the Constitution
	14 Constitution - Consequential Amendments

